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1 MEETING OPENING
1.1 ATTENDANCE
Apologies

Nil.

Councillors Present

Cr Angela Long (Chairperson)

Cr Tim Dark, Cr Lana Formoso, Cr Eden Foster, Cr Rhonda Garad, Cr Richard Lim, Cr Jim Memeti, Cr
Bob Milkovic, Cr Sean O'Reilly, Cr Sophie Tan, Cr Loi Truong.

Officers Present

Paul Kearsley, Acting Chief Executive Officer, Mick Jaensch, Director Corporate Services, Jody
Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity, Martin Fidler, Director Community Services,
Charles Taveira, Acting Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects.

1.2 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRADITIONAL OWNERS OF THE LAND

Council acknowledges and pays respect to the past, present and future Traditional Custodians and
Elders of this nation and the continuation of cultural, spiritual and educational practices of Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander peoples.
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1.3 OFFERING OF PRAYER

All present remained standing as Pastor Vaughn Marshall from the Dandenong Ministers' Fellowship,
read the opening prayer:

" Dear Lord, | thank you for your grace and mercy towards us and that in You we can find the
strength and wisdom we need to do all we need to do. | thank you for the men and women that
make up the Council of this great City of Greater Dandenong. | pray for them that You would
bestow upon them Your wisdom and grace to make the right decisions necessary to see this
great city flourish for Your glory. | thank you for the Mayor, Angela Long, as well as these other
members and ask that they may know your direction for this city as they deliberate over the
matters before them. May they use the wisdom that comes from fulfilling the roles you have
placed them for this current time, such wisdom comes from You. | commit them to Your service
and pray your blessing upon each of them. In Jesus’ name. Amen."

1.4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Meeting of Council held 12 April 2021.

Recommendation

That the minutes of the Meeting of Council held 12 April 2021 be confirmed.
MINUTE 137

Moved by: Cr Lana Formoso
Seconded by: Cr Eden Foster

That the minutes of the Meeting of Council held 12 April 2021 be confirmed.
CARRIED
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1.5 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Cr Jim Memeti disclosed a Direct Material Conflict of Interest of a Non-Pecuniary nature (s.128)
in Item No. 4.2.3: 2021-22 Proposed Capital Works Program (Part 2), as he is the Director of a
company that has a stall at the Dandenong Market. Cr Jim Memeti left the Chamber prior to
discussion and voting on this item.
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1.6 ADOPTION OF AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

The Audit and Risk Committee held a meeting on 5 March 2021. Minutes of this meeting are
presented to Council for adoption.

Recommendation

That the unconfirmed minutes of the Audit Advisory Committee meeting held on 5 March 2021
be adopted.

Item Topic

1 The Risk Management report was tabled to the Committee providing an
update on several aspects of risk, including the status of Council’s
insurances and claims.

2 A report was provided to the Audit and Risk Committee on the financial and
other performance measures of Dandenong Market Pty Ltd for the period
1 July 2020 to 31 December 2020.

3 Council tabled to the Committee its Council Financial Performance Report
to the period ending 31 December 2020.

4 An update was provided to the Audit and Risk Committee on Councils
implementation of actions arising from the Industrial Manslaughter legislation

5 Councils Internal Auditor Crowe presented a status update on the Internal

Audit program, which included a progress report and a summary of recent]
reports and publications which may have an impact on local government.
Crowe tabled an Internal Audit Report on a review of Statutory Building

6 The Audit and Risk Committee received a report on the recent audit carried
out on Councils storage of hazardous chemicals and actions taken to
implement the findings of that report.

7 [The Audit and Risk Committee considered and recommended to Council
the adoption of the Councillors Gift Policy and Legislative Compliance
Framework Policy.

The Committee received and noted Councillors Code of Conduct Policy

6 The Audit and Risk Committee considered its approach to the bi-annual
tabling of its performance report to Council and the steps to be undertaken
prior to the next meeting on the Audit and Risk Committee Self-Assessment.

[¥3]
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1.6 ADOPTION OF AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES (Cont.)

MINUTE 138

Moved by: Cr Rhonda Garad
Seconded by: Cr Richard Lim

That the unconfirmed minutes of the Audit Advisory Committee meeting held on 5 March 2021
be adopted.

Item Topic

1 The Risk Management report was tabled to the Committee providing an
update on several aspects of risk, including the status of Council’s
insurances and claims.

2 A report was provided to the Audit and Risk Committee on the financial and
other performance measures of Dandenong Market Pty Ltd for the period
1 July 2020 to 31 December 2020.

3 Council tabled to the Committee its Council Financial Performance Repor]
to the period ending 31 December 2020.

4 An update was provided to the Audit and Risk Committee on Councils
implementation of actions arising from the Industrial Manslaughter legislation

5 Councils Internal Auditor Crowe presented a status update on the Internal

Audit program, which included a progress report and a summary of recent]
reports and publications which may have an impact on local government.
Crowe tabled an Internal Audit Report on a review of Statutory Building

6 The Audit and Risk Committee received a report on the recent audit carried
out on Councils storage of hazardous chemicals and actions taken to
implement the findings of that report.

7 [The Audit and Risk Committee considered and recommended to Council
the adoption of the Councillors Gift Policy and Legislative Compliance
Framework Policy.

The Committee received and noted Councillors Code of Conduct Policy

6 The Audit and Risk Committee considered its approach to the bi-annual
tabling of its performance report to Council and the steps to be undertaken
prior to the next meeting on the Audit and Risk Committee Self-Assessment.

[$2]

CARRIED
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2 OFFICERS' REPORTS - PART ONE
21 DOCUMENTS FOR SEALING
2.1.1 Documents for Sealing

File 1d: A2683601
Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services
Report Summary

Under the Victorian Local Government Act, each Council is a body corporate and a legal entity in its
own right. Each Council must therefore have a common seal (like any corporate entity) that is an
official sanction of that Council.

Sealing a document makes it an official document of Council as a corporate body. Documents that
require sealing include agreements, contracts, leases or any other contractual or legally binding
document that binds Council to another party.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that the listed documents be signed and sealed.
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2.1.1 Documents for Sealing (Cont.)

Item Summary

There are two [2] items being presented to Council’s meeting of 26 April 2021 for signing and sealing
as follows:

1. An Instrument of Appointment of Authorised Officer under the provisions of the Local
Government Act 1989, the Local Government Act 2020, the Environment Protection Act
1970, the Infringements Act 2006, the Planning and Environment Act 1987, the Public
Health and Wellbeing Act 2008, the Road Management Act 2004, the Road Safety Act
1986, the Sex Work Act 1994, the Subdivisions Act 1988, the Summary Offences Act 1966,
the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal Act 1998 and the Regulations made under
each of those Acts; the Local Laws made under the Local Government Act 1989; and any
other Act, Regulation or delegated legislation (including the Greater Dandenong Planning
Scheme) which relates to the powers of the Council made under the provisions and
enactments described. This instrument enables the following Council officer to carry out
the statutory responsibilities of the above Acts and is subject to policy and delegations
previously adopted by Council:

° Justin Clive Richardson; and

2. A letter of recognition to Samantha Bull, Corporate Services for 20 years of service to the
City of Greater Dandenong.

Recommendation
That the listed documents be signed and sealed.

MINUTE 139

Moved by: Cr Loi Truong
Seconded by: Cr Rhonda Garad

That the listed documents be signed and sealed.

CARRIED
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2.2 DOCUMENTS FOR TABLING
2.2.1 Documents for Tabling

File 1d: qA228025
Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services
Report Summary

Council receives various documents such as annual reports and minutes of committee meetings that
deal with a variety of issues that are relevant to the City.

These reports are tabled at Council Meetings and therefore brought to the attention of Council.
Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that the listed items be received.
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2.2.1 Documents for Tabling (Cont.)

List of Reports
Author Title
Emerson School 2020 YearBook

Queen Elizabeth Centre (QEC) Annual Report 2019-2020

A copy of each report is made available at the Council meeting or by contacting the Governance Unit
on telephone 8571 5235.

Recommendation
That the listed items be received.
MINUTE 140

Moved by: Cr Jim Memeti
Seconded by: Cr Lana Formoso

That the listed items be received.

CARRIED
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2.2.2 Petitions and Joint Letters

File Id: qA228025

Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services

Attachments: Petitions and Joint Letters
Report Summary

Council receives a number of petitions and joint letters on a regular basis that deal with a variety of
issues which have an impact upon the City.

Issues raised by petitions and joint letters will be investigated and reported back to Council if required.

A table containing all details relevant to current petitions and joint letters is provided in Attachment
1. It includes:

1. the full text of any petitions or joint letters received,;

2. petitions or joint letters still being considered for Council response as pending a final
response along with the date they were received; and

3. the final complete response to any outstanding petition or joint letter previously tabled
along with the full text of the original petition or joint letter and the date it was responded
to.

Note: On occasions, submissions are received that are addressed to Councillors which
do not qualify as petitions or joint letters under Council’s current Meeting Procedure
Local Law. These are also tabled.
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2.2.2 Petitions and Joint Letters (Cont.)

Petitions and Joint Letters Tabled

Council received no new petitions, no joint letters and one update prior to the Council Meeting of 26
April 2021.

N.B: Where relevant, a summary of the progress of ongoing change.org petitions and any
other relevant petitions/joint letters/submissions will be provided in the attachment to this
report.

Recommendation

That the listed items detailed in Attachment 1 and the current status of each, be received and
noted.

MINUTE 141

Moved by: Cr Sophie Tan
Seconded by: Cr Richard Lim

That the listed items detailed in Attachment 1 and the current status of each, be received and
noted.

CARRIED
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MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021

2.2.2 Petitions and Joint Letters (Cont.)

DOCUMENTS FOR TABLING

PETITIONS AND JOINT LETTERS

ATTACHMENT 1

PETITIONS AND JOINT LETTERS

PAGES 5 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 1000.
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2.3 STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS
2.3.1 Planning Decisions Issued by Planning Minister's Delegate - March 2021

File 1d: qA280444
Responsible Officer: Director City Planning Design & Amenity
Report Summary

This report provides Council with an update on the exercise of delegation by Planning Minister's
delegate.

No decisions were reported for the month of March 2021.
Recommendation

That the report be noted.
MINUTE 142

Moved by: Cr Jim Memeti
Seconded by: Cr Rhonda Garad

That the report be noted.

CARRIED
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2.3.2 Planning Delegated Decisions Issued - March 2021

File 1d: qA280
Responsible Officer: Director City Planning Design & Amenity
Attachments: Planning Delegated Decisions Issued- March
2021
Report Summary

This report provides Council with an update on the exercise of delegation by Council officers.

It provides a listing of Town Planning applications that were either decided or closed under delegation
or withdrawn by applicants in March 2021.

It should be noted that where permits and notices of decision to grant permits have been issued,
these applications have been assessed as being generally consistent with the Planning Scheme and
Council’s policies.

Application numbers with a PLA#, PLN#.01 or similar, are applications making amendments to
previously approved planning permits.

The annotation ‘SPEAR’ (Streamlined Planning through Electronic Applications and Referrals) identifies
where an application has been submitted electronically. SPEAR allows users to process planning
permits and subdivision applications online.

Recommendation

That the items be received and noted.

MINUTE 143

Moved by: Cr Jim Memeti
Seconded by: Cr Rhonda Garad

That the items be received and noted.

CARRIED
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2.3.2 Planning Delegated Decisions Issued - March 2021 (Cont.)

STATUTORY PLANNING APPLICATIONS

PLANNING DELEGATED DECISIONS ISSUED — MARCH 2021

ATTACHMENT 1

PLANNING DELEGATED DECISIONS ISSUED
MARCH 2021

PAGES 7 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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3 QUESTION TIME - PUBLIC

Question
Sabrina Mileto, Dandenong

Following on from some of the questions asked in the last Council meeting, | would like to ask why
is there such a long process for determining whether Council needs to introduce a Local Law on
canopy cover on private land? Surely if Council has declared a climate emergency, Council should
be taking leadership and just getting on with it as a matter of urgency.

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning, Design and Amenity

Extensive research has gone into preparing the draft Urban Forest Strategy and the Greening Our
Neighbourhood Strategy. This process has taken time to ensure a complete and thorough response
to the issue of low canopy cover. The consultation for this project ran for a period of four weeks
during February 2021 and during this consultation, Council also asked whether the community would
support a Local Law. Following the consultation, Council officers are tasked with collating and reading
all submissions to both the Strategies and the Local Law matter, then analysing the contents of the
submissions to look for shared responses and key pieces of information to inform Council's decision.
This is an important step in all consultation processes of closing the feedback loop. It ensures that
those members of the community that spent time preparing their submission to this project have their
thoughts and opinions considered and responded to. Council officers then prepare a summary of
the community consultation process and the key responses for Councillors before presenting a Council
report, outlining the more detailed results of the consultation and outcomes for consideration. Itis
envisaged that Councillors will be presented with a Council report in the coming months to consider
whether to develop a municipal-wide Local Law or not. Once Council has seen and decided that a
tree protection local law is justified, assuming that's the decision that is then taken, the statutory
process for creating a Local Law would need to be followed. This will require Council to develop a
Local Law which would be subject to public consultation processes in its own right, before it is returned
to Council for adoption. In addition to those processes, the development of the Local Law more
importantly, a Tree Protection Policy would also need to be developed. This policy would need to be
able to be used for the assessment too by Council's Arborists for them to approve the potential
trimming, pruning, lopping or removal of a tree, which is identified as being protected under any
potential local law and the policy would also need to discuss the potential planting of suitable
replacement trees in the event that removal of a protected tree is approved so, there are a number
of steps that are involved. It might have sounded like a bit of a long-winded process but that is about
as much in a nutshell as | can put it. It would be very nice just to say yes, we have got a climate
emergency and these are the things that we are going to now do, but we still need to go back and in
every step on every one of those elements of it have community consultation, bring it back, have it
considered as part of the process within Council for decision making. As | have just explained here,
there are three distinct steps to have gone through and we are moving ahead with it as quickly as
we possibly can and it is something that we are certainly taking seriously.
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Question
Sabrina Mileto. Dandenong

Sorry, can | just follow up? | just want to acknowledge that the Urban Forest Strategy did acknowledge
that the situation with our tree canopy cover is not going to improve if we do not do something about
it. Is that right?

Response
Jody Bosman, Director City Planning., Design and Amenity

That is correct which is why it is one of the tools that we have put forward for consideration. Is the
protection of trees of a certain size, possibly etc, on private land? That is why it is one of the responses
that is out there for consideration. We will also be looking later on in the year in doing a tree canopy
audit for the municipality and that will also give us a benchmark to be able to determine whether we
are going forward or backwards as we deal with the issue of tree canopy coverage across the
municipality.

Question
Tina Conques., Dandenong

At the Council meeting on 14 September 2020, not only did Council vote to commit to developing
and exhibiting concept designs for a Dandenong Community Hub, but also at the same time committed
to doing a community consultation in parallel on possible locations for the Dandenong Community
Hub including the Clow Street which is the Market area precinct as one of the options to be consulted
on. My question tonight is, when is the date of the Dandenong Community Hub location consultation
including the Clow Street site and option going to occur?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

Consultants have been appointed and workshops and focus groups will commence on 10 May 2021.
The site assessment as specified in the Notice of Motion No. 89 will be presented particularly during
the proposed consultation engagement phase which is in July this year. Information is on our website
with links to the consultants if you want more information of them.

We also have contact details for Council officers. We will be providing specific dates and times for
those workshop and focus groups by 5pm tomorrow as we just have to work through a couple of
COVID booking systems but that will be there.

Question
Tina Conques. Dandenong

Can | just clarify, the concept design will be at the same time as location survey and that Clow Street
is an option?
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Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

There are two processes in the business case, one is to work out the land site first and then present
some concept designs to the community for feedback as well. We need to know where the land is
to determine what is underneath; are there other things around that piece of land that need work or
will the proposed hub fit on that site of land; are there significant trees so there is a whole range of
factors that go into consideration for that land assessment.

Question
Matthew Kirwan, Noble Park

What is the latest in terms of the Capital Alliance plans for the Little India Precinct and the form and
timing of community consultation on that project, including Council's role in raising the awareness of
the consultation?

Response
Charles Taveira, Acting Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects

Council officers recently met with senior representatives of Development Victoria to discuss providing
Councils with an overview from Capital Alliance. On their proposal for the Foster Street Precinct, an
update will be scheduled in the coming weeks and expected to provide information on the form and
timing of the community consultation on the project’s Master Plan.

Question
Matthew Kirwan, Noble Park

When is construction on the Springvale Boulevard project expected to commence and what elements
of the original concept plan will be left for further states and when is their anticipated delivery?

Response
Charles Taveira, Acting Director Business, Engineering and Major Projects

Construction of stage 1 of the Springvale Boulevard Project is scheduled to commence next week
and it involves a full streetscape upgrade of roads and pathways located between Balmoral Avenue
and Windsor Avenue in Springvale. Stage 2 which includes the remaining section through to Queens
Avenue and Lightwood Road intersection is subject to future funding and further design
considerations.

Question
Matthew Kirwan, Noble Park

Of the total number of Council Advisory Committees that have met so far this year to the end of
February 2021, what percentage of them have had their minutes come to a Council meeting. It seems
like many Council Advisory Committees are not submitting their minutes for noting.
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Response
Mick Jaensch. Director Corporate Services

We will take that question from Mr Kirwan on notice as there is a little bit of running around to work
out what committees have met so we will table that information for Mr Kirwan.

Question
Lisa Hartzenberg. Dandenong

The Budget tonight refers to the latest Long Term Financial Strategy. However, this is not put out for
public exhibition at the same time as the Budget or at the very least made publicly available for
residents to read at the same time as the draft Budget. Why not?

Response
Mick Jaensch, Director Corporate Services

Quite simply the answer is the two documents have different dates under the Local Government Act.
The Annual Budget is required to be adopted by Council by 30 June this year and does not require
a community engagement process, despite the fact that we will seek community submissions on it.
The Long Term Financial Plan however, is required to be adopted by Council by 31 October this year
and does require a process of deliberative community engagement to take place prior to that occurring.
We will be placing the Long Term Financial Plan to the Greater Dandenong People's Panel and then
later it will come to Council and later on, we will seek community submissions on the Long Term
Financial Strategy.

uestion
Silvia Mastrogiovanni, Dandenong

| very much appreciate that the timelines for the project have now been added to the website. With
the first stage "Community workshops, focus groups and meetings starting 10 May 2021," who
specifically is going to be invited to the community workshops and focus groups and how will they
be promoted given that many Dandenong residents do not use the Internet and rely on paper flyers
and brochures?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

We will be inviting residents and interested stakeholders and there are many stakeholders and people
interested in this important project, to participate in the workshop and focus groups. We will be
promoting both electronically - digitally and online and also by print so we will be putting brochures
and flyers in our Libraries, our customer service centres, our senior citizens clubs and promoting it
through all our Council networks and also via social media. That will be quite extensive.
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uestion
Silvia Mastrogiovanni, Dandenong

Just to clarify this, would you also be putting them in places like churches where community members
and residents will go? Will you put them there as well because sometimes, as | said, the internet is
not used widely, so places of worship might be another place where people would gather and may
not otherwise see those.

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

Yes, we definitely promote through the Interfaith Network so all the Interfaith network members will
get information through there but we are quite happy to look at the mailing lists we have for the various
faith communities and make sure we contact them as well.

uestion
Silvia Mastrogiovanni, Dandenong

Regarding the development of concept plan and site assessment criteria planned for 2021 what does
site assessment criteria mean?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

A site assessment gathers information on particular site conditions to evaluate whether a specific
site is appropriate for the purpose of being built on. The criteria might include focus areas such as
historical context, the accessibility, the layout of the land, can people in wheelchairs access it, is there
any cultural heritage issues in that area, how close is it to transportation links and public transport,
planning, zoning and site vegetation. They are all the types of things that we look at and we take
feedback on in our site assessment.

Question
Silvia Mastrogiovanni, Dandenong

In terms of the development of the concept design, will it be two stage? Will the initial site independent
concept design be developed and consulted on and then like the Keysborough South Community
Hub, will Dandenong residents be consulted on with a more detailed site- specific concept design?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

Absolutely, it is very similar to the Keysborough South Community Hub process where in July this
year, is around the community engagement for the concepts and then there will be more detailed
further consultation in 2021/2022. 1 July this year onwards is when we are looking at that detailed
design going into the more specifics with feedback on those concepts and what the intricacies are of
the internal and external designs.
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uestion
Silvia Mastrogiovanni, Dandenong

Is it going to be like the Keysborough South Community Hub planning? What you did for the residents
there you will do for the residents in Dandenong?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

Yes, it is very much like the Keysborough South Community Hub.

Question
Pooja Agri, Keysborough

It was great news that the Council got funding from the State Government for a library service in the
Keysborough South Community Hub. My questions are:
(a) What sort of features are now planned for the library service?

(b) Does that mean that the community lounge will be smaller and there will less space for informal
gatherings of friends or community groups; or is the community lounge going to be made bigger to
accommodate a bigger library service?

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

A good segue from the previous question around the Keysborough South Community Hub. The design
for the community lounge and proposed library service is consistent with plans presented and endorsed
by Council on 10 August 2020 and will provide informal spaces for people to meet. We were very
pleased to receive the news of the funding and the library lounge in the Hub will have a small library
collection where the community will be able to order books to borrow. They will be able to access
computers and use free Wi-Fi. There will be lots of spaces where they could read, study or meet
informally or participate in some of the library programs. These are always developed for and in
response to community needs and interests.

Question
Pooja Agri, Keysborough

The parking issues in the area of Keysborough South around Weston Street and Beddington Street
continue to worsen as homes continue to increase the number of cars per property. Can Council
investigate ways of managing this better as it is becoming difficult getting through the streets in this
area?
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Response
Charles Taveira. Director Business. Engineering and Major Projects

Often households with multiple vehicles may choose to park one or more vehicles in the street as a
matter of convenience. Within residential areas this is not normally an issue because we have got
both low traffic volumes and speeds. Should on street parking demand reach levels where residents
may be restricted to parking restrictions, our Traffic Engineers will certainly undertake an assessment
to determine that.

Comment
Paul Kearsley. Acting Chief Executive Officer

Question 10 is also from Pooja Agri and | have just realised that this makes it too many questions as
per Council’'s Governance Rules so we will hold this particular question over for next Council meeting.

Question
Ranka Trisic, Dandenong

It is very pleasing to see tonight that $325,000 has been allocated for Design Development work for
the Dandenong Community Hub in the draft 2021/22 Budget that is in tonight's Agenda. What does
"Design Development " entail? Usually that is for detailed design and tender documentations is it
not? What happened to the $ 80,000 allocated for concept design work for this financial year? Is that
still available as it was not endorsed as being taken out of the budget in the Mid-Year Budget Review
in December 20207

Response
Martin Fidler, Director Community Services

Detailed design includes architectural drawings where the overall design is refined and specifications
and estimates are established. The result is a package of information intended to be ready for
construction. Public consultation engagement is also a feature of this stage. The $80,000 that was
referred to, that allocation is funding for our current project, the Dandenong Community Hub business
case and concept plan.

Paul Kearsley, Acting Chief Executive Officer tabled a listing of responses to questions taken
on notice/requiring further action at the previous Council meeting. A copy of the responses
is provided as an attachment.
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4 OFFICERS' REPORTS - PART TWO

4.1 CONTRACTS
4.1.1 Contract No 2021-11 Parks & Open Space Maintenance

File 1d: qA425126
Responsible Officer: Director Business, Engineering & Major Projects
Report Summary

This report outlines the tender process undertaken to select a panel of suitably qualified and
experienced contractors for Parks and Open Space Maintenance.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that Council awards Contract 2021-11 to a panel of suppliers comprising
Citywide Service Solutions P/L, Skyline Landscape Services, Super Gardens P/L, Urban Maintenance
Systems P/L and Munns Parks and Gardens for a schedule of rates.
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Introduction

The current Parks and Open Space Maintenance Contract expired on 31 March 2021. Following a
review of the service requirements, an Open Space Maintenance contracts panel has been developed.

The intent of this contract is to engage a panel of contractors specialising in open space maintenance
services to assist the Parks Team with maintaining and improving the amenity of open space throughout
the municipality.

The panel of contractors will be engaged through a quotation process for packages of works and
through the application of the schedule of rates.

Tender Process

This tender was advertised on Saturday 24 October 2020 in The Age Newspaper and Council’'s
website and closed at 2pm on Tuesday 17 November 2020.

At the close of the tender advertising period submissions were received from seventeen (17) contractors
as listed below:

Ace Landscape Services P/L
Arbortryst P/L

Asplundh Tree Expert (Aust) P/L - Summit Open Space Services
Citywide Service Solutions P/L

Green Options

Herbert Contractors

Landlinks Environmental Services P/L
LD Total

MACA Infrastructure P/L

10. Munns Parks & Gardens P/L

11. Programmed Property Services P/L
12. Sevron P/L

13. Skyline Landscape Services

14. South Eastern Garden Services

15. Super Gardens P/L

16. UDL M P/L

17. Urban Maintenance Systems P/L

©® Nk Wb~

©

Tender Evaluation

The evaluation panel comprised of Council’s Service Unit Leader — Parks, Team Leader Conservation
and Horticultural Services, Team Leader Turf Services, Open Space Contracts Officer and Senior
Contracts Officer.
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The tender was evaluated using Council’'s Weighted Attributed Value Selection Method. The advertised
evaluation criteria and the allocated weightings for evaluation are as follows:

Evaluation Criteria Weighting
1 Price 30%
2 Relevant Experience 28%
3 Capability 28%
4 Social Procurement 8%
5 Local Industry 8%

Each criterion is ranked on a point score between 0 (fail) and 5 (excellent). These rankings are then
multiplied by the weighting to give a weighted attribute ranking for each criterion and totalled to give
an overall evaluation score for all criteria.

Following an evaluation of the tender, the comparative point score based on the above criteria is as
follows:

Tenderer Price Points Non-Price Points Total Score
Citywide Service Solutions P/L 0.94 3.36 4.30
Skyline Landscape Services 0.79 3.26 4.05
Super Gardens P/L 0.47 3.25 3.72
Urban Maintenance Systems P/L 0.90 2.80 3.70
Munns Parks & Gardens P/L 0.71 2.73 3.44
Programmed P/L 0.29 3.01 3.30
UDL M P/L 0.89 2.39 3.28
Herbert Contractors 0.85 2.27 3.12
Landlinks Environmental Services | 1.07 1.91 2.98
P/L

Sevron P/L 0.50 2.39 2.89
LD Total 0.70 2.16 2.86
MACA Infrastructure P/L 0.68 212 2.80
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Ace Landscape Services P/L 0.00 2.46 2.46
Asplundh Tree Expert (Summit Open | 0.79 0.45 1.24
Space Services)

Green Options 0.95 0.26 1.21
Arbortryst P/L 0.00 0.42 0.42
South Eastern Garden Services 0.00 0.00 0.00

Note 1: The higher the price score — lower the tendered price.

Note 2: The higher the non-price score — represents better capability and capacity to undertake
the service.

Relevant Experience/Track Record

Citywide Service Solutions (CSS) — have been providing open space maintenance services within
the local government sector for the past 25 years. CSS have extensive experience in delivering works
of similar scope and value as specified within this contract. CSS are one of the current incumbents
for the existing open space maintenance contract, have excellent reference checks and are adequately
resourced with plant, equipment and suitably qualified staff to undertake the works Council require.

Skyline Landscape Services (SLS) - have been providing open space maintenance services within
the local government and private sectors for the past 29 years. SLS have extensive experience in
delivering works of similar scope and value as specified within this contract. SLS have excellent
reference checks and are adequately resourced with plant, equipment and suitably qualified staff to
undertake the works Council require.

Super Gardens (SG) - have been providing open space maintenance services within the local
government and private sectors for the past 31 years. SG are one of the current incumbents for the
existing open space maintenance contract, have excellent reference checks and are adequately
resourced with plant, equipment and suitably qualified staff to undertake the works Council require.

Urban Maintenance Systems (UMS) - have been providing open space maintenance services within
the local government sector for the past 15 years. UMS have extensive experience in undertaking
works of similar scope and value as specified within this contract. UMS have excellent reference
checks and are adequately resourced with plant, equipment and suitably qualified staff to undertake
the works Council require.

Munns Parks and Gardens (MPG) - have been providing open space maintenance services within
local and state government sectors for the past 16 years. MPG have extensive experience in
undertaking works of similar scope and value as specified within this contract. MPG have excellent
reference checks and are adequately resourced with plant, equipment and suitably qualified staff to
undertake the works Council require.
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Financial Implications

There are no financial implications associated with this report. Council expects, based on the volume
of work that it has traditionally delivered and, is expected to deliver, in conjunction with the schedule
of rates submitted, that the contracted costs will be managed with the current and forecasted budget
provisions.

Note: Schedule of Rates — A schedule of rates contract is one under which the amount that
is payable to the contractor is calculated by applying an agreed schedule of rates to the
quantity of work that is actually performed.

Social Procurement

Social procurement was considered when assessing the tender responses. The recommended panel
of suppliers have indicated that a combined staff of 72 reside within the Council boundary.

Local Industry

Local industry was considered when assessing the tender responses. The recommended panel of
suppliers have each indicated a minimum of $200,000.00 local spend per annum.

Consultation

During the tender evaluation process and in preparation of this report other relevant Council Officers
have also been consulted to seek their input and specialist advice.

Conclusion

At the conclusion of the tender evaluation process, the evaluation panel agreed that the tender
submissions from Citywide Service Solutions P/L, Skyline Landscape Services, Super Gardens P/L,
Urban Maintenance Systems P/L and Munns Parks and Gardens represented the best value outcome
for Council and should be accepted due to:

1. Their conforming tender submission and understanding of the specification brief;
2. Their level of experience, staff resources and the range of available equipment; and
3. The results from the tender evaluation.

Recommendation

That Council:

1. awards Contact 2021-11 to Citywide Service Solutions P/L, Skyline Landscape
Services, Super Gardens P/L, Urban Maintenance Systems P/L and Munns Parks
and Gardens for a schedule of rates; and

2. signs and seals the contract documents when prepared.
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MINUTE 144

Moved by: Cr Rhonda Garad
Seconded by: Cr Sophie Tan

That Council:

1. awards Contact 2021-11 to Citywide Service Solutions P/L, Skyline Landscape
Services, Super Gardens P/L, Urban Maintenance Systems P/L and Munns Parks
and Gardens for a schedule of rates; and

2. signs and seals the contract documents when prepared.

CARRIED
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4.2 FINANCE AND BUDGET

4.2.1 Audit & Risk Committee Activity Report April 2021

File Id:
Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services
Attachments: CGD Audit & Risk Committee Activity Report
April 2021
Report Summary

Under the new Local Government Act 2020, the Audit and Risk Committee is required to table a
report on its activities to Council twice per year.

This report represents the report on activities from 29 August until 5 March 2021.
Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that Council notes the Audit and Risk Committee Activity Report.
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Background

Section 54(5) of the Local Government Act 2020 requires that the Audit and Risk Committee tables
a bi-annual report to Council.

In discussing this further, Council’s Audit and Risk Committee has resolved to provide reports following
every second meeting in order that reports are timely and relevant to Council. This first report however
does encompass the three meetings already held in the current financial year.

The following report will be tabled in September and cover the June and August meetings of the
Committee.

The report outlines the key activities carried out by the Committee during the period.
Proposal
The report recommends that Council notes the Audit and Risk Committee Report.

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-2021 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘Imagine
2030’. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘imagine 2030’
Opportunity

e  [eadership by the Council — The leading Council
Council Plan 2017-2021

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:

Opportunity

e  An open and effective Council

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications associated with this report.
Consultation

The Audit and Risk Committee Activity Report has been circulated to members of the Audit and Risk
Committee prior to being tabled to Council.
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Conclusion

As outlined in the Activity Report, the Audit and Risk Committee has been very productive during the
reporting period covering a wide range of matters.

Recommendation
That Council notes the Audit and Risk Committee Activity Report.
MINUTE 145

Moved by: Cr Tim Dark
Seconded by: Cr Bob Milkovic

That Council notes the Audit and Risk Committee Activity Report.
CARRIED
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FINANCE AND BUDGET

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE ACTIVITY REPORT APRIL 2021

ATTACHMENT 1

CGD AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE ACTIVITY
REPORT APRIL 2021

PAGES 6 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.

2899



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.1 Audit & Risk Committee Activity Report April 2021 (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong
Audit & Risk Committee
Activity Report
April 2021

1. Period of this Report.

This report covers Audit & Risk Committee (ARC or Committee) activity from 29 August 2020 to 5 March
2021.In that period the Committee has met twice, on 3 December 2020, that included the councillors appointed
to the committee following the 2020 council elections and our 5 March 2021 meeting.

2. Purpose of this Report.

This report meets the reporting requirements to Council as mandated by the Local Government Act 2020
(LGA) pursuant to section 54(5) and importantly provides Council with a summary of the matters that the ARC
has addressed in the reporting period in discharging its responsibilities under its Charter. It is the first such report
under the new LGA.

3. Committee Charter.

The ARC's Charter is set by Council and was last reviewed and approved by Council incorporating the
changes necessitated by the new LGA. Both meetings conducted during this report period were conducted in
accordance with the revised charter.

4. What does the ARC To Do.

As a reminder to Council the business of the Committee is briefly summarised below and is based on the
requirements Council established in the Committee Charter referred to above. The work of the Committee is to
assist Council in regard to its prudential, governance and responsibilities under sections 8 and 28 of the LGA.

In essence the work of the Committee includes the following key matters:
a) Monitor the quality of the annual financial report and the annual performance statement.
b) Monitor the effectiveness of Council's risk management performance.

¢) Monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of the systems and controls management has in place to
enable the business to deliver on Council strategic and operational plans.

d) Ensure that the annual external audit of those statements is completed and that management
addresses any serious matters raised by the auditors.

e) Monitor the quality of the internal audit programme and delivery of internal audit plans. These plans
are aimed at identifying any system and controls concerns that Council may have in key areas of
operations.

f)  Monitor Council performance with regard to legislative and policy compliance.

5. Committee Business

The agenda for our meetings is driven by the Committee’'s Annual Work Plan (AWP). There is always a
challenge to complete the agendas for each meeting as they are conducted in a very inclusive manner to extract
optimum value from the skills and experience of all members. At the meetings held in this reporting period, the
key matters considered are summarised in the table below.

Page | of 5
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Key Matters Considered at Recent Meetings

Meeting
5
3 Dec March
Topic 2020 2021
Revisions to the Committee’s AWP to reflect changes in its Charter and agree changes to v
meeting agendas
Agree approach to disclosure of personal interests pursuant to the new LGA noting that v
independent members of the ARC are not required to comply with the disclosure
requirements in the new LGA
Review of year-to-date financial performance (Council and DMPL) including consideration v v
of the impact of COVID-19
Consideration of the external audit strategy (Council and DMPL) for the year ending 30 v
June 2021;
Review of risk management activity at both operational and strategic levels
Review status of delivery of the internal audit plan for the year ending 30 June 2021 v
Review of the outcomes of the following scheduled internal audit reviews;
a) Effectiveness of systems and controls in place for parking ticket machines, cash 4
collection and parking enforcement and penalty infringement notices
b)  Effectiveness of the systems and controls in place for compliance with the v
Councillor Support, Reimbursement and Accountability Policy
c) Effectiveness of policies, systems and controls in place for Statutory Building v
Processes
Consider the outcomes of a special review of Council's compliance performance with v
regard to hazardous chemicals storage
Review of terms of reference for planned internal audit reviews
Review of progress with implementation of internal audit recommendations
Review of new/revised policies in the following areas:
a)  Councillor Gift policy
b)  Councillor Code of Conduct 2021
c) Legislative Compliance Framework Policy
Briefings from senior executives in the following risk areas:
a)  City Planning, Design & Amenity v v
b)  Business, Engineering & Major Projects v
Consideration of recently released reports by Integrity Bodies (IBAC, LGl & OV) v
Consideration of the impact of the new Charter requirement to monitor Council v
compliance with the recently introduced Governance Principles
Consider new requirements for Committee activity reports to Council v
Page 2 of 5
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6. Meetings
Committee Meetings

The Committee has met twice on 3 December 2020 and 5 March 2021 as noted above. Councillors Angela
Long (Mayor) and Rhonda Garad are Council's representatives on the Committee.

The independent members of the Committee appointed by Council are David Ashmore (Chair), Michael
Ulbrick and Geoff Harry.

Member attendance at the two meetings has been excellent with perfect attendance by all five members.

The Committee enjoys a strong and healthy working relationship with Council officers. The quality of the
meeting packs is high and officers engage strongly and positively both during and outside meetings. Officer support
for the work of the Committee is excellent.

The Committee meeting on 3 December 2020 was held at the new Springvale Community Hub to enable
members to see first hand the outcomes of the development of the new facilities, this project having been a very
significant investment by Council over the past three years.

7. The Committee’s Annual Work Plan

The Committee has dealt with all matters scheduled for consideration in the ARC AWP in the reporting
period.

The recent introduction of the new LGA has impacted the ARC by expanding its' responsibilities, the most
notable of these changes being as follows:

> To monitor compliance of Council policies and procedures with the overarching Governance Principles,
the LGA and the Regulations and any Ministerial Directions (S54(2)).

> To review expense reimbursements to Councillors and members of Delegated Committees (S40).
> To report to Council twice per annum on the Committee’s activities (S54(5).

Most other changes in the LGA affecting the operations of the Committee were already in place and hence
have no significant impact on the Committee’s activities. These include (1) adopting an Annual Work Plan for the
Committee and (2) undertaking an annual performance assessment of Committee activities against its Charter. All
of these changes have been incorporated into the Committee's AWP

8. Key Activities for the Reporting Period

The work of the ARC has continued to be guided by the Annual Workplan (AWP) and all matters listed in the
AWP for the two scheduled meetings held have been addressed. The AWP is reviewed at the beginning of each
meeting to ensure its continued relevance. Key outcomes of the scheduled meetings are summarised below.

8.1 Impact of COVID-19

Throughout 2020 the Committee was briefed on Council's experience with and responses to COVID-19. At
its last two meetings the Committee has continued to monitor the impact of the pandemic on Council's finances.
The briefings have covered known impacts and likely future impacts both for the remainder of the 2020/21
financial year and beyond. Whilst there is clearly a significant financial impact for Council that is expected to
continue well into the future, the Committee noted that Council is relatively well placed to address this and was
reassured to know that future service delivery and financial planning is taking account of this. The Committee and
Officers agreed that these matters will require continuous monitoring as the impacts of the pandemic evolve.

8.2 Disclosure of Personal Interests

The Committee noted that the new LGA does not require independent members to comply with the new
personal interest disclosures required for Councillors in Part 6 — Division 3 (sections 32 to 136) of the Act. It was
unanimously agreed that it is appropriate for independent members to complete the new personal interests form
and submit them to the Chief Executive Officer.

8.3. External Audit

The Committee considered the draft external audit strategy for the audit of the consolidated annual financial
report (Council and Dandenong Market Pty Ltd) and annual performance statement for the year ending 30 June
2021 at the February 2021 meeting There were no significant changes proposed to the strategy in comparison to
the previous year As expected, the strategy highlighted the impact of COVID-19 on Council's financial
performance and the need to ensure that any related disclosures are appropriate. Other than for COVID-19 there

Page 3 of 5
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were no significant changes in the proposed audit strategy in comparison to the previous year and the Committee
believes that Council is well placed to meet the challenges of the financial year end close at 31 June 2021.

At its next meeting the Committee will consider the outcomes of the first external audit visit scheduled for
May 2021.

8.4 Financial Performance

The Committee noted the year-to-date performance of both Council and Dandenong Market Pty Ltd. The reports
continue to be of high quality and informative, providing excellent analysis of budget to actual variances and the
progress on Council's capital expenditure programme. The Committee noted that the mid-term reforecast is
currently underway, which in the current challenging circumstances is an excellent initiative as it will provide
Council with greater assurance about the likely full year financial performance. This will be an important input to
the 2021/22 budgeting planning and budgeting process.

8.5 Risk Management

The Committee received briefings on a range of risk management issues including development of the fraud
control action plan, recent and planned activity for health and wellbeing risks, the status of Council's insurance
programme and activity in relation to the strategic risk programme. In the early stages of the pandemic in 2020 the
risk team resources were severely impacted by the need to refocus on the pandemic and related business
continuity matters. The Committee was pleased to see that recently there has been progress with regard to the
broader risk management activities, albeit that the team is still striving to claw back lost ground with its initiatives.
The Committee noted that the strategic risks focus has probably experienced the biggest setback in this regard.
Hence the focus on strategic risk activity continues to be Council's biggest challenge in achieving effective risk
management.

The Committee was pleased to see that Council has taken a lead in the sector by partnering with the Monash
University Accident Research Centre on two projects that are likely to have benefits in providing better
workplaces for both Council and the local government sector. These are the () workplace violence and aggression
research project and (2) Doctor of Philosophy candidature for a senior manager at Council.

8.6 Internal Audit
Reports.

The Committee received three reports on internal audit reviews completed in the period. These were all
scheduled reviews in the 2020/2 1 risk based internal audit plan. The reviews related to:

> Parking Tickets & Infringement Notices controls — this review indicated that controls were satisfactory
although some opportunities for control improvements were identified. There were 6 recommendations
made, all were accepted and implementation timelines were set. There were no recommendations
assessed as needed to rectify High risk issues.

> Councillor Expenses - this review indicated that controls were satisfactory atthough some opportunities
for control improvements were identified. There were 4 recommendations made, all were accepted and
implementation timelines were set. There were no recommendations assessed as needed to rectify High
risk issues.

> Statutory Building Processes - this review indicated that some control improvements are required. There
were |0 recommendations made, all were accepted and implementation timelines were set. The was one
recommendations assessed necessary to rectify High risk issues and this related to a need to strengthen
the the monitoring and reporting of building services activities. The date for implementation of this
recommendation is 30 June 2021.

Council's internal audit service provider will prepare an internal audit plan for 2021/22 that will be considered
by the Committee at its next meeting,

Past internal audit recommendations

The Committee noted that the status of progress with regard to completion of open internal audit
recommendations was satisfactory, although the Committee did express some concern about the fact that there
are some long outstanding recommendations and asked management to review these with a view to closing these
out as soon as possible.

Page 4 of 5
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8.7 Hazardous Chemicals Storage

The Committee considered a report by an external expert who had been engaged by Council to undertake
an audit of its compliance with the various regulatory and legislative requirements for storage of hazardous
chemicals. The report indicated that Council needs to undertake remedial action in some areas and the
Committee noted that management responses to the recommendations were extensive and positive. The
Committee will monitor progress on this matter and expects that the recommendations will have been fully
addressed when it next meets in May 2021.

8.8 New Council Policies

The Committee noted that the new Councillor Code of Conduct has been successfully completed and is now
in place.

The new Councillor Gift Policy was provided to the Committee for review and endorsement prior going to
Council for approval. The Committee endorsed the policy and stressed the importance of undertaking appropriate
training for Councillors to ensure they understand their obligations and are able to demonstrate compliance.

The committee noted the development of a Legislative Compliance Framework Policy following a
recommendation from a past internal audit. This police was discussed and recommended to council for adoption.

8.9 Integrity Agency Reports

The purpose of this aspect of the Committees work is for council to maintain best practice by monitoring various
regulatory agency reports, their findings and recommendations to then assess, where appropriate, the position of
the council on the issues identified and whether any response as needed.

The Committee reviewed a briefing paper on recently released reports by the various integrity agencies in
Victoria. In particular we noted that a survey had recently been undertaken by VAGO on sexual harassment in the
Victorian local government sector. The significance of the survey is that there were almost 10,000 respondents
over 75 (of 79) councils in Victoria. The survey indicates that 28% of people working in the sector experience
sexual harassment, 90% of which occurs in day-to-day work. The Committee will receive a briefing about Council's
response the findings in the survey at its next meeting.

9. Matters for Consideration During the Next Reporting Period

In addition to business as usual matters and matters noted above for consideration at the next meeting, the
Committee will consider the following important matters at its next meeting:

> External audit interim management letter
> Internal audit plan for 2021/22

> Council's response to the VAGO sexual harassment survey

10. Frequency and Timing of Activity Reports

As indicated earlier in this report, these reports are required to be provided to Council at least twice per
annum. The Committee is of the view that these reports need to be informative about the business of the
Committee and should be provided on a timely basis to assist Council in discharging its responsibilities in the areas
for which the Committee is responsible. Feedback on this report by Council is welcomed. It is intended that the
Chairperson of the Committee would meet with Council to formally present this report and discuss the content
of the report if Council wishes to gain better insight of the issues raised.

11. Meeting Schedule for remainder of 2021
The Committee's meeting schedule for the remainder of 2021 is as follows:
> 18 June 2021
> 27 August 2021
> 19 November 2021
13. Conclusion

The Committee has carried out its charter responsibilities for the past six months and is pleased
to provide this report to council.

David Ashmore Chair - Audit & Risk Committee 13 April 2021.
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File Id:

Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services
Attachments: Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025
Report Summary

Under the new Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) Council is required to prepare a Revenue and
Rating Plan to cover a period of four years and adopt by 30 June after a Council election.

The purpose of the Revenue and Rating Plan is to determine the most appropriate and affordable
revenue and rating approach which in conjunction with other income sources will provide the available
revenue against which the priorities in the Council Plan can be matched.

Whilst deliberative community engagement is not prescribed for a Revenue and Rating Plan in either
the Local Government Act 2020, or the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations
2020, the Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 will be placed on public exhibition for the purposes
of inviting public submissions and again be tabled for Council consideration and adoption at the 28
June 2021 Council meeting.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that Council adopts in principle the Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025
and place on public exhibition for the purposes of inviting public submissions. Following the conclusion
of the public consultation period and any submissions received, the Revenue and Rating Plan will
again be tabled for Council consideration and adoption at the 28 June 2021 Council meeting.
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Background

The purpose of the Revenue and Rating Plan is to determine the most appropriate and affordable
revenue and rating approach for Council. This Plan replaces Council’s Rating Strategy and Pricing
Policy.

The Local Government Act 2020 requires each Council to prepare a Revenue and Rating Plan to
cover a period of four years following each Council election. The Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025
establishes the revenue raising framework within which the Council proposes to work. This plan is
an important part of Council’s integrated planning framework, all of which is created to achieve our
vision in the Community Plan.

In an ideal world this plan would outline how Council will generate income to deliver on the Council
Plan, program and services and capital works commitments over a 4-year period. The reality is that
with capped rates and government grants representing over 80% of Councils income, Councils ability
to increase revenue to match expenditure requirements is limited. The Plan instead defines the
revenue and rating ‘envelope’ within which Council proposes to operate.

This plan will set out the decisions that Council has made in relation to rating options available to it
under the Local Government Act 2020 to ensure the fair and equitable distribution of rates across
property owners. It will also set out the robust principles and practices for fee and charge setting and
other revenue items to ensure Council’s commitment to responsible financial management is achieved,
while at the same time continuing to provide high quality, accessible services to the community.

It is also important to note that this plan does not set revenue targets for Council, it outlines the
strategic framework and decisions that inform how Council will go about calculating and collecting
its revenue.

At present the legislative provisions that outline rates and charges are still contained in the Local
Government Act 1989 pending a transition to the Local Government Act 2020

The selection of rating philosophies and the choice between the limited rating options available under
the Local Government Act 1989 is a difficult one for all Councils and it is most likely that a perfect
approach is almost impossible to achieve in any local government environment.

The purpose of plan is therefore to consider what rating options are available to Council under the
Local Government Act 1989, and how Council’s choices in applying these options contribute towards
meeting an equitable rating strategy.

It is important to note at the outset that the focus of this Plan is very different to that of the Long-Term
Financial Plan document/Annual Budget. In these latter documents the key concern is the quantum
of rates required to be raised for Council to deliver the services and capital expenditure required. In
this Plan, the focus instead is on how the obligation to pay this quantum will be equitably distributed
amongst Council’s ratepayers.
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The Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 recommends the following applications (in summary):
Rates and charges

a. That Council continue to use the CIV valuation base for the purposes of raising rates;

b. That Council continues to use differential rating in distributing the rating burden;

c. That the existing Industrial differential surcharge of 275 per cent increase to 280 per cent to mitigate
the impacts of the 2021 Council revaluation on the residential sector.

d. That Council annually reviews its differential rating structure, taking account of the annual impact
of revaluations and including the equitable application of taxation principles.

e. That no municipal charge be applied.
f. That Council continue to utilise a waste service charge based on full cost recovery.

g. That maintenance levies for subdivisions with a higher open space component continue to be
applied.

h. That Council continues to provide the current range of rate payment options in future years —
including the mandatory instalment rate payment methodology.

i. That Council continues to maintain the rates arrangements, deferral and waiver procedures as
documented in the Rates and Charges Hardship Policy and further review its Rates and Charges
Hardship Policy on the release of the Victorian Ombudsman report.

Other revenue

j- That Council services are provided based on one of three pricing methods — full cost recovery
pricing, subsidised pricing and market pricing.

Impacts of the 2021 Revaluation

One of the key influencers on the rating plan is the impacts of the 2021 revaluation on Councils
existing differential rating structure. A revaluation does NOT provide Council with any additional rate
revenue but can significantly re-align how rates are distributed between ratepayers at both a rating
group and individual level.
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The below table highlights the impact of the 2021 Council revaluation.

The table highlights that overall Council properties have decreased by 1.71 per cent over the past
year (1 January 2020 to 1 January 2021). Residential, commercial and industrial valuations have all
experienced a decrease. Farm and residential vacant valuations, on the other hand, have increased
from the prior year by 7.39% and 2.81% respectively.

Council needs to be mindful of the impacts of revaluations on the various property types in
implementing the differential rating strategy to ensure that rises and falls in Council rates remain
affordable and that rating ‘shocks’ are mitigated to some degree.

By way of example the table below highlights the rating impact on the various rating types should
Council retain the current rate differential structure (outcomes are based on the proposed annual
increase in rates of 1.50 per cent in 2021-22).

As shown in the table the rating experiences between rating groups is reasonably dynamic with
residential properties on average increasing by 2.35 per cent and farm properties increasing by 11.23
per cent. The commercial sector has been the weakest experiencing a decrease of 3.13%.

This disparity in the valuation movements means that unless Council adjusts its differential rating
structure, residential rates would increase by an average of 2.35%.
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On this basis, it is recommended that the following differential rates be applied.

The proposed model above increases the differential on industrial properties by 5% to 280% which
reduces the average residential rate increase to 1.54% keeping it close to the rate cap (1.50%). This
model also retains the decrease in commercial rates at 3.90% (this sector is probably weaker than
the industrial sector at present indicated by the level of valuation decreases in these sectors in 2021).

On this basis, it is recommended that the existing differential rating structures be amended to take
account of the impacts of the 2021 Council revaluation.

Proposal

That Council adopt the Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 in principle for the purposes of placing
on public exhibition and seeking community view.

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-2021 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘Imagine
2030'. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’

Opportunity

e  [eadership by the Council — The leading Council
Council Plan 2017-2021

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:

Opportunity

e  An open and effective Council
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Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications

The Revenue and Rating Plan has no direct financial implications for Council and does not amend
the overall amount of rate revenue to be raised by Council within the rate cap.

Consultation

Deliberative community engagement is not prescribed for a Revenue and Rating Plan in either the
Local Government Act 2020, or the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.
However, community engagement will be undertaken on Council’s Revenue and Rating Plan in
accordance with Council’'s Community Engagement Policy.

The Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 will be placed on public exhibition for the purposes of
inviting public submissions. Following the conclusion of the public consultation period and any
submissions received, the Revenue and Rating Plan will again be tabled for Council consideration
and adoption at the 28 June 2021 Council meeting.

Conclusion

The Revenue and Rating Plan replaces the previous rating strategy and pricing policy and contains
relatively few changes from the rating structure adopted at that point other than an increase in the
surcharge applied to industrial land amendments to the differential rate structure to mitigate movements
due to the revaluation. It is considered that this rating structure provides an equitable outcome for
the ratepayers of the City of Greater Dandenong.

Recommendation

That:
1. Council adopts in principle the Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 and then places
the proposed Plan on public exhibition for a period of 28 days, concluding on 26
May 2021; and
2. following consideration and hearing of any submissions received, Council considers

the proposed Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 for adoption at the Council meeting
to be held on 28 June 2021.
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MINUTE 146

Moved by: Cr Tim Dark
Seconded by: Cr Rhonda Garad

That:
1. Council adopts in principle the Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 and then places
the proposed Plan on public exhibition for a period of 28 days, concluding on 26
May 2021; and
2. following consideration and hearing of any submissions received, Council considers

the proposed Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 for adoption at the Council meeting
to be held on 28 June 2021.

CARRIED
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FINANCE AND STRATEGY

REVENUE AND RATING PLAN 2021-2025

ATTACHMENT 1

REVENUE AND RATING PLAN 2021 - 2025

PAGES 50 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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1. PURPOSE

The purpose of the Revenue and Rating Plan is to determine the most appropriate and affordable
revenue and rating approach for Council which, in conjunction with other income sources, will
adequately finance the objectives in the Council Plan.

The Local Government Act 2020 requires each Council to prepare a Revenue and Rating Plan to
cover a minimum period of four years following each Council election. The Revenue and Rating
Plan establishes the revenue raising framework within which the Council proposes to work.

This plan is an important part of Council’s integrated planning framework, all of which is created to
achieve our vision in the Imagine 2030 Community Plan.

Strategies outlined in this plan align with the objectives contained in the Council Plan and will feed
into our budgeting and long-term financial planning documents, as well as other strategic planning
documents under our Council’s strategic planning framework.

In an ideal world this plan would outline how Council will generate income to deliver on the Council
Plan, program and services and capital works commitments over a 4-year period. The reality is that
with capped rates and government grants representing over 80% of Councils income, Councils
ability to increase revenue to match expenditure requirements is limited. The Plan instead defines
the revenue and rating ‘envelope’ within which Council proposes to operate.

This plan will explain how the funding burden will be apportioned between ratepayers and other
users of Council facilities and services.

In particular, this plan will set out the decisions that Council has made in relation to rating options
available to it under the Local Government Act 2020 to ensure the fair and equitable distribution of
rates across property owners. It will also set out the robust principles and practices for fee and
charge setting and other revenue items to ensure Council’s commitment to responsible financial
management is achieved, while at the same time continuing to provide high quality, accessible
services to the community.
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It is also important to note that this plan does not set revenue targets for Council, it outlines the
strategic framework and decisions that inform how Council will go about calculating and collecting
its revenue.
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2. INTRODUCTION

The City of Greater Dandenong provides a number of services and facilities to our local

community, and in doing so, must collect revenue to cover the cost of providing these services and
facilities.

Council’s revenue sources include:

Rates and charges

Waste charges

Grants from other levels of Government

Statutory Fees and Fines

User Fees

Cash contributions from other parties (i.e. developers, community groups)
Sale of assets. (*)

Grants - operating
9%

Rates and charges
72%

Other income
9%

User fees,
statutory fees and
fines
9%

Contributions -
monetary
1%

Rates and charges are the most significant revenue source for Council and constitutes
approximately 72% of total revenue, with 9% of income from operating and capital grants, 9% of
raised through user fees, statutory fines and charges (based on actual results prior to COVID-19
and excludes non-monetary contributions).

(*) Sale of assets is a non-recurring source of income and does not form part of this revenue and rating plan

Page 5 of 48
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The introduction of rate capping under the Victorian Government’s rate capping legislation has
brought a renewed focus on Council’s long-term financial sustainability. Rate capping continues to
restrict Council’s ability to raise revenue above the rate cap unless application is made to the
Essential Services Commission for a variation. Maintaining service delivery levels and investing in
community assets remain key priorities for Council.

Council provides a wide range of services to the community, often for a fee or charge. The nature
of these fees and charges generally depends on whether they relate to statutory or discretionary
services. Some of these, such as statutory planning fees are set by State Government statute and
are commonly known as regulatory fees. In these cases, Council usually have no control over
service pricing. However, in relation to other services, Council has the ability to set a fee or charge
and will set that fee based on the principles outlined in this Revenue and Rating Plan.

Council revenue can also be adversely affected by changes to funding from other levels of
government. Some grants are tied to the delivery of council services, whilst many are tied directly
to the delivery of new community assets, such as roads or sports pavilions. It is important for
Council to be clear about what grants it intends to apply for, and the obligations that grants create
in the delivery of services or infrastructure.

Themes and strategic objectives of Council

The Revenue and Rating Plan is required to meet the objectives set out in the Council Plan.
Council needs to ensure the plan it adopts is capable of raising sufficient income to deliver the
three themes set out in the Council Plan.

e People

o A vibrant, connected and safe community

o A creative city that respects and embraces its diversity
e Place

0 A healthy, liveable and sustainable city

o A city planned for the future
e Opportunity

o Adiverse and growing economy

o An open and effective Council

NB: Council is currently undertaking a review of its Council Plan prior to 31 October 2021.
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3. RESPONSE TO THE OVERARCHING GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES OF
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2020

Section 9 of the Local Government Act 2020 states that a Council must in the performance of its
role give effect to the overarching governance principles. This Plan gives effect to these by:

. complying with the relevant law (section 9(a) of the Act);

. giving priority to achieving the best outcomes for the municipality, including future
generations (section 9b of the Act). This policy ensures that in relation to community
engagement practices, Council Officers are compliant, act with integrity and act in the best
interests of Council and the community.

. the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the municipal district, including
mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is promoted (section 9(c) of the Act). This
policy has no impact on the economic and social sustainability of Council but has
considered climate change and sustainability in its preparation (see section 13 of this

policy).

. innovation and continuous improvement have been pursued (section 9(e) of the Act). This
policy has provision for evaluation, monitoring and review (see section 10 of this policy).

. collaboration with other Councils and Governments and statutory bodies has been sought
(section 9(f) of the Act).

. transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is ensured by the enactment of

this policy (section 9(i) of the Act).

In giving effect to the overarching governance principles a Council must also consider the
principles and specific requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 relevant to the
development of a Revenue and Rating Plan. Key provisions are:

Section 89: Strategic Planning Principles
Section 93: Revenue and Rating Plan

Section 101: Financial Management Principles
Section 106: Service Performance Principles.

4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Deliberative community engagement is not prescribed for a Revenue and Rating Plan in either the
Local Government Act 2020, or the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.
However, community engagement will be undertaken on Council’s Revenue and Rating Plan in
accordance with the Community Engagement Policy.

The Revenue and Rating Plan outlines Council’'s decision-making process on how revenues are
calculated and collected. The following public consultation process will take place to ensure
consideration and feedback from relevant stakeholders:

e Proposed Revenue and Rating Plan prepared and endorsed in principle by Council at its
meeting in April.

e Proposed Revenue and Rating Plan placed on public exhibition for 28 days in conjunction with
the Budget calling for public submissions.

e Hearing of public submissions in May/June.

e Revenue and Rating Plan (with revisions) presented to June Council meeting for adoption.
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5. RATES AND CHARGES

At present the legislative provisions that outline rates and charges are still contained in the Local
Government Act 1989 pending a transition to the Local Government Act 2020

The selection of rating philosophies and the choice between the limited rating options available
under the Local Government Act 1989 is a difficult one for all Councils and it is most likely that a
perfect approach is almost impossible to achieve in any local government environment.

The purpose of plan is therefore to consider what rating options are available to Council under the
Local Government Act 1989, and how Council’s choices in applying these options contribute
towards meeting an equitable rating strategy.

It is important to note at the outset that the focus of this Plan is very different to that of the Long-
Term Financial Plan document/Annual Budget. In these latter documents the key concern is the
qguantum of rates required to be raised for Council to deliver the services and capital expenditure
required. In this Plan, the focus instead is on how the obligation to pay this quantum will be
equitably distributed amongst Council’s ratepayers.

Council rates are a property-based tax that allow Council to raise revenue to fund essential public
services and major initiatives to benefit the municipal population. The important feature of rates is
that they are a tax and not a fee for service.

Importantly, it is a taxation system that includes flexibility for councils to utilise different tools in its
rating structure to accommodate issues of equity and to ensure fairness in rating for all ratepayers.

Council has established a rating structure comprised of two key elements. These are:

e General rates — Based on values (using the Capital Improved Valuation methodology),
which is indicative of capacity to pay and form the central basis of rating under the Local
Government Act 1989.

e Fixed charges — a fixed service charge to recoup the full cost of waste services. A user
pays component for council services to reflect the benefits provided by Council who benefit
from the waste services. The charge is not capped under the Fair Go Rates System.

Striking a proper balance between these elements will help to improve equity in the distribution of
the rate burden across residents.

Council makes a further distinction when applying general rates by applying rating differentials
based on the purpose for which the property used. That is, whether the property is used for
residential, commercial/industrial, farming and vacant residential purposes. The distribution is
based on the concept that different property categories should pay a fair and equitable
contribution, taking into account the benefits those properties derive from the local community.

The City of Greater Dandenong rating structure comprises five differential rates (general,
commercial, industrial, farm and vacant residential land). These rates are structured in accordance
with the requirements of Section 161 ‘Differential Rates’ of the Local Government Act 1989 and the
Ministerial Guidelines for Differential Rating 2013.
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The differential rates are set as follows:

Residential (General) 100%
Commercial 190%

Industrial 280%

Residential — Vacant Land 150%
Farm 75%

The formula for calculating General Rates, excluding any additional charges, arrears or additional
supplementary rates is

o Property Valuation (Capital Improved Value) x Rate in the Dollar (Differential rate type)
The rate in the dollar for each rating differential is included into Council’s annual budget.

Rates and charges are an important source of revenue, accounting for approximately 72% of
operating revenue received by Council. The collection of rates is an important factor in funding
Council services.

Planning for future rate increases is therefore an essential component of the long-term financial
planning process and plays a significant role in funding both additional service delivery and the
increasing costs related to providing Council services.

Council is aware of the balance between rate revenue (as an important income source) and
community sensitivity to rate increases. With the introduction of the State Government's rate
capping legislation, all rate increases are capped to a rate declared by the Minister for Local
Government, which is announced in December for the following financial year

Council currently utilises a waste service charge to recoup the full cost of waste services including
collection, disposal, street sweeping, footpath sweeping, state government landfill levies, plus
street and drain litter collection. The waste service charge is not capped under the rate cap.

Council provided some rate exemptions (i.e. non-rateable properties) under provisions contained in
section 154(1) & (2) of the Local Government Act 1989. Exceptions include land owned by
Government, land used for public or municipal purposes, land used for charitable purpose (does
not include retail sale of goods or business for profit), the residence of a practicing Minister of
Religion, Mining and Forestry land, and defined Services Clubs.
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5.1 Rating Legislation

The legislative framework set out in the Local Government Act 1989 determines council’s ability to
develop a rating system.

Section 155 of the Local Government Act 1989 provides that a Council may declare the following
rates and charges on rateable land.

e General rates under Section 158

e Municipal charges under Section 159

e Service rates and charges under Section 162
e Special rates and charges under Section 163.

Council does not charge rate payers a municipal charge nor does Council currently apply any
special rates or charges.

The recommended strategy in relation to municipal charges, service rates and charges and special
rates and charges are discussed later in this document.

In raising Council rates, Council is required to primarily use the valuation of the rateable property to
levy rates. Section 157 (1) of the Local Government Act 1989 provides Council with three choices
in terms of which valuation base to utilise. They are: Site Valuation, Capital Improved Valuation
(CIV) and Net Annual Value (NAV).

The advantages and disadvantages of the respective valuation basis are discussed further in this
document. Whilst this document outlines Council’s strategy regarding rates revenue, rates data
will be contained in the Council’s Annual Budget as required by the Local Government Act 2020.

Section 94(2) of the Local Government Act 2020 states that Council must adopt a budget by 30 June
each year (or at another time fixed by the Minister) to include:

a) the total amount that the Council intends to raise by rates and charges;

b) a statement as to whether the rates will be raised by the application of a uniform rate or a
differential rate:

c) a description of any fixed component of the rates, if applicable;

d) if the Council proposes to declare a uniform rate, the matters specified in section 160 of the
Local Government Act 1989;

e) if the Council proposes to declare a differential rate for any land, the matters specified in
section 161(2) of the Local Government Act 1989;

Section 94(3) of the Local Government Act 2020 also states that Council must ensure that, if
applicable, the budget also contains a statement —

a) that the Council intends to apply for a special order to increase the Council’s average rate
cap for the financial year or any other financial year; or

b) that the Council has made an application to the ESC for a special order and is waiting for
the outcome of the application; or

c) that a special Order has been made in respect of the Council and specifying the average
rate cap that applies for the financial year or any other financial year.
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This plan outlines the principles and strategic framework Council will utilise in calculating and
distributing the rating burden to property owners, however, the quantum of rate revenue will be
determined in City of Greater Dandenong’s Budget.

In 2019 the Victorian State Government conducted a Local Government Rating System Review.
The Local Government Rating System Review Panel presented their final report and list of
recommendations to the Victorian Government in March 2020. The Victorian Government
subsequently published a response to the recommendations of the Panel’s report. However, at the
time of publication the recommended changes have not yet been implemented, and timelines to
make these changes have not been announced.

5.2 Rating Principles

Having determined that Council must review its rating strategy in terms of the equitable imposition
of rates and charges, it is a much more vexed question in terms of how to define and determine
what is in fact equitable in the view of Council.

When developing a rating strategy, with reference to differential rates, Council should consider the
following good practice taxation principles:

Wealth Tax

Equity

Efficiency

Simplicity

Benefit

Capacity to Pay

Diversity

Cross border competitiveness
Competitive neutrality.

Wealth Tax

The “wealth tax” principle implies that the rates paid are dependent upon the value of a ratepayer’s
real property and have no correlation to the individual ratepayer’s consumption of services or the
perceived benefits derived by individual ratepayers from the expenditures funded from rates.

Equity

Horizontal equity — ratepayers in similar situations should pay similar amounts of rates (ensured
mainly by accurate property valuations, undertaken in a consistent manner, their classification into
homogenous property classes and the right of appeal against valuation).

Vertical equity — those who are better off should pay more rates than those worse off (the rationale
applies for the use of progressive and proportional income taxation. It implies a “relativity”
dimension to the fairness of the tax burden).

Efficiency
Under this taxation principle, the levying of rates should ideally be carried out in a way that

minimises the impact that rates have on both residents and businesses decision making on what
choices they need to make in both conducting their normal business.
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Simplicity

How easily a rates system can be understood by ratepayers and the practicality and ease
of administration.

Benefit

The extent to which there is a nexus between consumption/benefit and the rate burden. (Noting
again that rates are a form of taxation and not a fee for service.

Capacity to Pay
The capacity of ratepayers or groups of ratepayers to pay rates.
Diversity

Cross-border competitiveness: to what extent does the rating system undermine the
competitiveness of Council as a place to live and/or own a property or operate a business? This
has relevance to Greater Dandenong given the disparity in our differential rating structure to
adjoining Councils.

Competitive neutrality: are all businesses conducting similar activities treated in similar ways
within the municipality?

Simultaneously applying all these taxation principles is an impossible task within the City of
Greater Dandenong environment and therefore trade-offs between these taxation principles are
necessary. The rating challenge for Council therefore is to determine the appropriate balancing of
competing considerations.

Plan recommendation

In annual considerations of the rating framework, Council will consider these competing taxation
principles in determining the most appropriate rating model to apply.
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6. DETERMINING WHICH VALUATION BASE TO USE

The Local Government Act 1989 and the Valuation of Land Act 1960 are the principle Acts in
determining property valuations. The purpose of this section is to outline the different methods that
Council can utilise to value land and the issues that Council must consider in making its decision
on the valuation method.

Under section 157 (1) of the Local Government Act 1989, Council has three options as to the
valuation base it elects to use. They are:

e Capital Improved value (CIV) — value of land and improvements upon the land;
e Site Value (SV) — value of land only;

e Net Annual Value (NAV) — rental valuation based on Capital improvement Value (CIV). For
residential and farm properties, NAV is calculated at 5 per cent of the CIV. For commercial
properties NAV is calculated as the greater of the estimated annual rental value or 5 per cent of
the CIV.

Capital Improved Value (CIV)

Capital Improved Value is the most commonly used valuation base by Victorian Local Government
with over 90% of Victorian Councils applying this methodology. Based on the value of both land
and all improvements on the land, it is generally easily understood by ratepayers as it equates to
the market value of the property.

Section 161 of the Local Government Act 1989 provides that a Council may raise any general rates
by application of a differential rate if:

a) It uses the capital improved value system of valuing land; and

b) It considers that a differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying out of
its functions.

The advantages of using Capital Improved Value (CIV)

e CIVincludes all property improvements, and hence is often supported on the basis that it more
closely reflects “capacity to pay”. The CIV rating method takes into account the full
development value of the property, and hence better meets the equity criteria than Site Value
and NAV.

e With the frequency of valuations now conducted annually (previously two-year intervals) the
market values are more predictable and has reduced the level of objections resulting from
valuations.

e The concept of the market value of property is more easily understood with CIV rather than
NAV or SV.

e Most councils in Victoria have now adopted CIV which makes it easier to compare relative
movements in rates and valuations across councils.

e The use of CIV allows councils to apply differential rates which greatly adds to council’s ability
to equitably distribute the rating burden based on ability to afford council rates. CIV allows
councils to apply higher rating differentials to the commercial and industrial sector that offset
residential rates.
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Disadvantages of using CIV

The main disadvantage with CIV is the fact that rates are based on the total property value which
may not necessarily reflect the income level of the property owner as with pensioners and low-
income earners.

Site value (SV)

Site Valuation differs to CIV in that it is based solely on the valuation of the land only and does not
include the improvements on the land.

With valuations based simply on the valuation of land and with only very limited ability to apply
differential rates, the implementation of Site Value would cause a massive shift in rate burden from
the industrial/commercial sectors onto the residential sector.

There would be further rating distribution movements away from modern townhouse style
developments on relatively small land parcels to older established homes on the more typical
quarter acre residential block.

In many ways it is difficult to see an equity argument being served by the implementation of Site
Value in the City of Greater Dandenong Council.

Advantages of Site Value

e There is a perception that under site value, a uniform rate would promote development of land,
particularly commercial and industrial developments. There is, however, little evidence to prove
that this is the case.

e Scope for possible concessions for urban farm-land and residential use land.

Disadvantages of using Site Value

e Under SV, there will be a significant shift from the industrial’commercial sector onto the
residential sector of council. The percentage increases in many cases would be in the extreme
range.

e SV is a major burden on property owners that have large areas of land. Some of these owners
may have much smaller/older dwellings compared to those who have smaller land areas but
well-developed dwellings - but will pay more in rates. A typical example is flats, units, or
townhouses which will all pay low rates compared to traditional housing styles.

e The use of SV can place pressure on council to give concessions to categories of landowners
on whom the rating burden is seen to fall disproportionately (e.g. Farm land and residential use
properties). Large landowners, such as farmers for example, are disadvantaged by the use of
site value.

e SV will reduce Council’s rating flexibility and options to deal with any rating inequities due to the
removal of the ability to levy differential rates.

e The community may have greater difficulty in understanding the SV valuation on their rate
notices, as indicated by many inquiries from ratepayers on this issue handled by council’s
customer service and property revenue staff each year.
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Net annual value (NAV)

NAYV is based on the rental value of a property. In practice for general residential properties and
farm rated properties the general assumption is that a rental return of 5% of the capital improved
valuation is made. This differs however for units and commercial and industrial properties where
the valuation is assessed on the actual market rental achieved on those properties.

Overall, the use of NAV is not largely supported. For residential and farm ratepayers, actual rental
values pose some problems. The artificial rental estimate used may not represent actual market
value, and means the base is the same as CIV but is harder to understand.

Recommended valuation base

The City of Greater Dandenong Council applies Capital Improved Valuation as the valuation base
for the following reasons:

e CIVis considered to be the closest approximation to an equitable basis for distribution of the
rating burden.

e CIV provides Council with the option to levy a full range of differential rates if required. Limited
differential rating is available under the other rating bases.

e It should be noted that most of the 79 Victorian Councils apply CIV as their rating base and as
such, it has a wider community acceptance and understanding than the other rating bases.

All three types of valuation method have a common basis in that rates are based on the property
value which may not necessarily reflect the annual income of the ratepayer for example pensioners
and low-income earners.

Plan recommendation

The City of Greater Dandenong Council applies Capital Improved Valuation as the valuation
methodology to levy Council rates.

Property Valuations

The Valuation of Land Act 1960 is the principle legislation in determining property valuations.
Under the Valuation of Land Act 1960, the Victorian Valuer-General conducts property valuations
on an annual basis. Greater Dandenong City Council applies a Capital Improved Value (CIV) to all
properties within the municipality to take into account the full development value of the property.
This basis of valuation takes into account the total market value of the land including buildings and
other improvements.

The value of land is always derived by the principal of valuing land for its highest and best use at
the relevant time of valuation
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How does this affect individual rates?

The general revaluation process enables Council to re-apportion the rate income across the
municipality in accordance with movements in property value. There is a common misconception
that if a property’s valuation rises then Council receives a “windfall gain” with additional income.
This is not so as the revaluation process results in a redistribution of the rate levied across all
properties in the municipality. Properties which have increased in value by more than the average
will receive a rate increase of more than the headline rate. Properties with an increase in value
less than the average will receive a rate increase less than the headline rate.

Date of valuations

All properties are valued with an effective date of 1 January for use by Council in the upcoming
rating year and are in force until 30 June the following year. Where something (other than market
fluctuations) has changed the property value, supplementary valuations must be performed
between general valuations and these may be performed at any time of year.

Supplementary Valuations

Supplementary valuations are carried out for a variety of reasons including rezoning, subdivisions,
amalgamations, renovations, new constructions, extensions, occupancy changes and corrections.
The Victorian Valuer-General is tasked with undertaking supplementary valuations and advises
council on a monthly basis of valuation and Australian Valuation Property Classification Code
(AVPCC) changes.

Supplementary valuations bring the value of the affected property into line with the

general valuation of other properties within the municipality. Objections to supplementary
valuations can be lodged in accordance with Part 3 of the Valuation of Land Act 1960. Any
objections must be lodged with Council within two months of the issue of the supplementary rate
notice.

Objections to property valuations

Part 3 of the Valuation of Land Act 1960 provides that a property owner may lodge an objection
against the valuation of a property or the Australian Valuation Property Classification Code
(AVPCC) within two months of the issue of the original or amended (supplementary) Rates and
Valuation Charges Notice (Rates Notice), or within four months if the notice was not originally
issued to the occupier of the land.

A property owner must lodge their objection to the valuation or the AVPCC in writing to

the Victorian City Council. Property owners also have the ability to object to the site valuations on
receipt of their Land Tax Assessment. Property owners can appeal their land valuation within two
months of receipt of their Council Rate Notice (via Council) or within two months of receipt of their
Land Tax Assessment (via the State Revenue Office).
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7. RATING DIFFERENTIALS

Greater Dandenong City Council has since its inception adopted differential rating as it considers
that differential rating contributes to the equitable distribution of the rating burden. Differential
rating allows particular classes of properties to be assessed rates at different levels from the
general rate set for the municipality. Differential rating allows Council to shift part of the rate
burden from some groups of ratepayers to others, through different “rates in the dollar” for each
class of property.

Under the Local Government Act 1989 (S161), Council is entitled to apply differential rates
provided it uses Capital Improved Valuations as its base for rating. The maximum differential
allowed is no more than four times the lowest differential.

Section 161 outlines the regulations relating to differential rates, which includes:

1. A Council may raise any general rates by the application of a differential rate, if Council
considers that the differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying out of
its functions.

2. If a Council declares a differential rate for any land, the Council must specify the objectives
of the differential rate, which must be consistent with the equitable and efficient carrying out
of the Councils functions and must include the following:

a) A definition of the types of classes of land which are subject to the rate and a
statement of the reasons for the use and level of that rate.

b) An identification of the type or classes of land which are subject to the rate in respect
of the uses, geographic location (other than location on the basis of whether or not
the land is within a specific ward in Council’s district).

c) Specify the characteristics of the land, which are the criteria for declaring the
differential rate.

Ministerial Guidelines released in April 2013 state that:

It is not appropriate to declare a differential rate that is defined narrowly and applied specifically
or exclusively to the following types and classes of land:

electronic gaming machine venues or casinos

liquor licensed venues or liquor outlet premises

business premises defined whole or in part by hours of trade

fast food franchises or premises

tree plantations in the farming and rural activity zones, and

land within the Urban Growth Zone without an approved Precinct Structure Plan in place.
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What differentials should be applied?

Council currently applies differential rating (versus uniform rating) and has five differential rates in
use. The below table and graph display the respective revenues from the various differential rates.
It highlights that 55 per cent of Council rate revenue is derived from Industrial and Commercial
sources.

Budget
2020-21 Total rates % rates

Type or class of land Number of Total CIV levied of total
assessments 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21

General (residential) 56,271 33,535,583,500 56,327,997 44%
Commercial 3,347  4,227,348,000 13,490,873 1%
Industrial 6,358 12,062,325,700 55,716,289 44%
Vacant residential 612 413,598,500 1,042,050 1%
Farm 55 343,568,000 432,805 0.3%
Total number of assessments 66,643 50,582,423,700 127,010,014 100%
Waste charges 22,438,420

Total rates and charges 22,438,420
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In terms of the differential rates that Council applies, the below table highlights the various
‘surcharges and discounts’ that were utilised in deriving the 2020-21 Council rates.

Budget Budget % to

Type or class of land 2020-21 2020-21 general rate
Number cents/$CIV 2020-21

General 56,271 0.0016796486 100%
Commercial 3,347 0.0031913324 190%
Industrial 6,358 0.0046190337 275%
Vacant residential 612 0.0025194729 150%
Farm 55 0.0012597365 75%
Total number of assessments 66,643

Council’s application of a 275 per cent surcharge against industrial properties is amongst the
highest of this type in Victoria. It is this surcharge however that allows Council to provide a low
residential rate which is essential given the lower socio-economic status of several areas of the
City of Greater Dandenong.

The table below highlights the differential rates currently applied by Greater Dandenong City
Council and the number of relevant assessments in each category (in 2020-21).

Budget Budget % to

Type or class of land 2020-21 2020-21 general rate
Number cents/$CIV 2020-21

General (residential) 56,271 0.0016796486

Commercial 3,347  0.0031913324 190%
Industrial 6,358  0.0046190337 275%
Vacant residential 612  0.0025194729 150%
Farm 55  0.0012597365 75%
Total number of assessments 66,643

In Greater Dandenong City Council, the average rates levied on a residential property is one of the
lowest in metropolitan Melbourne. This is helped by the fact that commercial and industrial
property groups combined raise the same quantum of rates as residential although the number of
residential assessments is nearly six times more than commercial and industrial sectors.

The farms contribute 0.3 per cent of the overall rates collected. They currently enjoy a 25 per cent
‘discount’ against the residential rate.

2933



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.2 Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 (Cont.)

7.1 General rates (residential)

This category, which has 56,271 assessments, includes all residential properties, including flats
and units which until recent years were rated under a separate differential. It contributes 44 per
cent of the total rates levied.

This strategy recommends that Council continue applying the general rate for all residential
properties, including flats and units.

7.2 Commercial
Greater Dandenong City Council has 3,347 commercial properties.

Commercial properties are defined as those selling a product or providing a service. These
properties are similar to industrial properties in respect that they are businesses providing
employment opportunities.

Currently there is a significant difference in the rate in the dollar between the developed
commercial and the developed industrial properties. Typically, commercial entities vary more in
size than industrial properties ranging from milk bar operations to major shopping centre retailers
and in many cases the capacity to pay higher rates in the commercial sector is marginal.

Council is a strong investor in the ongoing development of the commercial and industrial sectors
with operational costs within Greater Dandenong Business being approximately $4.1 million and
Council further investing in structure plans for various activity centres and strip shopping centres
beyond these funds.

7.3 Industrial

Council has 6,358 industrial developed properties. Industrial properties are those that are used for
the purposes of manufacturing. These properties which constitute 9.5 per cent of the total
assessments, contribute 44 per cent of the total rates raised.

It must also be acknowledged that Council has been required (and will over the next decade) to
invest heavily in the construction of infrastructure for industrial development which does not
typically apply in the commercial sector. The primary example of this is the Council contribution
towards the infrastructure development within the two Industrial Developer Contributions Plans
which over a 15 year period will exceed $20 million.

Council’s current industrial differential rate of 275 per cent is significantly higher than any similar
industrial surcharge in benchmark councils — with several metropolitan councils with minimal
industrial sector not applying any differential rate.

7.4 Residential — Vacant Land

Greater Dandenong City Council has 612 properties attracting the residential vacant land
differential which is currently 50 per cent higher than the general residential rate. The purpose of
this differential has been to encourage property owners to develop vacant land rather than land
bank it.
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7.5 Farm

Currently there are 55 farm properties contributing 0.3 per cent to the total rates raised. These
properties currently receive a ‘discount’ of 25 per cent against the general rate. One of the key
issues with the farm rate is the eligibility requirement to receive this discount. Currently to receive
the discount, a property must meet the definition of farmland under the Valuation of Land Act,
which requires the following:

. At least 2 hectares.
. Primarily used for agricultural production.
. Used by a business that has a significant or substantial commercial purpose, seeks to

make a profit on a continuous or repetitive basis or has a reasonable prospect of making a
profit from the agricultural business being undertaken.

Most farm properties are very high in value (median $4.61 million in 2020-21) and consequently
attract relatively high rates per assessment (average $5,807). There are currently 6 farm
properties that are within the area that is rezoned industrial and residential (Urban Growth
Boundary). This is a decreasing number as this land is being developed. The remaining 49 farm
properties are within the green wedge zone with ownership mixed between developers and
genuine farm interests.

Farming enterprises are also perceived as not receiving the same level of service that are received
by urban ratepayers as a result of their distance from urban infrastructure and services. Many rural
municipalities levy a farm rate and the average farm rate is approximately 80 per cent of the
general rate. Historically, councils were required to levy a farm rate which had to be lower than the
general rate however there is no longer this requirement in the Act.

Greater Dandenong City Council’s farm rate is currently 75 per cent of the general rate and the 25
per cent is comparable to the average farm rate discount provided across the State of 17 per cent.

Council believes each differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying out of
council functions. Details of objectives of each differential rate, the classes of land which are
subject to each differential rate and the uses of each differential rate are set out on the following
pages.

7.6 Application of differential rates

Greater Dandenong City Council currently has a far more active approach to the use of differential

rating than any other Victorian Council. The below summary outlines the respective advantages

and disadvantages of this approach.

Advantages of differential rating

The perceived advantages of utilising a differential rating system are:

. There is greater flexibility to distribute the rate burden between all classes of property, and
therefore link rates with the ability to pay and reflecting the tax deductibility of rates for

commercial and industrial premises.

. Differential rating allows Council to better reflect the investment required by Council to
establish infrastructure to meet the needs of the commercial and industrial sector.
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. Enables Council to encourage developments through its rating approach (e.g. encourage
building on vacant blocks).

. Allows Council to reflect the unique circumstances of some rating categories where the
application of a uniform rate may create an inequitable outcome (e.g. Farming enterprises).

. Allows Council discretion in the imposition of rates to ‘facilitate and encourage appropriate
development of its municipal district in the best interest of the community’.

Disadvantages of differential rating
The perceived disadvantages in applying differential rating are:

. The justification of the differential rate can at times be difficult for the various rating groups to
accept giving rise to queries, objections and complaints where the differentials may seem to
be excessive.

. Differential rates can be confusing to ratepayers, as they may have difficulty to understand
the system. Some rating categories may feel they are unfavourably treated because they
are paying a higher level of rates than other ratepayer groups.

. Differential rating involves a degree of administrative complexity as properties continually
shift from one type to another (e.g. residential to commercial, vacant to developed)
requiring Council to update its records. Ensuring the accuracy/integrity of Council’s data
base is critical to ensure that properties are correctly classified into their differential rate
category.

. Council may not achieve the objectives it aims for through differential rating. For example,

Council may set its differential rate objectives to levy a higher rate on land not developed,
however it is uncertain as to whether the differential rate achieves those objectives.

Plan recommendations

1. That Greater Dandenong City Council continues to apply differential rating as its rating
system.

2. That Council continues to apply a uniform general rate for all residential properties, including
flats and units.

3. That Council continues to apply a Commercial and Industrial differential rate.
4. That Council continues to apply a Vacant Residential Land differential rate at a surcharge.

5. That Council continues to apply a discount to Farm Rated properties.
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7.7 Differential Rate Objectives

In applying the differential rating framework, Council sets out the following objectives for each
differential rate.

GENEARAL (Residential)

Objective:

To ensure that all rateable land makes an equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out
the functions of Council, including the:

1. Construction and maintenance of public infrastructure.

2. Development and provision of health and community services.

3. Provision of general support services.

4. Requirement to ensure that Council has adequate funding to undertake it's strategic,

statutory, and service provision obligations.

Types and classes:

Any land which does not have the characteristics of Commercial, Industrial, Residential Vacant or
Farm Land.

Use and level of differential rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council. The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary
to achieve the objectives specified above.

Geographic location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.

Use of land:

Any use permitted under the relevant Planning Scheme.

Planning scheme zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings:

All buildings which are now constructed on the land or which are constructed prior to the end of the
financial year.
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COMMERCIAL LAND

The Commercial rate is to promote economic development objectives for the City including the
retail development of the Dandenong, Springvale and Noble Park Activity Centre’s and the ongoing
development of strip shopping centres.

The City of Greater Dandenong has a strong focus on business activities within this Council and
has formulated a division of Council focused on the ongoing development of commercial and
industrial sectors. This unit has an operational spend of approximately $4.1 million in 2020-21.

The commercial differential rate further reflects the taxation benefit enjoyed by the commercial
sector in that commercial rates are tax deductible.

Taxation principles

Whilst the City of Greater Dandenong is a strong investor in the growth of the commercial sector
(benefit principle), the key taxation principle applied by this differential rate is the relative capacity
to pay of this sector, acknowledging both the taxation benefit allowed to commercial properties and
the relatively lower capacity to pay by the residential sector of Council.

Whilst the higher differential does impact on cross border competitiveness, this is offset to some

extent by the level of Council investment in the sector.

Objective:

To ensure that all rateable land makes an equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out
the functions of Council, including the:

1. Construction and maintenance of public infrastructure related to the commercial sector.

2. Enhancement of the economic viability of the commercial sector through targeted programs
and projects.

3. Encouragement of employment opportunities.
4. Promotion of economic development.
5. Requirement to ensure that streetscaping and promotional activity is complementary to the

achievement of commercial objectives.

Types and classes:
Any land which is primarily used for commercial purposes.

Use and level of differential rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council. The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary
to achieve the objectives specified above.

Geographic location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.
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Use of land:
Any use permitted under the relevant Planning Scheme.

Planning scheme zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings:

All buildings which are now constructed on the land or which are constructed prior to the end of the
financial year.

2939



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.2 Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 (Cont.)

INDUSTRIAL LAND

The Industrial rate is to promote economic development objectives for the municipality including
industrial development in appropriately zoned areas.

The City of Greater Dandenong has a strong and growing industrial sector that has high demands
for new infrastructure and one which creates a high level of stress on existing infrastructure.
Council has provided significant capital funding for industrial infrastructure in the past and it is
noteworthy will contribute in excess of $20 million as part of Council’s contribution to the two
industrial development contribution plans in Council’s south.

The City of Greater Dandenong has a strong focus on business activities within this Council and
has formulated a division of Council focused on the ongoing development of commercial and
industrial sectors. This unit has an operational spend of approximately $4.1 million in 2020-21.

The industrial differential rate further reflects the taxation benefit enjoyed by the commercial sector
in that commercial rates are tax deductible

The industrial differential rate will be part of a rating system which maintains, as far as possible, the
current rates burden on industrial properties given the tax deductibility of rates for businesses and
the extent of use of the city infrastructure by industry, especially the road network.

Taxation principles

Whilst the City of Greater Dandenong is a strong investor in the growth of the industrial sector
(benefit principle), the key taxation principle applied by this differential rate is the relative capacity
to pay of this sector, acknowledging both the taxation benefit allowed to industrial properties and
the relatively lower capacity to pay by the residential sector of Council.

Whilst the higher differential does impact on cross border competitiveness, this is offset to some
extent by the level of Council investment in the sector.

Objective:

To ensure that all rateable land makes an equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out
the functions of Council, including the:

1. Construction and maintenance of public infrastructure related to the industrial sector.

2. Enhancement of the economic viability of the industrial sector through targeted programs and
projects.

3. Encouragement of employment opportunities.

4. Promotion of economic development.

5. Requirement to ensure that street scaping and promotional activity is complementary to the

achievement of industrial objectives.
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Types and classes:
Any land which is used primarily for industrial purposes.

Use and level of differential rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council. The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary
to achieve the objectives specified above.

Geographic location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.

Use of land:

Any use permitted under the relevant Planning Scheme.

Planning scheme zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings:

All buildings which are now constructed on the land or which are constructed prior to the end of the
financial year.
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RESIDENTIAL VACANT LAND

The residential vacant land rate is to promote housing development objectives for the municipality
including the development of vacant land in residential zoned areas.

Taxation principles

The taxation principle applied in this differential is the efficiency principle where Council is
endeavouring to discourage the banking of residential land and provide a financial incentive for its
development.

Objective:

To provide an economic incentive for the development of residential vacant land and a disincentive
for residential land-banking in order that all rateable land makes an equitable contribution to the cost
of carrying out the functions of Council, including the:

1. Construction and maintenance of public infrastructure.

2. Development and provision of health and community services.

3. Provision of general support services.

4. Requirement to ensure that Council has adequate funding to undertake its strategic,

statutory, and service provision obligations.

Types and classes:

Any land which is vacant residential land.

Use and level of differential rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council. The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary
to achieve the objectives specified above.

Geographic location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.

Use of land:

Any use permitted under the relevant Planning Scheme.

Planning scheme zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.
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FARM LAND

The main objectives of having a farm rate are:

. To promote and support the use of sound agricultural practices.
. To conserve and protect areas which are suited to certain agricultural pursuits.
. To encourage proper land use consistent with genuine farming activities.

Taxation principles

The key taxation principle applied with this rating differential is one of capacity to pay. Council has
just 55 farm properties which are typically either just within or just beyond the urban growth
boundary leading to high valuations for the respective use of the land. The farm differential applied
reflects the high level of rates applied to land which is used for agricultural rather than development
purposes.

Objective:

To provide a financial subsidy to rateable farm land to ensure that all rateable land makes an
equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out the functions of Council, including the:

1. Construction and maintenance of public infrastructure.

2. Development and provision of health and community services.

3. Provision of general support services.

4. Requirement to ensure that Council has adequate funding to undertake its strategic,

statutory, and service provision obligations.

Types and classes:

Any land which is primarily used for the purposes of farming.

Use and level of differential rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council. The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary
to achieve the objectives specified above.

Geographic location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.

Use of land:

Any use permitted under the relevant Planning Scheme.

Planning scheme zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings:

Not applicable.
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7.8 Understanding the impact of general revaluations

Amendments to the Valuation of Land Act 1960 mean that from 1 July 2018, the Valuer-General
became the valuation authority for annual valuations of all land in Victoria for council rates and the
fire services property levy. Each year, all rateable properties are revalued with a valuation date of

1 January.

A revaluation does NOT provide Council with any additional rate revenue but can significantly re-
align how rates are distributed between ratepayers at both a rating group and individual level.

The below table highlights the impact of the 2021 Council revaluation.

Forecast
2020-21

Revaluation
CIvV

$'000
33,787,898

Type or class of land

General

Commercial 4,252,109
Industrial 12,204,198
Vacant residential 383,549
Farm 344,014
Total value of land 50,971,767

New
2021-22

Revaluation Movement in

CIv valuations
$'000 %

33,388,945 -1.18%
3,976,701 -6.48%
11,970,519 -1.91%
394,343 2.81%
369,435 7.39%
50,099,942 -1.71%

The table highlights that overall Council properties have decreased by 1.71 per cent over the past
year (1 January 2020 to 1 January 2021). Residential, commercial and industrial valuations have
all experienced a decrease. Farm and residential vacant valuations, on the other hand, have

increased from the prior year by 7.39% and 2.81% respectively.

Council needs to be mindful of the impacts of revaluations on the various property types in
implementing the differential rating strategy outlined in the previous section to ensure that rises
and falls in Council rates remain affordable and that rating ‘shocks’ are mitigated to some degree.

By way of example the table below highlights the rating impact on the various rating types should
Council retain the current rate differential structure (outcomes are based on the proposed annual

increase in rates of 1.50 per cent in 2021-22).

Type or class of land

General
Commercial
Industrial

Vacant residential
Farm

Total value of land

Proposed
Rates % increase
2021-22 2020-21 to
$'000 2021-22
58,088 2.35%
13,145 -3.13%
57,270 1.59%
1,029 6.49%
482 11.23%
130,014 1.50%
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As shown in the table the rating experiences between rating groups is reasonably dynamic with
residential properties on average increasing by 2.35 per cent and farm properties increasing by 11.23
per cent. The commercial sector has been the weakest experiencing a decrease of 3.13%.

This disparity in the valuation movements means that unless Council adjusts its differential rating
structure, residential rates would increase by an average of 2.35%.

On this basis, it is recommended that the following differential rates be applied.

Existing Proposed
rating rating % increase
Type or class of land differential differential 2020-21 to
2020-21 2021-22 2021-22
General (residential) 100% 100% 1.54%
Commercial 190% 190% -3.90%
Industrial 275% 280% 2.62%
Vacant residential 150% 150% 5.65%
Farm 75% 75% 10.35%
Total 1.50%

The proposed model above increases the differential on industrial properties by 5% to 280% which
reduces the average residential rate increase to 1.54% keeping it close to the rate cap (1.50%).
This model also retains the decrease in commercial rates at 3.90% (this sector is probably weaker
than the industrial sector at present indicated by the level of valuation decreases in these sectors
in 2021).

On this basis, it is recommended that the existing differential rating structures be amended to take
account of the impacts of the 2021 Council revaluation.

Revenue and Rating Plan recommendation

1. That Council notes the amendment to the Industrial differential from a surcharge of 275 per
cent to a surcharge of 280 per cent in order to mitigate the impacts of the 2021 Council revaluation
on the residential sector.

2. That Council annually reviews its differential rating structure, taking account of the annual
impact of revaluations and including the equitable application of taxation principles.
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8. OTHER TYPES OF CHARGES

8.1 Special rates and charges

Special rates and charges are covered under Section 163 of the Local Government Act, which
enables Council to declare a special rate or charge or a combination of both for the purposes of:

. Defraying any expenses, or

. Repaying with interest any advance made or debt incurred, or loan raised by Council.

In relation to the performance of a function or the exercise of a power of the Council, if the Council
considers that the performance of the function or the exercise of the power is or will be of special
benefit to the persons required to pay the special rate or special charge.

There are detailed procedural requirements that Council needs to follow to introduce a special rate
or charge, including how Council can apply funds derived from this source.

Section 185 of the Local Government Act provides appeal rights to the Victorian Civil and
Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) in relation to the imposition of a special rate or charge. VCAT has
wide powers, which could affect the viability of the special rate or charge. It can set the rate or
charge completely aside if it is satisfied that certain criteria are met.

Council should be particularly mindful of the issue of proving that special benefit exists to those
that are being levied the rate or charge.

In summary, differential rates are much simpler to introduce and less subject to challenge. There
may be instances, however, where a special charge is desirable if raising the levy by use of CIV is
not equitable.

It is recommended that Council utilises special rates and charges only in the instances outlined
below.

Plan recommendations

That Council use special rates and charges in instances that fit the following circumstances:
e Funding of narrowly defined capital projects (e.g. streetscape works, private road sealing)
where special benefit can be shown to exist to a grouping of property owners.

e Raising funds for a dedicated purpose where the use of CIV is not the most equitable
method of calculating property owner contributions.

In circumstances outside of the above two scenarios, Council will use differential rating to achieve
its objectives.
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8.2 Municipal charge

Another principle rating option available to Councils is the application of a municipal charge. Under
Section 159 of the Local Government Act (1989), Council may declare a municipal charge to cover
some of the administrative costs of the Council. The legislation is not definitive on what comprises
administrative costs and does not require Council to specify what is covered by the charge.

A Council’s total revenue from a municipal charge in a financial year must not exceed 20 per cent
of the combined sum of the Council’s total revenue from the municipal charge and the revenue
from general rates.

The application of a municipal charge represents a choice to raise a portion of the rates by a flat
fee for all properties, rather than sole use of the CIV valuation method. In applying the legislation,
the maximum amount that Greater Dandenong City Council could levy as a municipal charge
would be approximately $381 per assessment based upon the current rates (2020-21).

The arguments in favour of a municipal charge are similar to waste charges. They apply equally to
all properties and are based upon the recovery of a fixed cost of providing administrative services
irrespective of valuation. The same contribution amount per assessment to cover a portion of
Council’'s administrative costs be an equitable method of recovering these costs.

The argument against a municipal charge is that this charge is regressive in nature and would
result in lower valued properties paying higher overall rates and charges than they do at present.
The equity objective in levying rates against property values is lost in a municipal charge as it is
levied uniformly across all assessments.

For this reason, this strategy recommends that Council continue to not apply a Municipal Charge.

Revenue and Rating Plan recommendation

That Council not utilise a Municipal Charge as part of its rating plan.
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8.3 Service rates and charges

Section 162 of the Local Government Act (1989) provides Council with the opportunity to raise
service rates and charges for any of the following services:

a) The provision of a water supply.

b) The collection and disposal of refuse.
c) The provision of sewerage services.
d) Any other prescribed service.

Greater Dandenong City Council currently applies a service charge for the collection and disposal
of refuse on properties that fall within the collection area. Council retains the objective of setting
the service charge for waste at a level that fully recovers the cost of the waste function.

The advantages of the waste charge are that it is readily understood and accepted by residents as
a fee for a direct service that they receive. It further provides equity in the rating system in that all
residents who receive the same service level all pay an equivalent amount.

The disadvantage of the waste service charge is like the municipal charge in that it is regressive in
nature. A fixed charge to a low valued property comprises a far greater proportion of the overall
rates than it does to a more highly valued property.

On balance, however, it is recommended that Council retain the existing waste service charge.
Unlike a municipal charge where the direct benefit to the resident is invisible — the waste charge is
a tangible service that is provided directly to all in the same fashion.

Should Council elect not to have a waste service charge, this same amount would be required to
be raised by way of an increased general rate — meaning that residents in higher valued properties
would substantially pay for the waste service of lower valued properties. Whilst this same principle
applies for rates in general, the mix of having a single fixed charge combined with valuation driven
rates for the remainder of the rate invoice provides a balanced and equitable outcome.

It should further be noted that should Council elect not to have a Service Charge and to recover
this amount via general rates, this would need to be approved via an application to exceed the rate
cap in Councils general rate increase.

Council residents are offered multiple choices regarding their waste service. Residents can elect
various bin options and sizes and have a choice between six different service options — each with a
differing price value.

Revenue and Rating Plan recommendation

That Council continues to apply a waste service charge as part of its rating strategy based on full
cost recovery of the waste function.
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8.4 Maintenance levies

In 2006, Council entered into a Section 173 agreement in respect of new subdivisions proposed in
Keysborough South. The estates would be built with an open space component of 20 per cent
(compared to the traditional 5 per cent) and be established and maintained at a high level of
quality.

In return, the developer would maintain the open space for an initial period of three years before
handing this responsibility to Council. As a key component of the Section 173 agreement, the
developer (and each successive owner of respective allotments) would also pay to Council an
amount of $350 per year as a maintenance levy on each allotment. This levy was to remain fixed
for three years and could then, at Council’s election, be increased by CPI.

The 2006 development which represented Stage 1 has subsequently been followed by Stages 2
and 3 which have matching Section 173 agreements signed in late 2011.

In 2020-21, there are now approximately 4,577 assessments that are paying the $350 levy, raising
revenue of $1.6 million. It is unknown what the final amount of assessments will be when the
developments are fully completed but this revenue is now reaching its peak.

As from 2011-12, all revenue received is being placed in the Keysborough Maintenance Levy
Reserve fund. Prior to this point, the funds were not reserved and were expended on both
operational costs and as a funding source for the capital development of Tatterson Reserve.

It should also Council continues to assume responsibility for the maintenance of some of the later
stages as the initial three-year maintenance period expires and therefore Councils expenditure in
this area is continuing to grow year on year.

At present the estimated cost in 2020-21 for operational maintenance is $2.08 million. Of this
amount, 75 per cent is then funded by a transfer from the Reserve fund ($1.56 million), which
represents the excess amount of Open Space over the traditional estate of 5 per cent.

With the growth in costs and Councils decision to elect to not index the Maintenance Levy since its
inception the current level of Reserve funds are expected to be depleted in the coming five-year
period requiring Council general rates to pay for a greater share of this increased open space.

The below table highlights that the current reserve level of $1.7 million is expected to be fully
consumed by 2027-28 with Council rates then picking up an increasing share of the expenditure
burden to maintain this area.

Financial Plan Projections

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Keysborough maintenance levy

Opening balance 1,732 1,648 1,501 1,330 1,113 779 405 0 0 0

Income from levy 1,620 1,645 1,670 1,695 1,695 1,695 1,695 1,695 1,695 1,695
Expenditure on open space (1,704)  (1,792)  (1,841)  (1,912)  (2,029) (2,089) (2,111) (2,153)  (2,196)  (2,240)
Closing balance 1,648 1,501 1,330 1,113 779 405 0 0 0 0
Expenditure funded from rates 0 0 0 0 0 0 (11) (458) (501) (545)
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What are respective arguments in favour of retaining or discontinuing the levy?

The arguments in favour of retaining the maintenance levy are essentially:

e The residents of this area receive a significantly higher service level and recreational assets
with 20 per cent open space compared to 5 per cent in other areas of Council.

* Residents were aware of the maintenance levy at the point of purchase of their allotments.

e The increased open space (and quality) comes with an attached financial obligation for
Council to fund — and it would be inequitable for Council to make all ratepayers pay for this
service level.

e Wihilst it is argued that all residents can access these areas, it would be a very small number
of residents — other than those living in these areas — that would avail themselves of this
opportunity.

e  Whilst the costs are reasonably low at this point, they will increase very significantly in the next
three years. Should Council elect to discontinue the levy at this point, the additional
expenditure amount would need to be funded from general rates — noting that Council cannot
increase rates under the current rate capped regime without first receiving a variation approval
from the ESC.

The arguments put forward in terms of discontinuing the levy are based around the following:
e The concept of the open space being available to all to access.

e The concern that many of these residents are already paying quite high levels of Council rates
because their valuations are so much higher than the average residential valuation with City of
Greater Dandenong.

In terms of this latter point, the average residential rates raised by the City of Greater Dandenong
are below the average of benchmark councils. But it also needs to be kept in mind that our
average residential valuation in 2020 was $600,000 and this is also below that of adjoining
municipalities. The average valuation of all properties paying the maintenance levy is $867,000
(2020 valuation).

Revenue and Rating Plan recommendation

That Council continues to utilise maintenance levies where open space amenity provided by
developers exceeds the standard level of 5 per cent and where Council is required to accept
responsibility for the ongoing maintenance of these areas. Further that maintenance levies be
based on transparent recording and communication to residents on revenue inflows and how
these funds are expended.
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8.5 Victorian Government Levies

In recent years, Council has seen an increased propensity for State Government to view Local
Government as a means of collecting State taxes under the branding of Council’s rate notice.

This occurred with the now defunct State Deficit Levy in the 1990’s and has in recent times been
revived with Councils as the landfill levy with Councils having to collect this amount from
ratepayers (which for Greater Dandenong is contained in the waste charge) and paid to the landfill
operator who pays the levy to the State Government.

Council is also required to collect a Fire Services Property Levey (FSPL) on behalf of the State
Government which has added a considerable amount to the average ratepayer’s account.

In 2016 the Victorian State Government passed legislation requiring the Fire Services Property
Levy to be collected from ratepayers. Previously this was collected through building and property
insurance premiums. The Fire Services Property Levy helps fund the services provided by the
Metropolitan Fire Brigade (MFB) and Country Fire Authority (CFA), and all levies collected by
Council are passed through to the State Government, on a quarterly basis. This levy is not
included in the rate cap and increases in the levy are at the discretion of the State Government.

Revenue and Rating Plan recommendation

It is recommended from a rating policy outcome that Council adopt the following view:

a) That the Victorian Government taxes are best collected by the Victorian Government using its
own available resources such as the State Revenue Office.

b) That in the event that Council is required to collect such Victorian Government taxes that
these taxes be clearly identified as state charges.

That the Victorian Government fully reimburse local government for the cost of collecting state
taxes
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8.6 Cultural and recreational lands (CRL)

The Cultural and Recreational Lands Act 1963 (CRLA) provides that an amount be payable in lieu
of rates in each year in respect of any “recreational lands” which would otherwise be rateable land
under the Act.

Section 2 of the CRLA relevantly defines "recreational lands" (i.e. CRL properties) as lands which
are:

e vested in or occupied by any body corporate or unincorporated body which exists for the
purpose of providing or promoting cultural or sporting recreational or similar facilities or
objectives and which applies its profits in promoting its objects and prohibits the payment of
any dividend or amount to its members; and

e used for outdoor sporting recreational or cultural purposes or similar outdoor activities; or
e used primarily as agricultural showgrounds

Under the CRLA, provision is made for a Council to effectively grant a rating concession to the
holder of any “recreational lands” which meet the test of being “rateable land” under the Act. At the
time of adopting the Plan there are 23 properties which are “recreational lands” under the CRLA,
being:

Council remains open to considering whether other properties in its municipal district are eligible
CRL properties and will assess those other properties as and when the need arises.

Determining eligibility and charge

Council will declare the rate equivalent amount for properties which have been identified as CRL
properties” in accordance with Section 4 of the CRLA. The CRLA provides that “an amount be
payable in lieu of rates in each year being such amount as the municipal council thinks reasonable
having regard to the services provided in relation to such lands and having regard to the benefit
to the community derived from such recreational lands”.

The types of “Services provided to the land”. Unlike most other properties, CRL properties do not
benefit from some of the services provided by the Council. A review of Council services has been
conducted to assess the type of services currently being ‘used’ by the CRL properties and it would
be reasonable to assume that the following services provided to them are very similar or common:

Road & Drainage Maintenance;
Street Lighting;

Street Signage;

Car park/off street car parking.

The amount of the “Community Benefit provided by the land”. In response to
surveys/questionnaires return by eligible properties, Council has identified the following potential
community benefits:

Social interaction;
Sporting programs;
Coaching opportunities;
Cultural promotion;
Environmental benefits;
Subsidised entry fees;
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Provision of premises;

Charitable donations;

Employment opportunities;

Community Development/Meeting Places.

Whilst the eligible properties clearly provide a benefit to the community, quantifying the level of
benefit can be complicated. These organisations own and exclusively occupy valuable parcels of
land, some with substantial improvements, and if rated in the normal fashion, would be liable for a
significant rate burden relative to the activity carried out. The exclusive occupation of CRL
properties also restricts, at least to an extent, the accessibility of these CRL properties for the
broader community.

Equally, activities undertaken by some of these organisations complement the broader range of
community facilities provided by Greater Dandenong for the community. They can often add to the
aesthetic values of Greater Dandenong and contribute to the character and natural environment.

All CRL properties will be liable to pay Fire Services Property Levy.
Consultation and appeals

Written submissions about the calculation and determination of the rate equivalent amounts can be
submitted by the owners of CRL properties. Property owners can also make verbal submissions to
Council. The CRLA also provides for owners to appeal to the Minister, under Section 4(2) of the
CRLA.

Revenue and Rating Plan recommendation

It is recommended that Council declares a rate equivalent payment calculated by having regard
to the services provided to the identified CRL properties and the benefit to the community derived
from them, at the times and in the manner prescribed by the CRLA.
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9. COLLECTION AND ADMINISTRATION OF RATES AND CHARGES

9.1 Rate payment options

The purpose of this section is to outline the rate payment options, processes and the support
provided to ratepayers facing financial hardship. The comments in this section are subject to
changes that may be implemented with the transition of the rating provisions from the Local
Government Act 1989 to the Local Government Act 2020 which may require Council to offer a
lump sum payment option in February of each year.

Ratepayers currently have the following options of paying rates and charges:

e Payment of rates is available by four instalments. Payments are due on the rescripted dates
below unless the date falls on a weekend or public holiday, in which case the due date will be
the next business day.

o 1stInstalment: 30 September
o 2" |nstalment: 30 November
o 3"Instalment: 28 February
o 4" nstalment: 31 May

* Ratepayers can elect to have their savings or cheque accounts debited automatically monthly
for rate payments.

e Ratepayers also have the option of paying by nine instalments (direct debit only). The first
instalment is due by 30 September 2020 with the second and ninth instalments due at the end
of each month until 31 May 2021. Residents must elect to pay the nine instalments via direct
debit if established by 28 August.

e Where rates are not paid in full by the due instalment date Council is authorised to charge
penalty interest on outstanding amounts at the penalty interest rate which is set by the state
government and reviewed annually. The interest rate is 10% for 2020-21.

These various options available at the City of Greater Dandenong provide a satisfactory level of
collection of rates across the financial year and hence assist Council to maintain its cash flow.

Revenue and Rating Plan recommendation

That the City of Greater Dandenong continues to provide the current range of rate payment
options in future years.

9.2 Pensioner Concessions

Holders of a Centrelink or Veteran Affairs Pension Concession card or a Veteran Affairs Gold card
which stipulates TPI, War Widow, EDA or POW may claim a rebate on their sole or principal place
of residence.

Upon initial application, ongoing eligibility is maintained, unless rejected by Centrelink or the
Department of Veteran Affairs during the annual verification procedure. Upon confirmation of an
eligible pensioner concession status, the pensioner rebate is deducted from the rate account
before payment is required by the ratepayer.

2954



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.2 Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 (Cont.)

With regards to new applicants, after being granted a Pensioner Concession Card (PCC),
pensioners can then apply for the rebate at any time throughout the rating year. Retrospective
claims up to a maximum of one previous financial year can be approved by Council on verification
of eligibility criteria, for periods prior to these claims may be approved by the relevant government
department.

The Victorian Government-funded rebate provided under the Municipal Rates Concession Scheme
was 50% reduction on Council rates up to a yearly maximum of $241.00 for 2020-21.

9.3 Interest on rate arrears and overdue rates

Interest is charged on all overdue rates and charges in accordance with Section 172 of the Local
Government Act 1989, namely:

a. if the payment was payable in instalments only, on and from the date on which the missed
instalment was due.

b. The interest is calculated at the rate fixed under section 2 of the Penalty Interest Rates Act
1983. Interest on late payments is currently charged at 10% p.a.

c. The penalty interest rate applied to rates and charges debts of those ratepayers eligible for the
pensioner rate rebate and suffering financial hardship be determined each year during
Council's Annual Budget process.

9.4 Rates and Charges Deferment and Hardship Policy

Council recognises managing financial hardship is a shared responsibility. Sections 170, 171 and
171A of the Local Government Act 1989 give Council the power to defer and / or waive in whole or
part the payment of rates and charges if Council determines the enforcement of the requirement to
pay would cause hardship to the ratepayer.

Council has a Rates and Charges Hardship Policy in place to aid ratepayers having trouble in
paying their rates and charges. The policy is to enable a person liable for rates and charges and
experiencing hardship, to make application to Council for assistance relating to rates and charges
levied on a property under the Local Government Act 1989.

The Policy also provides Council officers a framework to provide financial relief to ratepayers who
need assistance and to ensure all applications are treated consistently, sensitively and
confidentially while ensuring other ratepayers are not disadvantaged by the granting of
inappropriate relief from Council. It should be noted that Council is one of very few Councils that
has a formal process in place to waive rates up to a maximum of $500.00

Greater Dandenong Rates and Charges Hardship Policy establishes Council policy in relation to:

Management of the payment of rates and charges by special arrangement;
Applications to defer payment of rates and charges;

Applications to have rates and charges waived; and

Levying of penalty interest on outstanding rates and charges.

The difference between a waiver and a deferral is that a deferral suspends payment for a period of
time whereas a waiver permanently exempts payment of the fee or charge under discussion.
Applications for waiver and deferral will be individually assessed against the criteria stated in the
Rates and Charges Hardship Policy. In extreme cases Council may waive interest or rate, subject
to sighting proof of financial hardship from certified financial counsellors.
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The application of fairness as a principle also applies to recognising the impact of unpaid rates on
those who have paid their rates in full.

The timely collection of rates and charges ensures adequate revenue for the provision of council
services and planned capital works projects provided by Council for the community.

It should be noted that this area is currently the subject of a review by the Victorian Ombudsman
and Council will review the findings of that report and consider further improvements to its Rates
Hardship Policy.

9.5 Debt recovery

Council makes every effort to contact ratepayers at their correct address, but it is the ratepayers’
responsibility to properly advise Council of their contact details. The Local Government Act 1989
Section 230 and 231 requires both the vendor and buyer of property, or their agents (e.g. solicitors
and or conveyancers), to notify Council by way of notice of disposition or acquisition of an interest
in land.

If an account becomes overdue, Council will issue an overdue reminder notice which will include
accrued penalty interest. Other than the annual valuation and rate notice, at least five reminder
notices are issued before considering legal action. If the account remains unpaid, Council may
take legal action without further notice to recover the overdue amount. All fees and court costs
incurred will be recoverable from the ratepayer.

If an amount payable by way of rates in respect to land has been in arrears for three years or
more, Council may take action to sell the property in accordance with the Local Government Act
1989 Section 181.

Revenue and Rating Plan recommendation

1. That the City of Greater Dandenong continues to maintain the rates arrangements, deferral
and waiver procedures as documented in the Rates and Charges Hardship Policy.

2. That Council further review its Rates and Charges Hardship Policy on the release of the
Victorian Ombudsman report.

10. OTHER REVENUE

10.1 User fees and charges

The City of Greater Dandenong provides a wide range of services, for which users pay a fee or
charge which covers at least part of the cost of supply. The level of some fees and charges are
statutorily set, however many are at the discretion of Council. Legislation provides for local
governments to levy fees and charges.

The provision of infrastructure and services form a key part of council’s role in supporting the local
community. In providing these, council must consider a range of ‘Best Value’ principles including
service cost and quality standards, value-for-money, and community expectations and values.
Council must also balance the affordability and accessibility of infrastructure and services with its
financial capacity and in the interests of long-term financial sustainability
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Sound financial management of community service delivery requires fees and charges to reflect
the cost of providing a service of a particular quality, moderated by considerations of affordability,
accessibility and equity, as well as community expectations and values.

Council's financial resources are limited. Most of the Council's revenue comes from rates, with 4%
of income raised through user fees and charges and 4.5% through statutory fines and charges.
Although a relatively small proportion; fees and charges are an important source of income and
increasingly so in a rate-capped environment.

Examples of user fees and charges include:

Aged and health care services
Leisure centre and recreation fees
Meeting or facility room hire
Animal registrations

Permits and licences

Equipment hire fees

o Waste Management fees

When setting fees and charges factors considered include the user’s capacity to pay, equity in the
subsidisation of services, community service obligations, statutory or service agreement limitations
and results of benchmarking of similar services.

Where higher or lower than budget parameter fee increases are proposed, benchmarking of other
Council or competitor fees for the same service maybe undertaken for consideration by Councillors
as part of the annual budget process.

Councils must also comply with the government’'s Competitive Neutrality Policy for significant
business activities they provide and adjust their service prices to neutralise any competitive
advantages when competing with the private sector.

In providing services to the community, Council must determine the extent of cost recovery for
services consistent with the level of both individual and collective benefit that the services provide
and in line with the community’s expectations.

Understanding the pricing options

In summary, the first step is to consider whether the fee is statutory in nature (in which case
Council has no discretion over the fee setting) or whether the fee and the fee level is resolved by
Council.

Where the fee is a Council discretionary fee, Council then needs to primarily determine the
relationship between the fee levels and the associated expenditure with which the fee is related to.
The options available to Council are as follows:

1.  Setthe fee at a level that exceeds related costs therefore creating a revenue flow for Council
that assists in offsetting funds required from rates

2. Set the fee at a level that results in full cost recovery, therefore making the respective service
revenue neutral for Council; or

3. Set the fee at a subsidised level where Council rate funding (and/or grants) is required for the
service.
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Greater Dandenong services are provided based on one of the following pricing methods:

A. Full Cost Recovery Pricing
B. Subsidised Pricing
C. Market Pricing

The following describes each applicable pricing principle that is to be applied in each circumstance.
Full Cost Recovery Pricing (A)

Full cost recovery price (A) aims to recover all direct and overhead costs incurred by Council. This
pricing should be used where a service provided by council benefits individual customers
specifically, rather than the community as a whole. In principle, fees and charges should be set at a
level that recovers the full cost of providing the services unless there is an overriding policy or
imperative in favour of subsidisation.

Subsidised Pricing (partial cost recovery) (B)

Where council subsidises a service by not passing the full cost of that service onto the customer.
Subsidies may range from full subsidies (i.e. council provides the service free of charge) to partial
subsidies, where Council provides the service to the user with a discount. The subsidy can be
funded from Council’s rate revenue or other sources such as Commonwealth and state funding
programs. Full council subsidy pricing and partial cost pricing should always be based on
knowledge of the full cost of providing a service.

Market Pricing (C)

Market pricing (A) is where council sets prices based on the benchmarked competitive prices of
alternate suppliers. In general market price represents full cost recovery plus an allowance for
profit. Market prices will be used when other providers exist in the given market, and council
needs to meet its obligations under the government’s Competitive Neutrality Policy. | t should be
noted that if a market price is lower than council’s full cost price, then the market price would
represent council subsidising that service. | f this situation exists, and there are other suppliers
existing in the market at the same price, this may mean that council is not the most efficient
supplier in the marketplace. In this situation, council will consider whether there is a community
service obligation and whether council should be providing this service at all.

10.2 Statutory fees and charges

Where fees are set by State Government statute (Statutory Fees); Council has no ability to alter
the fee. These fees are fixed and result in a growing cost to the general ratepayer to provide
services as the level of cost recovery is diminished over time. Fees will be amended in line with
any increases should one be determined by State Government over the course of the year.

Examples of statutory fees and fines include:
e Infringements and fines

e Planning and subdivision fees

e Building and Inspection fees

e Land Information Certificate fees
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Penalty and fee units are used in Victoria’s Acts and Regulations to describe the amount of a fine
or a fee.

Penalty units

Penalty units are used to define the amount payable for fines for many offences. For example, the
fine for selling a tobacco product to a person aged under 18 is four penalty units.

One penalty unit is currently $165.22, from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.

The rate for penalty units is indexed each financial year so that it is raised in line with inflation. Any
change to the value of a penalty unit will happen on 1 July each year.

Fee units

Fee units are used to calculate the cost of a certificate, registration or licence that is set out in an
Act or Regulation. For example, the cost of obtaining a land information certificate with the Council
is 1.823 fee units each.

The value of one fee unit is currently $14.81. This value may increase at the beginning of a
financial year, at the same time as penalty units.

The cost of fees and penalties is calculated by multiplying the number of units by the current value
of the fee or unit. The exact cost may be rounded up or down

10.3 Grants

Grant revenue represents income usually received from other levels of government, such as the
Victorian Local Government Grants Commission (VLGGC). Some grants are singular and
attached to the delivery of specific projects, whilst others can be of a recurrent nature and may or
may not be linked to the delivery of projects.

In the 2020-21 Budget government grants totalled $29.87 million with all but $12.20 million being
tied grants which require Greater Dandenong to perform a service on behalf of the State or Federal
government. In most cases the tied grants do not adequately fund the service provided and
additional rate revenue is required to subsidise these services. This is known as cost shifting to
local government and is widely recognised across the sector as a major issue.

Council will pro-actively advocate to other levels of government for grant funding support to deliver
important infrastructure and service outcomes for the community. Council may use its own funds
to leverage higher grant funding and maximise external funding opportunities.

Grant assumptions are then clearly detailed in Council’s budget document. No project that is
reliant on grant funding will proceed until a signed funding agreement is in place.

10.4 Contributions

Contributions represent funds received by Council, usually from non-government sources, and are
usually linked to projects. Contributions can be made to Council in the form of either cash
payments or asset hand-overs.

Examples of contributions include:
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Monies collected from developers under planning and development agreements

Monies collected under developer contribution plans and infrastructure contribution plans
Contributions from user groups towards upgrade of facilities

Assets handed over to council from developers at the completion of a subdivision, such as
roads, drainage, and streetlights.

Contributions should always be linked to a planning or funding agreement. Council will not
undertake any work on a contribution-funded project until a signed agreement outlining the
contribution details is in place.

10.5 Interest on investments

Council receives interest on funds managed as part of its investment portfolio, where funds are
held in advance of expenditure, or for special purposes. The investment portfolio is managed per
Council’s Investment Policy, which seeks to earn the best return on funds, whilst minimising risk.

11. CHARTER OF HUMAN RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES ACT 2006 —
COMPATIBILITY STATEMENT

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006 has been considered in
relation to whether any human right under the Charter is restricted or interfered with in any way by
enacting any part of this policy. It is considered that this policy is consistent with the rights outlined
in the Charter.

12. RESPONSE TO THE GENDER EQUALITY ACT 2020

The Gender Equality Act 2020 has been considered in the preparation of this policy. This policy
aims to actively seek out the knowledge, perspectives and experiences of all gender groups on all
Council activities as outlined in section 4 of this policy. No particular groups that are based on
gender are considered to be impacted either positively or negatively by this policy.

13. CONSIDERATION OF CLIMATE CHANGE AND SUSTAINABILITY

Council’s Declaration on a Climate and Ecological Emergency, Council’s Climate Change
Emergency Strategy 2020-2030 and the requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 in
relation to the overarching governance principle on climate change and sustainability have been
considered in the preparation of this policy.

Funding and support of Climate Change initiatives will be considered as part of the preparations of
the Council Plan, Annual Action Plan and the 2021-22 Annual Budget. Revenues derived from the
Revenue and Rating Plan will support the delivery of these actions, but it is not considered this
plan has any other direct links.

This is due to the fact outlined in the introduction of the Plan where Council is unable to either
introduce any special rate or levy to support and fund climate change and that its revenue amounts
are to a large extent capped by either rate capping or state government grant approvals.
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14. RESPONSIBILITIES

All Council Officers are responsible for ensuring compliance with this Plan.

15. REFERENCES AND RELATED DOCUMENTS
Legislation

Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
Cultural and Recreational Lands Act 1963

Local Government Act 1989

Local Government Act 2020

Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020
Penalty Interest Rates Act 1983

Valuation of Land Act 1960

Related Council and Other Policies, Procedures, Strategies, Protocols, Guidelines

Greater Dandenong City Council Community Engagement Policy
Greater Dandenong City Council Pricing Policy

Greater Dandenong City Council Rates and Charges Hardship Policy
Greater Dandenong City Council Satisfaction Procedure and Form
Ministerial Guidelines for Differential Rating - April 2013

Valuation Best Practice Guide 2014

Valuation Best Practice Specifications Guidelines 2020 and 2021
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File Id:

Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services

Attachments: 2021-22 Proposed Capital Works Program
Report Summary

As part of the process of preparing the 2021-22 Budget a key element of the Budget is the proposed
capital works expenditure for 2021-22. Given these works relate to specific areas of Council’s business,
there is a higher potential for works to create a conflict of interest for Councillors to declare. In order
that all Councillors may vote on the 2021-22 Budget, the purpose of this report is to seek
‘pre-endorsement’ of the capital program, which then provides all Councillors with an exemption from
declaring an interest in respect of the preparation of the Budget.

Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that Council adopts the proposed schedule of capital works to be included
in the 2021-22 Budget.
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Background

Section 129 of the Local Government Act 2020 and Regulation 7 (r) (i) (ii) and iii) of The Local
Government (Governance and Integrity) Regulations 2020 provides that:

“If a budget or revised budget to be approved by a Council includes funding for a matter in respect
of which a Councillor has a conflict of interest, the Councillor is taken not to have a conflict of interest
for the purposes of approving the budget or revised budget if:

e  The Council approved the matter and the proposed funding previously, and

e  The Councillor disclosed the nature of conflict of interest under Section 130 of the Local
Government Act 2020 when the decision in respect of the funding was originally considered and
made.

Accordingly, the proposed 2021-22 capital works program is tabled separately for Council endorsement
prior to consideration of the 2021-22 Annual Budget. A full copy of the proposed 2021-22 capital
program is attached to this report. In summary the capital works program proposes a total of $63.36
million of works.

There are several key projects included in the program which are:

The 2021-22 Council Budget provides funding for a range of key capital projects that are worthy of
highlight and include:

e  $10.23 million | Keysborough South Community Hub Development — Construction (Stage 2
of 2) (funded from borrowings of $6.12 million, development contributions of
$2.91 million and State Government grant funding of $1.2 million).

e  $7.9 million Ross Reserve New Pavilion (Football) — Construction (Stage 2 of 2) (partly
funded by State Government grant funding of $75,000).

e  $4.2 million Noble Park Aquatic Centre — Health and Wellbeing Gymnasium
Redevelopment (funded by reserves of $3.9 million and State Government
grant funding of $300,000).

e $3.67 million | Road Resurfacing Program (including Roads to Recovery grant funded works
of $1.02 million).

e  $3.3 million Dandenong Oasis Replacement — detailed design (funded from reserves).

e  $3.0 million Thomas P Carroll Reserve Crowe Pavilion — construction/refurbishment (Stage
2 of 2).

e  $2.09 million | Abbotts Road (between National Drive and Railway) — Widening Construction
(Stage 2 of 3) (funded by Local Roads and Community Infrastructure (LRCI)
grant funding).
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e  $1.97 million | Building renewal program.

e $1.23 million | Colemans Road — road reconstruction (funded by LRCI grant funding).

e $1.16 million | Kerb and Channel Renewal and Resurfacing Programs.

e  $1.70 million | Callander Road (Catchment 9) — Drainage upgrade (Stage 1 of 3) (funded by
Local Roads and Community Infrastructure (LRCI) Phase 2 grant funding).

e  $1.70 million | Footpath Renewal Program and Active Transport Infrastructure Priority
Program.

e  $1.39 million | Springvale Boulevard — Construction (Stages 1 and 2).

e $1.18 million | Douglas Street — streetscape upgrade (Stage 4).

Proposal
That Council adopt the proposed 2021-22 Capital Works Program.

Community Plan ‘Imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-2021 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘Imagine
2030’. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘imagine 2030’

People

Pride — Best place best people

Cultural Diversity — Model multicultural community
Outdoor Activity and Sports — Recreation for everyone
Lifecycle and Social Support — The generations supported

Place

e  Sense of Place — One city many neighbourhoods
Safety in Streets and Places — Feeling and being safe
Appearance of Places — Places and buildings

Travel and Transport — Easy to get around

Opportunity

e  FEducation, Learning and Information — Knowledge
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e Jobs and Business Opportunities — Prosperous and affordable
° Tourism and visitors — Diverse and interesting experiences
e  Leadership by the Council — The leading Council

Council Plan 2017-2021

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:

People

) A vibrant, connected and safe community
e A creative city that respects and embraces diversity

Place

e A healthy, liveable and sustainable city
e Acity planned for the future

Opportunity

e Adiverse and growing economy
e An open and effective Council

The strategies and plans that contribute to these outcomes are as follows:

e  Proposed Long Term Financial Strategy 2021-22 to 2030-31
e  Proposed Budget 2021-22

Related Council Policies
° Financial Management - Policy
Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications
The proposed 2020-21 Capital Works Program has been fully funded in the Proposed 2021-22 Budget.
Consultation

Whilst Council can ‘pre-adopt’ the 2021-22 Capital Works Program, the full program of works still

forms a component of the Annual Budget. Deliberative community engagement is not prescribed for
the Budget in either the Local Government Act 2020 or the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2020. However, community engagement will be undertaken on the Budget in accordance
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with Council’s Community Engagement Policy and placed out for public submissions for a 28-day
period concluding on 26 May 2021. Council will consider any submissions received prior to adopting
the Budget on the 28 June 2021.

Conclusion

The recommendation below for Council consideration has been split into two components to allow
Councillors to vote on sections of the Capital Works Program in order for individual Councillors to
declare conflicts of interest.

Recommendation

That Council adopts:

1. the proposed 2021-22 capital works program for inclusion in the draft 2020-21 Annual
Budget with the exceptions of projects 8, 9, 10 and 11 (Dandenong Market projects);
and

2. the capital works included in projects 8, 9, 10 and 11 in respect of the Dandenong
Market.

MINUTE 147

Moved by: Cr Tim Dark
Seconded by: Cr Jim Memeti

PART 1

That Council adopts the proposed 2021-22 capital works program for inclusion in the draft
2020-21 Annual Budget with the exceptions of projects 8, 9, 10 and 11 (Dandenong Market
projects).

CARRIED

Cr Jim Memeti disclosed a Direct Material Conflict of Interest of a Non-Pecuniary nature (s.128)
in Part 2 of this item, as he is the Director of a company that has a stall at the Dandenong
Market. Cr Jim Memeti left the Chamber at 7.34pm prior to discussion and voting on the item.
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MINUTE 148

Moved by: Cr Rhonda Garad
Seconded by: Cr Sean O'Reilly

PART 2

That Council adopts the capital works included in projects 8, 9, 10 and 11 in respect of the
Dandenong Market.

CARRIED

Cr Jim Memeti returned to the Chamber at 7.35pm.
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FINANCE AND STRATEGY

2021-22 PROPOSED CAPITAL WORKS PROGRAM

ATTACHMENT 1

2021-22 PROPOSED CAPITAL WORKS
PROGRAM

PAGES 8 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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File Id:

Responsible Officer: Director Corporate Services
Attachments: Proposed Budget 2021-22
Report Summary

Under the new Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) Council is required to prepare a budget each
financial year (including the subsequent three financial years) and to have that budget adopted by
30 June.

Whilst deliberative community engagement is not prescribed for the Proposed Budget in either the
Act, or the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020, the Proposed 2021-22
Budget, in conjunction with the Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025, will be placed on public exhibition
for the purposes of inviting public submissions and again be tabled for Council consideration and
adoption at the 28 June 2021 Council meeting.

The Proposed Budget 2021-22 is included as Attachment 1 to this report.
Recommendation Summary

This report recommends that Council adopts in principle the Proposed 2021-22 Budget and place
the Proposed 2021-22 Budget, in conjunction with the Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 on public
exhibition for 28 days for the purposes of inviting public submissions. Following the conclusion of the
public consultation period and any submissions received, the Proposed 2021-22 Budget will again
be tabled for Council consideration and adoption at the 28 June 2021 Council meeting.
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Background

The Budget forms an integral part of Council’s integrated strategic planning and reporting framework.
It's a pleasure to present the 2021-22 Budget to the Greater Dandenong City community for comment.

The COVID-19 pandemic made 2020 an extremely challenging time for many in our community.
Equally for Council, the 2021-22 Proposed Budget has been developed in a period of continued
uncertainty in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic. Despite this, it is pleasing that the 2021-22 Proposed
Budget has been developed with an aim to continue Council's commitment to invest in services and
infrastructure in a financially responsible way by balancing the needs of our community while achieving
long term financial sustainability and most importantly to recover and revive in a post COVID-19
environment.

The Budget is largely based on a return to some degree of economic normality for 2021-22 and the
following three years. It should be noted however that several key areas of Council revenue will
however continue to be impacted upon by the outcomes of the pandemic. Interest on investments
will be one of Council’s largest areas of ongoing financial impact with revenues forecast to be below
Council’s typical return by more than $1 million. Council has also seen declines in supplementary
rate growth and rental assumptions for Dandenong Market will also be impacted with an assumed
return to 80% of pre COVID-19 levels. Car parking revenue and fine income will also be well below
pre-COVID-19 levels with the adverse impact estimated at $2.3 million These impacts have resulted
in Councils operational cash outcome being lower than forecast for 2021-22.

To fund the reduced operational outcome, the Proposed 2021-22 Budget includes a drop-in capital
works funded from Council’s operations of around $2.3 million to fund the anticipated income losses
noted above in relation to COVID-19. The longer-term impact of COVID-19 on our community and
on our operations is still uncertain. As such we recognise Council’s proposed financial direction for
future years may require changes.

Despite the challenges, the 2021-22 Budget will deliver a capital works program of more than $63
million in capital works. This includes more than $20 million on asset renewal in the city. This builds
on the capital strong investment over the past several years including the Springvale Community
Hub, Dandenong Civic Centre and Library, redevelopment of the Dandenong Market, construction
of the Noble Park Aquatic Centre and construction of Tatterson Park Community Sports Complex.

The Budget also includes more significant building projects - construction of the Keysborough South
Community Hub, Ross Reserve Football pavilion, Noble Park Aquatic Centre — Health and Wellbeing
Gymnasium redevelopment and Thomas P Carroll Reserve Crowe pavilion as well as detailed design
of the Dandenong Oasis replacement (totalling approximately $28 million). The road resurfacing
program (including Roads to Recovery) and the widening construction of Abbotts Road are also
included in the 2021-22 Budget (partly funded by Roads to Recovery and Local Roads Community
Infrastructure (LCRI) grant funding). To achieve this level of capital works investment in 2021-22,
Council has sought several funding sources other than rates, including new borrowings, grant funding
and transfers from internal reserves.
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Council remains in a healthy financial position for 2021-22 through sound and prudent leadership by
Council and its staff, although this will continue to be tested by the compounding effect of rate capping
and COVID-19 after-effects. Council has largely been protected from the impacts of rate capping to
this point due to higher levels of supplementary rates. However, Council will either have to make
significant changes to its operational services or accept that timelines for new projects will face longer
term delays in order to be affordable for Council.

New facilities such as the Keysborough South Community Hub (expected to be complete in October
2022) will add considerable costs (approximately $1 million annually) to Council’s operational budgets.
Council’s forward capital investment decisions and their consequential operational and infrastructure
servicing expenditure (whole of life costing) will necessitate a shift in strategic thinking in the medium
to long term.

Property Revaluations and the Rate Rise

Average rates in 2021-22 will increase by 1.50 per cent, in line with the rate cap set by the Victorian
Government under rate capping legislation.

The City of Greater Dandenong has moved from biennial to annual valuations in line with the state
government changes introduced from 1 July 2018. The valuation function is now centralised with the
Valuer-General of Victoria. Valuation figures used in this 2021-22 budget report are preliminary
valuations provided by the Valuer General’s office and are yet to be certified. Certification is expected
to be received during May. Any changes to the preliminary valuations will be adjusted and reflected
in the final budget report scheduled for the Council Meeting on 28 June 2021. Total rates revenue
collected by the Council will not increase because of any valuation changes.

It should be noted that since the introduction of rate capping it is important for residents to understand
that these two matters are quite independent of each other. The rate cap is applied to the total rates
that Council can raise and not to individual properties. A resident’s rate bill may vary by more or less
than the rate cap due to the relative property valuation, the type of property classification (residential,
commercial, industrial, etc) and other charges not subject to the rate cap (for example, the waste
charge). This means that ratepayers will experience changes to their rates that vary from the standard
increase of 1.50 per cent (both higher and lower). In practice, the total Council rates collected will
increase by 1.50 per cent while individual property movements may vary greatly.

The following table highlights that overall Council properties have decreased by 1.71 per cent from
the 2020-21 forecast valuations, however, the various classes of land have experienced different
movements compared to the overall average outcome. Residential, commercial and industrial
valuations have all experienced a decrease. Farm and residential vacant valuations, on the other
hand, have increased by 7.39 per cent and 2.81 per cent respectively.
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By way of example the table below highlights the rating impact on the various rating types should
Council retain the current rate differential structure (outcomes based on an annual increase in rates
of 1.50 per cent).

As shown in the table the rating experiences between rating groups is reasonably dynamic with
residential properties on average increasing by 2.35 per cent and farm properties increasing by 11.23
per cent. The commercial sector has been the weakest experiencing a decrease of 3.13 per cent.

This disparity in the valuation movements means that unless Council adjusts its differential rating
structure, residential rates would increase by an average of 2.35 per cent.

Council has sought a rating model that more evenly applies the proposed rate increase to each of
the major rating sectors (General, Commercial and Industrial). On this basis, the Proposed Revenue
and Rating Plan recommends the following differential rates be applied.
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The proposed model above increases the differential on industrial properties by 5 per cent to 280 per
cent which reduces the average residential rate increase to 1.54 per cent keeping it close to the rate
cap (1.50 per cent). This model also retains the decrease in commercial rates at 3.90 per cent (this
sector is probably weaker than the industrial sector at present indicated by the level of valuation
decreases in these sectors in 2021).

Waste charges

The 2021-22 Budget proposes an increase of $12.00 (or 2.80 per cent) in the default annual waste
charge (inclusive of the State Government landfill levy) which is linked directly to the cost of providing
the waste services, priced on a cost recovery basis.

The Victorian State Governments introduction of Recycling Victoria — A New Economy details an
increase in the landfill levy from $65.90 in 2020-21 to $105.90 in 2021-22. This increase represents
$69 per household ($51 in 2020-21).

As documented in the past three years, disruptions in the recycling processing market are “disrupters
on a global scale”. These challenging events are still foreseeable into the future. The 2021-22 budget
allows for the costs associated with continuing Council’s current recycling contract combined with
the higher landfill levy, while also continuing to be sustainably responsible in the process.

* Includes State Government landfill levy of $69 in 2021-22 ($51 in 2020-21).

Overall, the increase in general rates and waste charges for the median residential valued property
is 1.92 per cent. The total annual impact is $27.60 or $0.53 cents per week.

Investing in infrastructure and meeting the asset renewal challenge
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Council retains a strong focus on the future needs for this municipality. The 2021-22 Budget continues
with significant investment in the infrastructure of our city, despite the constraints imposed by rate
capping. An extensive Capital Works Program totalling $63.36 million will be undertaken in 2021-22.
This capital investment includes Council funding from rate revenue of $36.20 million which is a $3.56
million increase from the capital investment from rates in 2020-21 ($32.65 million). This increase is
mainly attributable to funding required for COVID-19 financial impacts in 2020-21.

The challenge to fund the appropriate replacement of existing assets (roads, drains, buildings, etc)
is one that City of Greater Dandenong shares with many other municipalities. In our case, the challenge
is beginning to become urgent as much of our key infrastructure was built in the 1960’s and 1970’s
and will soon reach the end of their useful lives.

The 2021-22 Council Budget continues to address the asset renewal challenge. The 2021-22 Budget
allocates a total of $19.98 million and $23.73 million for renewal and upgrade of our assets respectively.

In order to achieve Council’s objectives of meeting the asset renewal challenge whilst at the same
point delivering key new infrastructure, it is essential that Council strongly scrutinise its operational
budgets annually and look to achieve efficiencies.

Note: future years may be subject to reductions due to the impacts of rate capping legislation. The
investment in each year represents a slight increasing trend. Future spending may be further impacted
by the COVID-19 pandemic after-effects. The 2021-22 Budget includes a drop of $2.3 million to fund
COVID-19 related impacts.

The table highlights that significant funding sources other than from rates to fund an increased level
of capital works expenditure. The $63.36 million in capital works in 2021-22 will be funded by capital
grant funding of $10 million, reserve transfers of $8.11 million and new borrowings of $6.12 million.
This will allow Council to progress a number of major capital projects in 2021-22 including Keysborough
South Community Hub, Noble Park Aquatic Centre Health and Wellbeing Gymnasium redevelopment
and the detailed design associated with replacement of Dandenong Oasis.

Loan proceeds totalling $30.00 million over the 2022-23 to 2023-24 years will further fund significant
works associated with the replacement of Dandenong Oasis.
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Key capital projects included in the 2021-22 Budget

The 2021-22 Council Budget provides funding for a range of key capital projects that are worthy of
highlight and include:

e  $10.23 million - Keysborough South Community Hub Development — Construction (Stage 2 of
2) (funded from borrowings of $6.12 million, DCP contributions of $2.91 million and State
Government grant funding of $1.2 million).

e  $7.90 million - Ross Reserve New Pavilion (Football) — Construction (Stage 2 of 2) (partly funded
by State Government grant funding of $75,000).

e  $4.20 million - Noble Park Aquatic Centre — Health and Wellbeing Gymnasium Redevelopment
(funded by reserves of $3.9 million and State Government grant funding of $300,000).

e  $3.67 million - Road Resurfacing Program (including Roads to Recovery grant funded works of
$1.02 million).

e  $3.30 million - Dandenong Oasis Replacement — detailed design (funded from reserves).

e  $3.00 million - Thomas P Carroll Reserve Crowe Pavilion — construction/refurbishment (Stage
2 of 2).

e  $2.09 million - Abbotts Road (between National Drive and Railway) — Widening Construction
(Stage 2 of 3) (funded by LRCI grant funding).

e  $1.97 million - Building renewal program.

e  $1.23 million - Colemans Road — road reconstruction (funded by LRCI grant funding).

e  $1.16 million - Kerb and Channel Renewal and Resurfacing Programs.

e  $1.70 million - Callander Road (Catchment 9) — Drainage upgrade (Stage 1 of 3) (funded by
Local Roads and Community Infrastructure (LRCI) Phase 2 grant funding).

° $1.70 million - Footpath Renewal Program and Active Transport Infrastructure Priority Program.

e  $1.39 million - Springvale Boulevard — Construction (Stages 1 and 2).

e  $1.18 million - Douglas Street — streetscape upgrade (Stage 4).

Several new operating initiatives totalling $297,500 have also been included in the 2021-22 Budget
(refer section 4.7 of the 2021-22 Proposed Budget for details).

In summary the 2021-22 Budget has been developed during a time of anticipated recovery from the
effects of COVID-19 across our community. There is still some uncertainty about the extent of
COVID-19 after-effects and the pace at which activity levels will return to a new normal, particularly
as a COVID-19 vaccine is rolled out in Australia. This Budget is well positioned for recovery albeit
with some after-effects continuing for part of the 2021-22 financial year. Capital spending will stimulate
local employment, businesses and suppliers. The Budget is one that strikes a good balance between
ensuring Council continues to provide operational services and support to the community and a capital
spending program to provide much needed local infrastructure.
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Proposal

This report proposes that Council adopt the 2021-22 Annual Budget for the purposes of placing the
budget on public display for 28 days and to receive and consider public submissions in respect of
the Budget prior to final adoption on 28 June 2021.

Community Plan ‘imagine 2030’ and Council Plan 2017-2021 — Strategic Objectives,
Strategies and Plans

After consultation with the Greater Dandenong community on what kind of future they wanted to see
for themselves and the City in 2030, the result was the Greater Dandenong Community Plan ‘Imagine
2030'. This report is consistent with the following community visions:

Community Plan ‘imagine 2030’
Opportunity

e  Leadership by the Council — The leading Council
Council Plan 2017-2021

The Council Plan describes the kind of future the Council is working for, and how Council will do this
over four years. This report is consistent with the following goals:

Opportunity
e An open and effective Council
The strategies and plans that contribute to these outcomes are as follows:

e  Annual Budget
° Long Term Financial Plan
e  Proposed Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025

Related Council Policies
Financial Management - Policy
Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities has been considered in the preparation
of this report but is not relevant to its contents.

Financial Implications

The Proposed 2021-22 Budget complies with the requirements under the new Local Government Act
2020 and continues to address the infrastructure renewal challenge despite the constraints imposed
by rate capping legislation and COVID related impacts.
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Consultation

Deliberative community engagement is not prescribed for a Budget in either the Act, or the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020. However, community engagement will be
undertaken on Council’s Proposed 2021-22 Budget, in conjunction with the Revenue and Rating Plan
in accordance with Council’s Community Engagement Policy.

The Proposed 2021-22 Budget and Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 will be placed on public
exhibition for the purposes of inviting public submissions. Following the conclusion of the public
consultation period and any submissions received, the 2021-22 Budget and Revenue and Rating
Plan will again be tabled for Council consideration and adoption at the 28 June 2021 Council meeting.

Conclusion

In summary the 2021-22 Proposed Budget is one that strikes a good balance between ensuring
Council continues to provide operational services and support to the community in a post COVID-19
pandemic recovery period, whilst also including a strong capital spending program to provide much
needed local infrastructure and at the same time complying with the 1.50 per cent rate cap imposed
by rate capping legislation.

Recommendation

That:

1. Council adopts in principle and places the Proposed 2021-22 Budget (along with
the Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025) on public exhibition for a period of 28 days
(concluding on 26 May 2021); and

2, following consideration and hearing of any submissions received, Council considers
the proposed 2021-22 Budget for adoption at the Council meeting to be held on 28
June 2021.

MINUTE 149

Moved by: Cr Tim Dark
Seconded by: Cr Eden Foster

That:

1. Council adopts in principle and places the Proposed 2021-22 Budget (along with
the Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025) on public exhibition for a period of 28 days
(concluding on 26 May 2021); and
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2. following consideration and hearing of any submissions received, Council considers
the proposed 2021-22 Budget for adoption at the Council meeting to be held on 28
June 2021.

CARRIED
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FINANCE AND STRATEGY

PROPOSED 2021-22 BUDGET

ATTACHMENT 1

PROPOSED BUDGET 2021-22

PAGES 193 (including cover)

If the details of the attachment are unclear please contact Governance on 8571 5235.
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Mayor and CEQO’s Introduction

It's a pleasure to present the 2021-22 Budget to the Greater Dandenong City community for
comment. The Budget forms an integral part of Council’s integrated strategic planning and reporting
framework.

The COVID-19 pandemic made 2020 an extremely challenging time for many in our community.
Equally for Council, the 2021-22 Proposed Budget has been developed in a period of continued
uncertainty in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic. Despite this, it is pleasing that the 2021-22
Proposed Budget has been developed with an aim to continue Council's commitment to invest in
services and infrastructure in a financially responsible way by balancing the needs of our community
while achieving long term financial sustainability and most importantly to recover and revive in a
post COVID-19 environment.

The Budget is largely based on a return to some degree of economic normality for 2021-22 and the
following three years. It should be noted however that several key areas of Council revenue will
however continue to be impacted upon by the outcomes of the pandemic. Interest on
investments will be one of Council’s largest areas of ongoing financial impact with revenues
forecast to be below Council’s typical return by more than $1 million. Council has also seen
declines in supplementary rate growth and rental assumptions for Dandenong Market will also be
impacted with an assumed return to 80% of pre COVID-19 levels. Car parking revenue and fine
income will also be well below pre-COVID-19 levels with the adverse impact estimated at $2.3
million These impacts have resulted in Councils operational cash outcome being lower than
forecast for 2021-22.

To fund the reduced operational outcome, the Proposed 2021-22 Budget includes a drop-in
capital works funded from Council's operations of around $2.3 million to fund the anticipated
income losses noted above in relation to COVID-19. The longer-term impact of COVID-19 on our
community and on our operations is still uncertain. As such we recognise Council’s proposed
financial direction for future years may require changes.

Despite the challenges, the 2021-22 Budget will deliver a capital works program of more than
$63 million in capital works. This includes more than $20 million on asset renewal in the city. This
builds on the capital strong investment over the past several years including the Springvale
Community Hub, Dandenong Civic Centre and Library, redevelopment of the Dandenong Market,
construction of the Noble Park Aquatic Centre and construction of Tatterson Park Community
Sports Complex.

The Budget also includes more significant building projects - construction of the Keysborough
South Community Hub, Ross Reserve Football pavilion, Noble Park Aquatic Centre —
Health and Wellbeing Gymnasium redevelopment and Thomas P Carroll Reserve Crowe
pavilion as well as detailed design of the Dandenong Oasis replacement (totalling
approximately $28 million). The road resurfacing program (including Roads to Recovery) and
the widening construction of Abbotts Road are also included in the 2021-22 Budget (partly
funded by Roads to Recovery and Local Roads Community Infrastructure (LCRI) grant
funding). To achieve this level of capital works investment in 2021-22, Council has sought
several funding sources other than rates, including new borrowings, grant funding and transfers
from internal reserves.

Council remains in a healthy financial position for 2021-22 through sound and prudent leadership
by Council and its staff, although this will continue to be tested by the compounding effect of
rate capping and COVID-19 after-effects. Council has largely been protected from the impacts of
rate capping to this point due to higher levels of supplementary rates. However, Council will either
have to make significant changes to its operational services or accept that timelines for new
projects will face longer term delays in order to be affordable for Council.

New facilities such as the Keysborough South Community Hub (expected to be complete in
October 2022) will add considerable costs (approximately $1 million annually) to Council’s
operational budgets. Council’s forward capital investment decisions and their consequential
operational and infrastructure servicing expenditure (whole of life costing) will necessitate a shift in
Buriggt@dinkipg in the medium to long term. Page 1

2989



City of Greater Dandenong
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong

Property Revaluations and the Rate Rise

Average rates in 2021-22 will increase by 1.50 per cent, in line with the rate cap set by the Victorian

Government under rate capping legislation.

The City of Greater Dandenong has moved from biennial to annual valuations in line with the state
government changes introduced from 1 July 2018. The valuation function is now centralised with
the Valuer-General of Victoria. Valuation figures used in this 2021-22 budget report are preliminary
valuations provided by the Valuer General's office and are yet to be certified. Certification is
expected to be received during May. Any changes to the preliminary valuations will be adjusted
and reflected in the final budget report scheduled for the Council Meeting on 28 June 2021. Total
rates revenue collected by the Council will not increase because of any valuation changes.

It should be noted that since the introduction of rate capping it is important for residents to
understand that these two matters are quite independent of each other. The rate cap is applied to
the total rates that Council can raise and not to individual properties. A resident’s rate bill may vary
by more or less than the rate cap due to the relative property valuation, the type of property
classification (residential, commercial, industrial, etc) and other charges not subject to the rate cap
(for example, the waste charge). This means that ratepayers will experience changes to their rates
that vary from the standard increase of 1.50 per cent (both higher and lower). In practice, the total
Council rates collected will increase by 1.50 per cent while individual property movements may vary

greatly.

The following table highlights that overall Council properties have decreased by 1.71 per cent from
the 2020-21 forecast valuations, however, the various classes of land have experienced different
movements compared to the overall average outcome. Residential, commercial and industrial
valuations have all experienced a decrease. Farm and residential vacant valuations, on the other

hand, have increased by 7.39 per cent and 2.81 per cent respectively.

Budget

Forecast

Type or class of land 2020-21 2020-21

General 33,535,584 33,787,898
Commercial 4,227,348 4,252,109
Industrial 12,062,326 12,204,198 11,970,519
Vacant residential 413,599 383,549
Farm 343,568 344,014

Total value of land

Budget
2021-22
$'000 $'000 $'000
33,388,945

3,976,701

394,343
369,435
50,582,424 50,971,767 50,099,942

(1.18%)
(6.48%)
(1.91%)
2.81%
7.39%
(1.71%)

By way of example the table below highlights the rating impact on the various rating types should
Council retain the current rate differential structure (outcomes based on an annual increase in rates

of 1.50 per cent).

Proposed

Type or class of land rates
2021-22

$'000

General 58,088
Commercial 13,145
Industrial 57,270
Vacant residential 1,029
Farm 482
Total 130,014

% increase

2020-21 to
2021-22
2.35%
(3.13%)
1.59%
6.49%
11.23%
1.50%

Budget 2021-22

Page 2
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As shown in the table the rating experiences between rating groups is reasonably dynamic with
residential properties on average increasing by 2.35 per cent and farm properties increasing by
11.23 per cent. The commercial sector has been the weakest experiencing a decrease of 3.13 per
cent.

This disparity in the valuation movements means that unless Council adjusts its differential rating
structure, residential rates would increase by an average of 2.35 per cent.

Council has sought a rating model that more evenly applies the proposed rate increase to each of
the major rating sectors (General, Commercial and Industrial). On this basis, the Proposed
Revenue and Rating Plan recommends the following differential rates be applied.

Existing Proposed
rating rating % increase
Type or class of land differential differential 2020-21 to
2020-21 2021-22 2021-22
General 100% 100% 1.54%
Commercial 190% 190% (3.90%)
Industrial 275% 280% 2.62%
Vacant residential 150% 150% 5.65%
Farm 75% 75% 10.35%
1.50%

The proposed model above increases the differential on industrial properties by 5 per cent to 280
per cent which reduces the average residential rate increase to 1.54 per cent keeping it close to the
rate cap (1.50 per cent). This model also retains the decrease in commercial rates at 3.90 per cent
(this sector is probably weaker than the industrial sector at present indicated by the level of valuation
decreases in these sectors in 2021).

Waste charges

The 2021-22 Budget proposes an increase of $12.00 (or 2.80 per cent) in the default annual waste
charge (inclusive of the State Government landfill levy) which is linked directly to the cost of
providing the waste services, priced on a cost recovery basis.

The Victorian State Governments introduction of Recycling Victoria — A New Economy details an
increase in the landfill levy from $65.90 in 2020-21 to $105.90 in 2021-22. This increase represents
$69 per household ($51 in 2020-21).

As documented in the past three years, disruptions in the recycling processing market are
“disrupters on a global scale”. These challenging events are still foreseeable into the future. The
2021-22 budget allows for the costs associated with continuing Council’s current recycling contract
combined with the higher landfill levy, while also continuing to be sustainably responsible in the

process.

Residential rate in the dollar Forecast Budget % $
2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance

Median residential valuation in Greater Dandenong $602,100 $595,000

Residential rate in the dollar 0.0016796 0.0017259

General rates $1,011.32 $1,026.92 1.54% $15.60

Waste charge (including State Government landfill levy)* $428.00 $440.00 2.80% $12.00

Total rates and charges median residential property $1,439.32 $1,466.92 1.92% $27.60

* Includes State Government landfill levy of $69 in 2021-22 ($51 in 2020-21).

Overall, the increase in general rates and waste charges for the median residential valued property
is 1.92 per cent. The total annual impact is $27.60 or $0.53 cents per week.

Budget 2021-22 Page 3
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Investing in infrastructure and meeting the asset renewal challenge

Council retains a strong focus on the future needs for this municipality. The 2021-22 Budget
continues with significant investment in the infrastructure of our city, despite the constraints imposed
by rate capping. An extensive Capital Works Program totalling $63.36 million will be undertaken in
2021-22. This capital investment includes Council funding from rate revenue of $36.20 million which
is a $3.56 million increase from the capital investment from rates in 2020-21 ($32.65 million). This
increase is mainly attributable to funding required for COVID-19 financial impacts in 2020-21.

The challenge to fund the appropriate replacement of existing assets (roads, drains, buildings, etc)
is one that City of Greater Dandenong shares with many other municipalities. In our case, the
challenge is beginning to become urgent as much of our key infrastructure was built in the 1960’s
and 1970’s and will soon reach the end of their useful lives.

The 2021-22 Council Budget continues to address the asset renewal challenge. The 2021-22
Budget allocates a total of $19.98 million and $23.73 million for renewal and upgrade of our assets
respectively.

In order to achieve Council’s objectives of meeting the asset renewal challenge whilst at the same
point delivering key new infrastructure, it is essential that Council strongly scrutinise its operational
budgets annually and look to achieve efficiencies.

Original
Budget Budget Projections
2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Capital grants 3,244 9,996 2,518 826 -
Capital contributions 910 2,935 1,045 - -
Transfer from reserves 6,905 8,110 7,350 10,250 650
Loan proceeds - 6,120 15,000 15,000 -
Funded from operational surplus 32,646 36,201 39,706 40,174 41,170
Total capital works funding 43,705 63,362 65,619 66,250 41,820

Note: future years may be subject to reductions due to the impacts of rate capping legislation. The investment
in each year represents a slight increasing trend. Future spending may be further impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic after-effects. The 2021-22 Budget includes a drop of $2.3 million to fund COVID-19 related impacts.

The table highlights that significant funding sources other than from rates to fund an increased level
of capital works expenditure. The $63.36 million in capital works in 2021-22 will be funded by capital
grant funding of $10 million, reserve transfers of $8.11 million and new borrowings of $6.12 million.
This will allow Council to progress a number of major capital projects in 2021-22 including
Keysborough South Community Hub, Noble Park Aquatic Centre Health and Wellbeing Gymnasium
redevelopment and the detailed design associated with replacement of Dandenong Oasis.

Loan proceeds totalling $30.00 million over the 2022-23 to 2023-24 years will further fund significant
works associated with the replacement of Dandenong Oasis.

Budget 2021-22 Page 4
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Key capital projects included in the 2021-22 Budget

The 2021-22 Council Budget provides funding for a range of key capital projects that are worthy of

highlight and include:

$10.23 million

$7.90 million

$4.20 million

$3.67 million

$3.30 million
$3.00 million

$2.09 million

$1.97 million
$1.23 million
$1.16 million
$1.70 million

$1.70 million

$1.39 million
$1.18 million

Keysborough South Community Hub Development — Construction (Stage 2
of 2) (funded from borrowings of $6.12 million, DCP contributions of $2.91
million and State Government grant funding of $1.2 million).

Ross Reserve New Pavilion (Football) — Construction (Stage 2 of 2) (partly
funded by State Government grant funding of $75,000).

Noble Park Aquatic Centre — Health and Wellbeing Gymnasium
Redevelopment (funded by reserves of $3.9 million and State Government
grant funding of $300,000).

Road Resurfacing Program (including Roads to Recovery grant funded
works of $1.02 million).

Dandenong Oasis Replacement — detailed design (funded from reserves).

Thomas P Carroll Reserve Crowe Pavilion — construction/refurbishment
(Stage 2 of 2).

Abbotts Road (between National Drive and Railway) — Widening
Construction (Stage 2 of 3) (funded by LRCI grant funding).

Building renewal program.
Colemans Road - road reconstruction (funded by LRCI grant funding).
Kerb and Channel Renewal and Resurfacing Programs.

Callander Road (Catchment 9) — Drainage upgrade (Stage 1 of 3) (funded
by Local Roads and Community Infrastructure (LRCI) Phase 2 grant
funding).

Footpath Renewal Program and Active Transport Infrastructure Priority
Program.

Springvale Boulevard — Construction (Stages 1 and 2).
Douglas Street — streetscape upgrade (Stage 4).

Several new operating initiatives totalling $297,500 have also been included in the 2021-22 Budget
(refer section 4.7 for details).

In summary the 2021-22 Budget has been developed during a time of anticipated recovery from the
effects of COVID-19 across our community. There is still some uncertainty about the extent of
COVID-19 after-effects and the pace at which activity levels will return to a new normal, particularly
as a COVID-19 vaccine is rolled out in Australia. This Budget is well positioned for recovery albeit
with some after-effects continuing for part of the 2021-22 financial year. Capital spending will
stimulate local employment, businesses and suppliers. The Budget is one that strikes a good
balance between ensuring Council continues to provide operational services and support to the
community and a capital spending program to provide much needed local infrastructure.

| commend the 2021-22 Budget to Council and the community.

John Bennie PSM

Chief Executive Officer

Budget 2021-22
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Budget process

Council Plan outcomes

The Budget is a rolling four-year plan that outlines the financial and non-financial resources that Council
requires to achieve the strategic objectives described in the Council Plan.

Basis of budget preparation

This section lists the budget processes to be undertaken in order to adopt the Budget in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) and Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2020 (the Regulations).

Under the Act, Council is required to prepare and adopt a Budget for each financial year and the
subsequent three financial years (section 94(1) of the Act).

The 2021-22 Budget, which is included in this report, is for the year 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022,
as well as the subsequent three financial years and is prepared in accordance with the Act and
Regulations. The budget includes financial statements being a Comprehensive Income Statement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Capital
Works. These statements have been prepared for the year ending 30 June 2021 in accordance with
the Act and Regulations and are consistent with the annual financial statements which are prepared
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The budget is required to include certain
information about the rates and charges that Council intends to levy as well as a range of other
information required by the Regulations which support the Act, such as the capital works program
to be undertaken, the human resources required, and other financial information Council requires
in order to make an informed decision about the adoption of the budget.

In advance of preparing the budget, officers firstly review and update Council's long-term financial
plan projections. Financial projections for ten years are included in Council's Long Term Financial
Plan (LTFP), which is the key medium to long-term financial plan produced by Council on a rolling
basis. The preparation of the budget, within this broader context, begins with officers preparing the
operating and capital components of the Budget during January and February. A draft budget is
then prepared, and various iterations are considered by Council at informal briefings during March
and April. A ‘proposed’ budget is prepared in accordance with the Act and submitted to Council in
April for approval ‘in principle’. Whilst not required under the Act, Council intends to give ‘public
notice’ that it intends to ‘adopt’ the budget and will make the budget available for inspection online
for four weeks. Council will then receive, hear and consider any public submissions on any
information contained in the budget before adoption of the budget by Council. The budget is required
to be adopted by 30 June.

The budget includes consideration of several long-term strategies to assist Council in considering
the budget in a proper financial management context.

Key dates for the Budget process:

Budget submitted to Council for approval “in principle” 26 April

Public notice advising of intention to adopt Budget 28 April

Budget available for public inspection and comment 28 April — 26 May

Public submission process undertaken April/May

Submissions considered by Council 10 June

Budget presented to Council for adoption 28 June
Budget 2021-22 Page 6
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Budget influences

This section sets out the key budget influences arising from the internal and external environment
within which Council operates.

External influences

The four years represented within the Budget are 2021-22 through to 2024-25. In preparing the
2021-22 budget, several external influences have been taken into consideration. These are outlined
below:

Location

Greater Dandenong encompasses an area of 129 square kilometres in Melbourne’s south-east,
approximately 24 kilometres from the central business district. It is bounded by Police Road in the
north, Dandenong Creek and South Gippsland Freeway to the east, Thompson Road in the south,
and by Westall and Springvale Roads to the west.

The suburbs of Greater Dandenong are Dandenong, Dandenong South, Bangholme, Springvale,
Springvale South, Noble Park, Noble Park North and Keysborough.

Neighbouring councils include Casey, Knox, Monash, Kingston and Frankston.

Greater Dandenong maintains over 35 sports reserves, 188 kilometres of bike and shared paths,
1,100 kilometres of footpaths, 152 playgrounds, 197 parks and 33 bushland areas.

Population

Greater Dandenong has a population of approximately 172,000 (2020 figure). This is forecast to
increase to an estimated total of 200,000 by 2031, largely as a result of residential developments in
Keysborough, central Dandenong and dispersed construction across the city.

Two thirds of the residents of Greater Dandenong were born overseas, making this the most
culturally diverse municipality in Victoria, with residents from 157 different birthplaces.

Reflecting its cultural diversity Greater Dandenong also has a wide diversity of spoken languages,
with two-thirds of residents speaking languages other than English in their homes. 17 per cent of
residents have limited fluency in the use of spoken English.

Housing

Rising housing costs coupled with low incomes among many Greater Dandenong residents have
caused increasing financial hardship for many local families. The cost of purchasing a home in this
city has risen much faster than income levels. In 2016, 54 per cent of residents own or are
purchasing their homes and 32 per cent of residents rent their accommodation, similar to the
metropolitan level.

Employment within Greater Dandenong

Approximately 97,000 people are employed in the City of Greater Dandenong.

Greater Dandenong provides 22,000 jobs in manufacturing for the region. This represents a 23 per
cent share of all jobs in the city, which is renowned as the manufacturing hub of Victoria.

Budget 2021-22 Page 7
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Education

Young people in Greater Dandenong experience relatively high rates of early school leaving and
unemployment. However, recent years have witnessed a rise in the number of young people
completing their secondary education.

While the level of participation by young people in university is slightly lower than the metropolitan
average, attendance at TAFE is substantially higher than the Victorian level.

44 per cent of residents hold a degree qualification.
COVID-19 pandemic

COVID-19 has presented a fast-evolving significant challenge to businesses, households, and the
economy worldwide. Council has acted in the interest of keeping our community, residents and
workforce safe.

The City of Greater Dandenong will need to continue to be responsive to the city’s changing needs
with the latest advice and guidance being received from State and Federal Governments in relation
to the management of COVID-19 (Coronavirus) pandemic.

Across the 2019-20 and 2020-21 financial years, the forecast estimate for the impact of the
pandemic is now north of $17 million. The impacts are a mix of decisions made by Council to
provide community relief and outcomes that are not under Council’s control. The Proposed Budget
2021-22 also includes a drop-in capital funding of around $2.3 million to fund impacts that will not
immediately cease (explained below)

Council assumes overall service levels will remain largely unchanged throughout the 4-year forward
projection period of this Budget. This Budget has been developed on the most current and best
available information but is subject to change due to the dynamic health and economic crisis created
by the global pandemic. It should be noted however that several key areas of Council revenue will
however continue to be impacted upon by the outcomes of the pandemic. Interest on investments
will be one of Council’s largest areas on ongoing financial impact with revenues forecast to be below
Council’s typical return by more than $1 million. Council has also seen declines in supplementary
rate growth and rental assumptions for Dandenong Market will also be impacted with an assumed
return to 80% of pre COVID-19 levels. Car parking revenue and fine income will also be well below
pre-COVID-19 levels with the adverse impact estimated at $2.3 million

The full impact of COVID-19 is still unknown and impact assessments on resource allocations, rates
and revenue-based services continue to be undertaken as economic activity returns to normal levels
post pandemic.

Rate cap, supplementary rates and property valuations

The Victorian State Government cap on the average property rate increase for 2021-22 has been
set at 1.50 per cent (2020-21 2.00 per cent).

The Valuer General of Victoria now conducts annual rateable property general valuations. This was
previously every two years.
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Supplementary rates are additional rates received after the budget is adopted each year, for the
part of the year when a property value increases in value (e.g. due to improvements made or change
in land class), or new residents become assessable. Importantly, supplementary rates recognise
that new residents require services on the day they move into Greater Dandenong and Council is
committed to providing these. Supplementary rates income is based on historical and forecast data
and is set at anticipated levels. Historically, Greater Dandenong has experienced a trend of high
supplementary rate growth, however, in recent years, this trend has declined.

Superannuation

Council has an ongoing obligation to fund any investment shortfalls in the Defined Benefits Scheme
— the Local Authorities Superannuation Fund Defined Benefit Plan (LASF DB). The last call on
Local Government was in the 2012-13 financial year where Council was required to pay $10.57
million to top up its share of the Defined Benefits Scheme.

The amount and timing of any liability is dependent on the global investment market. During 2020-
21 equity markets have improved significantly following the United States election and the
commencement of COVID-19 vaccinations around the world. However, there is a continuing sense
of unease and ongoing market volatility. The Vested Benefit Index (VBI) at 31 December 2020 for
the sub-plan was 109.6 per cent which satisfies superannuation prudential standards and is above
the fund’s nominated shortfall threshold (currently 97 per cent). Vision Super will continue to monitor
the plan’s financial position. At present the actuarial ratios are at a level that additional calls from
Local Government are not expected in the next 12 months.

Financial Assistance Grants

The largest source of government funding to Council is through the annual Victoria Local
Government Grants Commission (VLGGC) allocation. The overall state allocation is determined by
the Federal Financial Assistance grant. Council’s Financial Assistance grant allocation for the
2020-21 financial year actually decreased slightly from the prior year, which does not help to match
the costincreases of CPI. The 2021-22 forecast is set at a conservative economic outlook assuming
the same level of funding allocated in 2020-21.

Capital Grants

Council has been successful in applying for $5.1 million capital grant funding via Phase 2 of the
Local Roads Community Infrastructure (LRCI) program.

For a number of years, Greater Dandenong has benefited from millions of dollars in Federal
Government Roads to Recovery (R2R) funding to improve road safety and undertake local road
upgrades. The current R2R program commenced 1 July 2019 and will continue through to 30 June
2024. Council’s life of program allocation for the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2024 is a confirmed
$5.09 million. A total amount of $1.01 million has been allocated in 2021-22.

Consumer Price Index

Melbourne All Groups (CPI) increases on goods and services of 1.3 per cent through the year to
the December quarter 2020 (ABS). State-wide CPI is forecast to be 1.50 per cent for the 2021-22
year (Victorian Budget Papers 2020-21).

Cost Shifting

A continuation of cost shifting where Federal and State government grants do not increase by the
same percentage as Council’s cost of providing these services.
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Development Contributions

The rate of growth and flow of development contributions income depends on land sales and the
desire of developers to construct new developments within the municipality. Changes in this impact
on the level of non-monetary contributions received by Council.

An increase in maintenance costs of parks and gardens occurs due to continued trend of receiving
gifted open space assets from developers.

Waste, Recycling and Landfill Levy

Over the last 30 years, recycling has been considered a critical service experienced by all. In recent
years, the recycling industry has been through some challenging moments and events that are
disrupters on the global scale. These challenging events are still foreseeable into the future;
however, Greater Dandenong will continue to work closely with the State and Federal Governments
to make inroads in the recycling sector.

The Environment Protection Agency (EPA) regulation has a sustained impact on Council with
regards to compliance with existing and past landfill sites. Waste disposal costs are also impacted
by industry changes such as increasing EPA landfill levies and negotiation of contracts, e.g.
recycling sorting and acceptance.

The State Government Landfill Levy is set to increase from $65.90 in 2020-21, to $105.90 in 2021-
22 and further to $125.90 in 2022-23. This increase in landfill levy results in additional costs to
Council which are recovered via Council’'s waste service charge.

The waste service charge for 2021-22, incorporating kerbside collection and recycling, will increase
by an average 2.80 per cent or $12.00 (default waste charge). This increase in the waste charge
has been caused by higher recycling costs, an increase in the State Government landfill levy of over
30 per cent from 1 January 2021 and the introduction of Food Organics Garden Organics (FOGO).

Fire Services Property Levy (FSPL)

The FSPL will continue to be collected by Council on behalf of the State Government in accordance
with the Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012.

Internal influences

In addition to the external factors noted, there are several internal factors which also impact on the
setting of the 2021-22 Council Budget.

Service Planning

Council is committed to maintaining services to current standards (as a minimum) in the areas of
parks, roads and drainage maintenance. This will require Council to make a higher investment in
the ongoing renewal of these assets through its Capital Works Program.

Enterprise Agreement (EA)

The Enterprise Agreement 2018 commenced 1 July 2018 for a four-year term. This agreement
provides for a minimum of 2.25 percent or the rate cap whichever is higher. The financial impact of
the quantum of this increase results in an increase higher than the rate cap for 2021-22 (1.50 per
cent).
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Ongoing operational costs of capital works/asset construction

The consequential operational servicing expenditure for the Keysborough South Community Hub
which is due for completion in October 2022 has been factored into this Budget. Annual costs of
approximately $1 million have been included on a pro-rata basis in 2022-23 and full year allocation
thereafter.

Service Plans and Strategies - Planning for meeting community needs

Council's broad approach in fulfilling its long-term obligations to facilitate acceptable services for
the community is to plan and develop service strategies. These strategies:

. Describe the nature and extent of existing service and the infrastructure presently facilitating
the delivery of service.

. Identify plausible scenarios that could impact on service delivery.

. Establish key issues/challenges.

. Develop/review goals and objectives.

. Formulate and assess alternative strategic and policy responses.

. Evaluate and recommend preferred strategy and policy.

. Formulate action plans and programs to implement preferred strategy including proposals for
funding.

. Feed into the Asset Management Plan for the infrastructure group(s) that facilitates service
delivery.

Typical strategies include: Arts and Cultural Heritage Strategy, Regional Food Strategy,
Sustainability Strategy, Digital Strategy, Greater Dandenong Housing Strategy, Tourism Strategy
and Action Plan, Road Management Plan, Road Safety Strategy, Open Space Strategy, Sports
Facility Plan, Active Sport and Active Recreation Strategy, Playground Strategy, Economic
Development Strategy, Waste and Litter Strategy, Walking Strategy, Cycling Strategy and Ageing
is About Living Strategy and Action Plan.

Capital expenditure funding

This four-year Budget is based on a slight increase in capital works investment funded from
Council’'s operations of around $36 million in 2021-22 to $41 million in 2024-25. The increase is
due to the 2021-22 Budget including a $2.3 million drop in capital funding to fund COVID-19 related
impacts that have flowed through to the 2021-22 financial year.

It should be noted that the actual amount of capital expenditure will vary significantly from year to
year depending on capital grant revenue, loan funds and use of Council reserves. It is important to
note that the following graph is based on the amount of funding that Council can apply to capital
expenditure from its operating result. The figures are further subject to Council achieving savings
targets or successfully applying for a variation to the rate cap in future years.
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Impact of current year (2020-21) on the 2021-22 Budget

This section of the report highlights the impact that outcomes in 2020-21 have had on the 2021-22
Budget. The figures utilised in this section adjust the net operating result calculated in accordance
with accounting standards to include cash costs such as capital works and exclude non-cash
transactions such as depreciation, non-cash contributions and book value of assets sold to reach a
management accounting result.

The table below illustrates that Council is currently forecasting to complete 2020-21 with a surplus
outcome of $1.05 million. The 2020-21 Forecast has been subject to review particularly due to the
continuing impacts of COVID-19 pandemic and the final forecast cash result has been adjusted for
these impacts.

Forecast
Actual Budget

Description 2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance

$'000 $'000 $'000 %
Net operating result 23,697 31,405 7,708 32.5%
Add (less) cash costs notincluded in operating result
Capital expenditure 82,984 63,362 (19,622) (23.6%)
Loan repayments 3,255 3,372 117 3.6%
Loan proceeds - (6,120) (6,120) 100.0%
Repayment of lease liabilities 571 689 118 100.0%
Transfer from reserves (26,800) (11,734) 15,066 (56.2%)
Transfer to resenes 12,991 6,078 (6,913) (53.2%)
Sub total 73,001 55,647 (17,354) (23.8%)
Add (less) non-cash costs included in operating result
Depreciation 32,308 33,277 969 3.0%
Amortisation - intangible assets 60 60 - 0.0%
Amortisation - right of use assets 581 604 23 4.0%
Written down value of assets sold 1,237 301 (936) (75.7%)
Contributions - non-monetary (15,000) (10,000) 5,000 (33.3%)
Sub total 19,186 24,242 5,056 26.4%
Surplus (deficit) for the year (30,118) -
Accumulated surplus bought forward 31,169 -
Accumulated surplus bought forward 1,051

In respect of the 2020-21 full year forecast result, the current full year forecast of $30.12 million
represents a reduction in the deficit outcome (i.e. — a surplus of $1.05 million) compared to the
2020-21 Mid-Year Budget. Despite 2020-21 being an extraordinary financial year with the
pressures and impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, the forecast result currently predicts a cash
surplus. However, the current forecast review highlights many ups and downs in revenue and
expenditure and is explained further below.

The full year forecast result is the subject of an extensive review undertaken with departments
during the March quarter. Council’s 2020-21 initial financial position was heavily influenced by early
COVID-19 impacts and Council officers continue to closely monitor the impacts to our financial
position for the remainder of 2020-21. Whilst the current forecast position indicates a surplus result,
COVID-19 continues to cause unfavourable financial impacts in terms of reduced rental income and
reduced user fee and statutory fine income, etc. This has been largely offset by employee expense
savings across the organisation (including casuals and overtime), utility savings and general
administration costs across the organisation.
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Highlighted below are some of the emerging trends (favourable/unfavourable) in the 2020-21
forecast surplus of $1.05 million:

Favourable

. Employee costs savings of $436,000. Most of these savings occur in City Planning, Design
and Amenity ($545,000) and Corporate Services ($516,000). Partly offset by higher forecast
costs in Engineering Services ($265,000) and Non-Directorate ($130,000). Non-Directorate
includes a forecast increase due to predicted unfavourable movements in leave provisions
resulting from a higher level of annual leave hours held by staff. This has been softened by
lower fringe benefits tax payable due to a successful Australian Tax Office (ATO) ruling on
car parking fringe benefits tax.

. Utility cost savings across the organisation ($181,000) primarily water and electricity relating
to Council’s facilities (mainly Parks Services).

. Administration costs across the organisation ($448,000) mainly events ($151,000), fuel
($120,000) and postage/courier and storage costs ($61,000).

Unfavourable

. A forecast reduction in statutory fees and fines income across the organisation of $548,000
mainly due to lower building and planning compliance fines income, animal and parking
management fines income.

. Lower fees and charges of $343,000 primarily in building ($153,000) and car parking
($102,000).

. Lower asset sales ($160,000) — arising from slower vehicle turnover due to lower kilometres
travelled in Council vehicles. Primarily due to COVID-19 work from home arrangements.

. Spring Valley landfill recoveries ($864,000) — recoveries from a stakeholder council for
rehabilitation works is currently in dispute. Whilst the outcome is unknown, an appropriate
provision has been allowed for the 2020-21 forecast until further information comes to hand.

. Lower rental income ($387,000) across Council’s facilities including sporting pavilions, civic
facilities and car parking.

. Lower interest on investments returns further projected of ($98,000) largely due to the current
low interest rate environment impacted by COVID-19.

At this point, no forecast adjustments have been recognised in Waste Management as any savings
will be transferred to reserves at the end of the financial year.

Major 2021-22 Budget outcomes
The 2021-22 Draft Budget has been prepared on the following assumptions:

. Council rates are capped to 1.50 per cent as per the rate capping legislation.

. The default residential waste charge (including State Government landfill levy) will increase
by $12.00 (or 2.80 per cent) from $428.00 to $440.00. This increase is due primarily to higher
State Government landfill levy costs.

. Council’s total capital expenditure in 2021-22 is estimated to be $63.36 million with $36.20
million being funded from Council rate revenue. This represents an increase of $3.56 from
the 2020-21 Original Budget. Both the 2020-21 and 2021-22 years have included drops in
funding due to financial impacts relating to COVID-19 ($6.8 million in the Original 2020-21
Budget and $2.3 million in the Proposed Budget 2021-22).

. In 2021-22, Council will draw down $6.12 million in new borrowings (to part fund the
Keysborough South Community Hub major project) and repay $3.37 million of existing
borrowings.

. Council will maintain funding for road asset renewal with funds of $6.22 million budgeted for
in 2021-22 (partly funded by grant funding of $2.24 million).

. Council continues to record an underlying operational surplus in terms of the accounting
result.
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Economic Assumptions

In terms of the direct parameters upon which the 2021-22 Budget is based, the below table
highlights the broad escalation percentages in respect of key areas.

Description Notes Budget Projections
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

CPI forecast 1 1.50% 1.50% 2.00% 2.00%
Rate revenue cap 2 1.50% 1.50% 2.00% 2.00%
Fees and charges - Council 3 1.50% 1.50% 2.50% 2.50%
Fees and fines - statutory 3 0.00% 1.50% 2.00% 2.00%
Financial Assistance Grants funding 4 0.00% 0.00% 1.00% 1.00%
Grants and subsidies 4 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
Employee costs 5 2.25% 1.50% 2.00% 2.00%
Employee costs (incremental costs) 5 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50%
Electricity 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Street lighting 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
Water 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
Gas 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
Fuel 1.25% 1.50% 2.00% 2.00%
Notes:

1.

State-wide CPl is forecast to be 1.50 per cent for the 2021-22 year (Victorian Budget Papers
2020-21). CPIl in the following year is assumed to be 1.50 per cent and 2.00 per cent
thereafter.

Rates in the 2021-22 year are based on the forecast CPI of 1.50 per cent as directed by the
Minister Local Government under rate capping legislation. The remaining years (2022-23
to 2024-25) are based on the assumed CPI.

Conservative estimates have been applied to fees and charges in 2021-22 and 2022-23
due to COVID-19 and assumed after-effects. Fees and charges are generally linked to
labour cost increases as most services provided by Council have a significant labour
component. Where services do not include a labour cost component the inflation rate may
be used instead. In addition, considerations of community factors are required such as
encouraging use of a service and ability to pay. Statutory fees are set by legislation and
are frequently not indexed on an annual basis. Any parameter increase relates to an
assumed increase in volume. Council fees and charges are fully documented in Section 6.

Grants and subsidies have been budgeted with a conservative economic outlook at 1 per
cent over the next four years. The Financial Assistance grant funding has not been
incremented for the first two years and has been conservatively increased by 1 per cent in
the subsequent two years.

As per the Enterprise Agreement (EA) 2018 which expires 30 June 2022, a 2.25 per cent
salary increment applies in the 2021-22 financial year (plus an allowance for salary
relativities). The 2.25 per cent is higher than the declared rate cap of 1.5 per cent due to
the nominated minimum of 2.25 per cent in the EA. Council will be developing and adopting
a long-term Workforce Plan as part of the implementation of the new Local Government Act
2020, which will feed into long-term planning of required employee cost budget projections.
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1. Link to the Integrated Planning and Reporting
Framework

This section describes how the Budget links to the achievement of the Community Vision and
Council Plan within an overall integrated planning and reporting framework. This framework guides
the Council in identifying community needs and aspirations over the long term (Community Vision
(Imagine 2030) and Financial Plan), medium term (Council Plan, Workforce Plan, and Revenue and
Rating Plan) and short term (Budget) and then holding itself accountable (Annual Report).

1.1 Legislative Planning and Accountability Framework

The Budget is a rolling four-year plan that outlines the financial and non-financial resources that
Council requires to achieve the strategic objectives described in the Council Plan. The diagram
below depicts the integrated planning and reporting framework that applies to local government in
Victoria. At each stage of the integrated planning and reporting framework there are opportunities
for community and stakeholder input. This is important to ensure transparency and accountability
to both residents and ratepayers.

Source: Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions

Council prepared its first Community Plan in February 2009, which describes the vision held by the
community for the future of this City (Imagine 2030). Imagine 2030 articulates the community’s
vision, mission and values. It is a long-term plan which incorporates a range of aspirations, some
of which are in the domain of Council to address whilst others require Council to lobby on behalf of
their constituents.
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The Council Plan is prepared with reference to Council's long-term community plan and an Annual
Plan is developed each financial year which highlights key activities for the twelve-month period.
These activities provide specific information on how Council will deliver on its four-year priorities.

Council is currently working towards developing a Vision and new Council Plan, extensive
Community Consultation is being carried out to inform these documents. Until the new Council Plan
is in place (due October 2021), the 2021-22 Budget has been prepared on the existing Council Plan
format.

Key planning considerations
Service level planning

Although councils have a legal obligation to provide some services— such as animal management,
local roads, food safety and statutory planning—most council services are not legally mandated,
including some services closely associated with councils, such as libraries, building permits and
sporting facilities. Further, over time, the needs and expectations of communities can change.
Therefore, councils need to have robust processes for service planning and review to ensure all
services continue to provide value for money and are in line with community expectations. In doing
so, councils should engage with communities to determine how to prioritise resources and balance
service provision against other responsibilities such as asset maintenance and capital works.
Community consultation needs to be in line with a council’s adopted Community Engagement Policy
and Public Transparency Policy.

1.2 Our purpose

QOur vision

Greater Dandenong is a safe, vibrant city of opportunity for all — to visit, work, live and play.

Our values

At the City of Greater Dandenong, we have adopted a set of values we call ‘REACH’ which define
who we are and how we interact with each other and our community. REACH stands for:

e Respectful

e Engaged

e Accountable

e Creative

e Honest
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Strategic objectives

Strategic Objective Description Theme

1.

A vibrant, connected
and safe
community.

Council acknowledges that creating a healthy and
safe community is at the core of everything we do.
We make a commitment to the social model of health
as a framework to inform our policy making, our
service planning and delivery. These principles are
also reflected in our Community Wellbeing Plan.

A creative city that
respects and
embraces its
diversity.

The cultural diversity of Greater Dandenong is the
defining point of difference for this city. There are
many aspects of diversity in additon to
multiculturalism.  Diversity of culture, ability, age,
gender, faith and sexuality are all acknowledged and
considered in the development and delivery of our
services.

People

A healthy, liveable
and sustainable city.

Council is committed to a proactive and collaborative
approach to climate change. We have a
Sustainability Strategy that provides guidance on
many key priorities, such as reducing waste,
increasing transport options, improving our built
environment and protecting our natural environment.

A city planned for
the future.

The appearance and amenity of the city defines its
space. Council strives for best practice urban design
and planning to create a city for the future that has
high quality amenity for current and future residents,
and appropriate levels of development. Planning and
development within the city are regulated through the
Greater Dandenong Planning Scheme which sets out
the vision for the city through zoning, style and type of
development, and regulatory functions.

Place

A diverse and
growing economy.

As outlined in Council’s long-term strategy “Achieving
Greater Dandenong’s Potential - A Local Economic
and Employment Development Strategy for our City”:
Greater Dandenong will be a place where people of
all ages and backgrounds can reach their potential,
gain the skills and education they need for success in
life, and be part of a prosperous economy where all
trade, manufacturing and business activity flourishes.

An open and
effective Council.

Council is committed to proactive engagement with
residents to ensure that communication about all of
council’s services, planning activities and decisions
are accessible to everyone. Community input into
decision making is actively encouraged through a
range of consultation opportunities throughout the
year.

Opportunity
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2. Services and Service Performance Indicators

This section provides a description of the services and initiatives to be funded in the Budget for
the 2021-22 year and how these will contribute to achieving the strategic objectives outlined in

the Council Plan.

It also describes several initiatives and service performance outcome

indicators for key areas of Council’'s operations. Council is required by legislation to identify
major initiatives, initiatives and service performance outcome indicators in the Budget and
report against them in their Annual Report to support transparency and accountability. The
relationship between these accountability requirements in the Council Plan, the Budget and the

Annual Report is shown below.

[ Strategic objective Services [ Indicators [outcome) I'
~—
[ Strategicindicators Initiatives [ Major initiatives
Strategic objective - Services Indicators [outcome)
Strategicindicators Initiatives Major initiatives WErnance
- overnance
- management checklist
[ Strategic objective [ Indicators [outcome)
~—
-
[ Strategicindicators [ Major initiatives Performance
statement
| Strategic objecti c | Indicators (outcome) Service indicators [outcome)
== I
| Strategicindicators | Major initiatives Fll"al"._\a|ll"\.l_at c
Sustainable capacity indicators

Source: Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions
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2.1 Theme — People

Forecast
Actual Actual
Service area Description of services provided 2019-20 2020-21
$'000 $'000
Community This function provides the oversight and Income - - -
Services leadership of the provision of Community Expenditure (423) (734) (744)
Executive Senvices to the municipality. Also Surplus/(deficit) (423) (734) (744)
includes an operational budget to operate
the new community precincts (Springvale
Community Hub and Keysborough South
Community Hub).
Community The Arts, Culture and Libraries business Income 1,799 1,469 1,964
Arts, Cultural  unit supports the management of cultural ~ Expenditure (9,341)  (9,888) (10,609)
and Libraries  venues, the Drum Theatre, festivals and Surplus/(deficit) (7,542)  (8,419)  (8,645)
events, public art, cultural development
and cultural planning. Library senices
provide access to a wide range of
information for all ages and cultures in a
range of formats and locations and are
committed to lifelong leaming and self-
improvement opportunities. Branches
include Springvale, Dandenong and online.
Community This department focuses on developing Income 10,895 10,775 9,084
Wellbeing and supporting a range of initiatives and Expenditure (15,350) (20,029) (15,239)
senices to enhance the health and Surplus/(deficit) (4,455) (9,254) (6,155)
wellbeing of families. This includes family
day care, family support senices,
kindergarten and child care committee
support, preschool field officer program,
‘Best Start' and early years projects,
immunisation, festivals and events,
maternal and child health, parenting
programs and youth seniices.
Community Focuses on community advocacy, leisure  Income 577 445 734
Development, planning, sport and recreation programs Expenditure (7,941)  (9,348) (11,162)
Sport and and community grant funding. Surplus/(deficit) ~ (7,364)  (8,903) (10,428)
Recreation
Community Community Care provides senices and Income 7,921 8,300 9,909
Care programs to assist older people and Expenditure (12,909) (12,817) (14,090)
people with a disability to remain living in Surplus/(deficit) (4,988) (4,517) (4,181)
the community including home based and
centre based senvices, specialised
community transport and support for clubs
and groups within the city.
Regulatory Provides compliance, education and Income 9,272 6,490 8,568
Services enforcement functions related to animal Expenditure (7,551) (7,974)  (9,069)
management, fire prevention, local laws, Surplus/(deficit) 1,721 (1,484) (501)
parking management, planning
compliance, public safety and security,
litter prevention and school crossings.
TOTAL PEOPLE - Surplus/(deficit) (23,051) (33,311) (30,654)
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Strategic Objective 1 - A vibrant, connected and safe community.

Major Initiatives

1)
2)
3)
4)

5)
6)

7

Implement Council’s Reconciliation Plan 2020-2023.

Develop Library Strategy Action Plan 2021-2023.

Continue to develop and implement an Anti-Poverty Collective Impact program.

Work with the State Government, and the Material Aid Consortium through the COVID-19
response.

Develop a new Road Safety Strategy for Greater Dandenong.

Provide ongoing funds for road safety treatments to address priority locations, where the
greatest road safety risks are identified.

Implement the Active Transport Infrastructure Priority Program - Improving pedestrian and
cycling infrastructure.

Other Initiatives

8)
9)
10)
11)

Implement the Make Your Move Physical Activity Strategy.

Continue to develop and implement a plan to repurpose the Precinct Energy Plant building.
Implement year one of the Springvale Community Hub Action Plan 2020-2022.

Review options for a digital collections management system (CMS) for the management of
the Cultural Heritage Collections.

Strategic Objective 2: A creative city that respects and embraces its diversity

Major Initiatives

12) Deliver the new Greater Dandenong Gallery of Art.

13) Develop a new Arts and Cultural Heritage Strategy.

14) Undertake the Future Directions for Community Transport Project.

15) Analyse the Commonwealth Government response to the recommendations of the Royal
Commission into Aged Care Quality and Safety as to the ramifications for City of Greater
Dandenong older residents and for Council's role as a provider of Commonwealth
Government funded Home Care Services.

Initiatives

16) Implement a range of art exhibitions, performances and cultural programs.

17) Implement ongoing public art outcomes throughout our city.

18) Develop initiatives to support creative development opportunities for local education
professionals.

19) In partnership with Chisholm TAFE, Community Care will host 20 traineeships to local job
seekers in Certificate Il in Individual Support (Ageing Home and Community) during the 2021-
22 financial year.
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2.2 Theme — Place

Forecast
Actual Actual
Service area Description of services provided 2019-20 2020-21
$'000 $'000
Business, This function is focused on the built and Income 9 - -
Engineering natural environment and provides the Expenditure (398) (416) (407)
and Major owersight of the Engineering and Surplus/(deficit) (389) (416) (407)
Projects Infrastructure functions of Council, as well
Executive as Council's major activity centres, place
making, revitalisation, economic
development, investment attraction and
future growth.
Infrastructure  Responsible for waste collection senices, Income 536 1,845 419
Services and Spring Valley landfill maintenance and Expenditure (28,199) (35,015) (32,344)
Planning rehabilitation, fleet management, asset Surplus/(deficit)  (27,663) (33,170) (31,925)
management and strategic asset
planning.
* Please note this Service area excludes
waste income, fleet sale proceeds and cost
of fleet sold.
Roads Responsible for the maintenance of the Income 46 1 12
city's road, drainage and footpath network. Expenditure (6,012) (5,833) (6,242)
Road maintenance is a key function of Surplus/(deficit) ~ (5,966)  (5,822)  (6,230)
Council, funding the ongoing upkeep of
local roads.
Parks The Parks Senvice unit maintains the City  Income 924 472 115
of Greater Dandenong's parks and public  Expenditure (12,704) (14,048) (14,083)
open spaces in order to improve the Surplus/(deficit)  (11,780) (13,576) (13,968)
health and wellbeing of the community,
provide accessible, usable open spaces
for residents and improve the value of
assets within the municipality.
Building Building Maintenance senvices cover Income 24 19 19
Maintenance  everyday building issues and helps Expenditure (7,932) (9,041) (8,886)
maintain other Council properties and Surplus/(deficit) (7,908) (9,022) (8,867)
structures, including bus shelters, fencing
and building lighting. Also includes
nominated building demolitions.
Transport and  This unit is responsible for the long term Income 1,219 1,258 1,330
Civil planning and advocacy of Council's Expenditure (2,165)  (2,089) (2,139)
Development  transport network, asset protection and Surplus/(deficit) (946) (831) (809)
civil development and design. The unit
provides engineering input to planning and
development and civil work applications.
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Forecast

Actual Actual Budget
Service area Description of services provided 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
$'000 $'000 $'000
City Planning, This function provides the oversight of the  Income 233 - -
Design and planning, development, building and Expenditure (482) (474) (470)
Amenity regulatory senices activities. Also Surplus/(deficit) (249) (474) (470)
Executive includes Level Crossing Removal Project.
Building and Building and Compliance Senvices Income 1,658 1,936 2,465
Compliance maintain standards of amenity, habitation  Expenditure (3,345) (3,798) (3,868)
Services and safety in buildings. The unit provides Surplus/(deficit) (1,687) (1,862)  (1,403)
senices including building inspections,
enforcement of safety standards, advice
and consultation on building regulations
issues and issuing of building permits.
This unit is also responsible for
environmental health and food legislation.
Planning and  This unit provides statutory, strategic, Income 1,601 1,723 1,905
Design design and sustainability planning Expenditure (4,824) (5,382) (5,475)
senvices to the city as well as monitoring Surplus/(deficit) (3,223) (3,659)  (3,570)
and enforcement of planning legislation
and permissions.
City The project delivery team performs a Income - - =
Improvement  project management function with the Expenditure (2,320) (2,519) (2,471)
primary purpose of delivering Council's Surplus/(deficit) ~ (2,320)  (2,519)  (2,471)
Capital Works program associated with
its roads, drains, facilities and open
space.
Major Projects Responsible for coordinating the planning, Income 119 141 81
advocacy / funding and development of Expenditure (270) (557) (456)
major projects that provide social, Surplus/(deficit) (151) (416) (375)
community and economic benefits for
Greater Dandenong in line with the
strategic priorities of Council. Also,
includes Team 11 which was the working
title of a bid to bring an A-League Team to
South East Melbourne. This bid process
has now closed, however, the project
concept will continue in 2021-22.
TOTAL PLACE - Surplus/(deficit) (62,282) (71,767) (70,495)
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Strategic Objective 3: A healthy, liveable and sustainable city
Major Initiatives

20) Complete the Open Space Contributions Plan

21) Commence the Noble Park Activity Centre Structure Plan Planning Scheme Amendment
22) Commence the Environmentally Sustainable Design 2.0 Planning Scheme Amendment
23) Deliver Council's Capital Works Program.

24) Implement Year four of the Urban Tree Strategy 2018-28

Initiatives

25) Finalise development and, implement the Biodiversity Action Plan

26) In partnership with the Metropolitan Waste Resource and Recovery Group, participate in the
procurement for Advanced Waste Processing Services and Recycling Receival and Sort
Services

27) Complete the Community Gardens Policy

Strategic Objective 4: A city planned for the future
Major Initiatives

28) Commence construction of the Keysborough South Community Hub

29) Commence construction of the NPAC Stage 1 Development

30) Finalise a Multi Modal Transport Infrastructure Plans for Activity Centres and NEIC

31) Deliver the Springvale Boulevard construction for stages 1 and 2, including ongoing
business support.

32) Implementation of the Noble Park Revitalisation program in partnership with Office of
Suburban Development.

Other Initiatives
33) Advocacy pertaining to the Foster Street Precinct Masterplan in partnership with

Development Victoria - next phase of Revitalising Central Dandenong.
34) Construct stage 1 of the Vanity Lane pedestrian link in central Dandenong
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2.3 Theme — Opportunity

Forecast
Actual  Actual
Service area Description of services provided 2019-20 2020-21
$'000 $'000
Office of the The Office of the Chief Executive (CEO)  Income 1 - -
Chief Executive has overall responsibility for the Expenditure (713) (779) (703)
operations of the organisation, and Surplus/(deficit) (712) (779) (703)

carriage of the Strategic Risk Register.
Each member of the executive
management team reports to the CEO.

Corporate Corporate Senices is responsible for Income - - -
Services Council business, financial planning, Expenditure (596) (596) (612)
Executive budgets, rates, and the systems used to  Surplus/(deficit) (596) (596) (612)

manage and administer the organisation.
Another key role is to provide Councillor
support and governance senices for
Council decision making and
representation. Communications,
community consultation and corporate
planning are also coordinated by the
directorate.

Media, The Media and Communications unit is Income 637 73 853
Communications, responsible for all media management, Expenditure (5,111)  (5,141) (5,912)
Customer marketing and communications Surplus/(deficit)  (4,474)  (5,068)  (5,059)
Service and campaigns and activities, web

Civic Facilities  management, print shop senvices,
community engagement and corporate
planning and reporting. The Customer
Seniice unit is responsible for the
corporate call centre and three face to
face customer senice centres. The
Civic and Community Facilities unit
manages a diverse range of facilities for
use or hire by Council and the

community.

Governance Governance is responsible for the overall  Income 1,530 1,508 2,749
governance of the organisation and the Expenditure (2,863) (3,013) (3,210)
management of Council's commercial Surplus/(deficit) (1,333)  (1,505) (461)

property portfolio. The unit is also
responsible for the management,
storage and disposal of corporate
records to support business
transactions and for evidentiary
purposes. Also includes return from
Dandenong Market.
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Forecast
Actual  Actual
Service area Description of services provided 2019-20 2020-21
$'000 $'000
Information The Information Technology unit is Income 13 - -
Technology responsible for the provision of cost- Expenditure (4,390) (5,042) (5,470)
effective information and Surplus/(deficity ~ (4,377)  (5,042)  (5,470)
telecommunication solutions to staff and
councillors.
People and Responsible for supporting the human Income 410 100 7
Procurement resource capital within the organisation.  Expenditure (4,955)  (5,100)  (5,443)
Services This function also includes occupational  Surplus/(deficity ~ (4,545)  (5,000)  (5,366)

health and safety, purchasing and
procurement systems, industrial
relations, professional development,
contract management, insurance and
risk management and continuous

improvement.
Economic The Economic Development team Income 9 2 6
Development markets the city as a business Expenditure (1,028) (1,307) (1,385)
destination, facilitates business Surplus/(deficit) ~ (1,019)  (1,305)  (1,379)

attraction, investment and employment
creation, supports existing businesses
and measures and monitors the local
and regional economy to enhance the
economic prosperity of the city. This
area also promotes the city's cultural
precincts and coordinates the cultural

tours.
South East Through its unique and collaborative Income 270 180 165
Business network models, SEBN brings people Expenditure (1,058) (962) (757)
Networks (SEBN) and companies together to protect the Surplus/(deficit) (788) (782) (592)

economic viability of the region by
ensuring a stronger, more resilient and
globally engaged business community.
SEBN promotes the role of women in
business and the development and
integration of our diverse community into
the workplace.

Place Making The department leads and coordinates Income 32 616 6
and the revitalisation of the Dandenong, Expenditure (1,066)  (1,953) (1,231)
Revitalisation Springvale and Noble Park activity Surplus/(deficit) ~ (1,034)  (1,337)  (1,225)

centres through the stewardship of
property development, infrastructure
planning, stakeholder engagement and
place making.
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Forecast
Actual Actual
Service area Description of services provided 2019-20 2020-21
$'000 $'000
Financial Financial Senices exists to enable Income 569 353 323
Services Council to comply with statutory Expenditure (3,027) (2,867) (2,961)

requirements, provide strategic financial  Surplus/(deficit) (2,458) (2,514)  (2,638)
direction, undertake essential business

processes and support the organisation

with financial assistance and advice.

Property Revenue includes the

administration of rates and valuation

senvices.

TOTAL OPPORTUNITY - Surplus/(deficit) (21,336) (23,928) (23,505)

Strategic Objective 5: A diverse and growing economy
Major Initiatives

35) Implementation of the Better Approvals project.

36) Development and implementation of an investment attraction framework.

37) Deliver the Community Revitalisation Program and associated project activity, including
One Percent program.

38) In partnership with South East Local Learning and Employment Network (SELLEN) deliver
key education-industry event 'Lunch with the Winners'.

39) Facilitate and deliver major charity fund-raising event Take a Swing for Charity Golf Day
with various industry partners.

Other Initiatives

40) Manage and Chair Greater Dandenong Regional Employment Taskforce.

41) Maintain delivery of multiple networks/common interest groups that strengthen knowledge
and capability for both the manufacturing sector and women in business.

42) Develop a series of local and international specialist speakers to deliver new thinking on
global issues and trends, for example, COVID-induced.

Strategic Objective 6: An open and effective Council

Major Initiatives

43) Update Legislative Compliance program across the organisation to align with Local
Government Act 2020 and new Compliance Policy.

Initiatives

44) Manage the effective leasing of Council's commercial property portfolio.

45) Develop organisation-wide Conflict of Interest framework (policy).

46) Assist implementation of outstanding legislative requirements under the Local Government
Act 2020.
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2.4 Performance statement

The service performance outcome indicators detailed in the following section will be reported on
within the Performance Statement which is prepared at the end of the year as required by section
98 of the Act and included in the 2021-22 Annual Report. The Performance Statement will also
include reporting on prescribed indicators of financial performance (outlined in section 5) and
sustainable capacity, which are not included in this budget report. The full set of prescribed
performance indicators are audited each year by the Victorian Auditor General who issues an audit
opinion on the Performance Statement. The major initiatives detailed in the preceding pages will
be reported in the Annual Report in the form of a statement of progress in the report of operations.

2.5 Service Performance Outcome Indicators

Service Indicator | Performance Measure Computation

Governance | Satisfaction Satisfaction with Council Community satisfaction rating
decisions. (Community out of 100 with the
satisfaction rating out of 100 performance of Council in
with how Council has making decisions in the
performed in making interest of the community.
decisions in the interest of the
community).

Statutory Decision Council planning decisions [Number of VCAT decisions

planning making upheld at VCAT. (Percentage | that did not set aside
of planning application Council’s decision in relation
decisions subject to review by | to a planning application /
VCAT and that were not set Number of VCAT decisions in
aside). relation to planning

applications] x 100

Roads Satisfaction Satisfaction with sealed local | Community satisfaction rating
roads. (Community out of 100 with how Council
satisfaction rating out of 100 has performed on the
with how Council has condition of sealed local
performed on the condition of | roads.
sealed local roads).

Libraries Participation Active library borrowers. [The sum of the number of
(Percentage of the population | active library borrowers in the
that are active library last 3 financial years / The
borrowers). sum of the population in the

last 3 financial years] x 100

Waste Waste Kerbside collection waste [Weight of recyclables and

collection diversion diverted from landfill. green organics collected from
(Percentage of garbage, kerbside bins / Weight of
recyclables and green garbage, recyclables and
organics collected from green organics collected from
kerbside bins that is diverted kerbside bins] x 100
from landfill).

Aquatic Utilisation Utilisation of aquatic facilities. | Number of visits to aquatic

Facilities (Number of visits to aquatic facilities / Population
facilities per head of
population).
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Service Indicator | Performance Measure Computation

Animal Health and Animal management Number of successful animal

Management | safety prosecutions. (Percentage of | management prosecutions /
animal management Total number of animal
prosecutions which are management prosecutions
successful).

Food safety | Health and Critical and major non- [Number of critical non-

safety compliance outcome compliance outcome

notifications. (Percentage of | notifications and major non-
critical and major non- compliance outcome
compliance outcome notifications about a food
notifications that are followed | premises followed up /
up by Council) Number of critical non-

compliance outcome
notifications and major non-
compliance outcome
notifications about food
premises] x100

Maternal and | Participation Participation in the MCH [Number of children who
Child Health service. (Percentage of attend the MCH service at
children enrolled who least once (in the financial
participate in the MCH year) / Number of children
service) enrolled in the MCH service]
x100
Maternal and | Participation Participation in the MCH [Number of Aboriginal children
Child Health service by Aboriginal children. | who attend the MCH service
(Percentage of Aboriginal at least once (in the financial
children enrolled who year) / Number of Aboriginal
participate in the MCH children enrolled in the MCH
service) service] x100
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2.6 Reconciliation with budgeted operating result

2021-22
Surplus/  Expenditure
Service area (Deficit)
$'000 $'000
People (30,654) (60,913) 30,259
Place (70,495) (76,841) 6,346
Opportunity (23,505) (27,684) 4,179
Total services (124,654) (104,525) 10,525
Non-attributable expenditure
Depreciation (33,277)
Amortisation - right of use assets (604)
Amortisation - intangible assets (60)
Borrowing costs (2,802)
Interest charges - leases (22)
Written down value of assets sold/scrapped (301)
Other non attributable * (1,590)
Total non-attributable expenditure (38,656)
Surplus/(Deficit) before funding sources (163,310)
Funding sources
Rates and charges 132,936
Waste charge revenue 23,317
Financial Assistance Grants 12,066
Interest earnings 761
Asset sales 704
Contributions - non-monetary 10,000
Contributions - monetary 4,935
Capital grant funding 9,996
Total funding sources 194,715
Surplus for the year 31,405

* Other non-attributable includes bank charges, external audit fees, annual leave and long service leave
provisions and fire services levy payable on Council owned properties.
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3. Financial Statements

This section presents information in regard to the Financial Statements and Statement of Human
Resources. The budget information for the year 2021-22 has been supplemented with projections
to 2024-25.

This section includes the following financial statements prepared in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

Comprehensive Income Statement
Balance Sheet

Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Capital Works
Statement of Human Resources

An additional statement - ‘Conversion to Cash Result’ is also provided after the Comprehensive
Income Statement.
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Forecast
Actual Budget Projections
2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Income
Rates and charges 4.1.1 151,880 156,253 159,555 164,007 168,496
Statutory fees and fines 4.1.2 6,591 8,227 9,674 9,894 10,092
User fees 4.1.3 5,648 7,972 8,971 9,213 9,449
Grants - operating 4.1.4 32,084 30,551 29,801 29,926 30,225
Grants - capital 4.1.4 14,488 9,996 2,518 826 -
Contributions - monetary 4.1.5 4,059 4,935 3,045 2,000 2,000
Contributions - non-monetary 4.1.5 15,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Net gain on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment 290 403 405 390 467
Other income 4.1.6 5,696 7,125 7,772 7,996 8,411
Total income 235,736 235,462 231,741 234,252 239,140
Expenses
Employee costs 4.1.7 90,105 86,802 86,977 88,937 91,282
Materials and senvices 4.1.8 77,474 74,566 73,443 75,414 75,498
Depreciation 4.1.9 32,308 33,277 33,943 34,621 35,314
Amortisation - intangible assets 4.1.10 60 60 4 - -
Amortisation - right of use assets 4111 581 604 617 635 654
Bad and doubtful debts 1,365 1,568 1,503 1,578 1,656
Borrowing costs 2,924 2,802 2,730 3,025 3,248
Finance costs - leases 21 22 23 24 25
Other expenses 4.1.12 7,201 4,356 4,382 4,460 5,235
Total expenses 212,039 204,057 203,622 208,694 212,912
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 23,697 31,405 28,119 25,558 26,228

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to

surplus or deficit in future periods:

Net asset revaluation increment (decrement) - - - - -
Total comprehensive result 23,697 31,405 28,119 25,558 26,228
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Conversion to Cash Result
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Forecast
Actual Budget Projections

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Net operating result 23,697 31,405 28,119 25,558 26,228

Add (less) cash costs not included in
operating result

Capital expenditure 82,984 63,362 65,619 66,250 41,820
Loan repayments 3,255 3,372 4,083 5,505 6,970
Loan proceeds - (6,120) (15,000) (15,000) -

Repayment of lease liabilities 571 689 710 731 753
Transfer from reserves (26,800) (11,734) (9,323) (12,174) (2,615)
Transfer to reserves 12,991 6,078 6,895 5,792 5,616
Sub total 73,001 55,647 52,984 51,104 52,544

Add (less) non-cash costs included in
operating result

Depreciation 32,308 33,277 33,943 34,621 35,314
Amortisation - intangible assets 60 60 4 - -
Amortisation - right of use assets 581 604 617 635 654
Written down value of assets sold 1,237 301 301 290 348
Contributions - non-monetary (15,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000) (10,000)
Sub total 19,186 24,242 24,865 25,546 26,316
Surplus (deficit) for the year (30,118) - - - -
Accumulated surplus brought forward 31,169 - - - -
Accumulated surplus brought forward 1,051 - - - -
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Balance Sheet

For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Forecast
Actual

2020-21
$'000

Budget
2021-22
$'000

2022-23
$'000

Projections
2023-24
$'000

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables
Property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment

Investment property

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Unearned income
Provisions
Interest-bearing liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Trust funds and deposits
Provisions

Interest-bearing liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Accumulated surplus
Asset revaluation resenve
Resenes

Total equity

4.21

4.2.1

4.2.3

4.2.2

4.2.3

422

114,785
26,810
2,815
144,410

305

2,256,411
11,814
988

64
2,269,582
2,413,992

21,281
8,425
40,340
19,659
3,372
571
93,648

311

892
53,264
442
54,909
148,557

2,265,435

942,085
1,269,823
53,527
2,265,435

112,384
28,013
2,872
143,269

305

2,296,195
11,814
1,073

4
2,309,391
2,452,660

24,965
8,925
40,340
19,983
4,083
571
98,867

31

900
55,300
442
56,953
155,820

2,296,840

979,146
1,269,823
47,871
2,296,840

110,274
29,180
2,929
142,383

305

2,337,570
11,814
1,166
2,350,855
2,493,238

25,170
9,425
40,340
20,810
5,505
571
101,821

31

909
64,796
442
66,458
168,279

2,324,959

1,009,693
1,269,823

45,443
2,324,959

104,378
30,480
2,988
137,846

305

2,378,909
11,814
1,262
2,392,290
2,530,136

25,641
9,925
40,340
21,673
6,970
571
105,120

31

920
72,826
442
74,499
179,619

2,350,517

1,041,633
1,269,823

39,061
2,350,517

102,970
31,837
3,047
137,854

305

2,395,067
11,814
1,361
2,408,547
2,546,401

21,235
10,425
40,340
22,575
7,204
571
102,350

31

932
65,621
442
67,306
169,656

2,376,745

1,064,860
1,269,823

42,062
2,376,745
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total surplus reserve reserves
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2021
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,241,738 904,579 1,269,823 67,336
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 23,697 23,697 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) - - - -
Transfers to other reserves - (12,991) - 12,991
Transfers from other reserves - 26,800 - (26,800)
Balance at end of the financial year 2,265,435 942,085 1,269,823 53,527
2022
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,265,435 942,085 1,269,823 53,527
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 31,405 31,405 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) - - - -
Transfers to other reserves 4.31 - (6,078) - 6,078
Transfers from other reserves 4.31 - 11,734 - (11,734)
Balance at end of the financial year 4.3.2 2,296,840 979,146 1,269,823 47,871
2023
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 2,296,840 979,146 1,269,823 47,871
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 28,119 28,119 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) - - - -
Transfers to other reserves - (6,895) - 6,895
Transfers from other reserves - 9,323 - (9,323)
Balance at end of the financial year 2,324,959 1,009,693 1,269,823 45,443
2024
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 2,324,959 1,009,693 1,269,823 45,443
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 25,558 25,558 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) - - - -
Transfers to other reserves - (5,792) - 5,792
Transfers from other reserves - 12,174 - (12,174)
Balance at end of the financial year 2,350,517 1,041,633 1,269,823 39,061
2025
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 2,350,517 1,041,633 1,269,823 39,061
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 26,228 26,228 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) - - - -
Transfers to other reserves - (5,616) - 5,616
Transfers from other reserves - 2,615 - (2,615)
Balance at end of the financial year 2,376,745 1,064,860 1,269,823 42,062
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges

Statutory fees and fines

User fees

Grants - operating

Grants - capital

Contributions - monetary

Interest received

Trust funds and deposits taken

Other receipts

Net GST refund

Employee costs

Materials and senices

Trust funds and deposits repaid

Other payments

Net cash provided by operating activities 4.4.1

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure,

plant and equipment

Proceeds (payments) for investments

Net cash used in investing activities 442

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid - lease liability

Repayment of lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities 4.4.3

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
financial year

Forecast

Actual
2020-21

$'000
Inflows
(Outflows)

150,946
4,324
6,213

34,704
14,488
4,059
700
27,052
5,649
12,986

(82,984)

1,527
2,000
(79,457)

(2,924)

(3.255)
(21)
(571)
(6,771)

(39,778)
154,563

114,785

Budget Projections
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows) (Outflows)

155,936 159,322 163,694 168,180

6,084 7,562 7,672 7,754
8,441 9,527 9,773 10,018
32,400 31,575 31,700 32,017
9,996 2,518 826 -
4,935 3,045 2,000 2,000
758 797 1,197 1,497
28,052 28,552 29,052 29,552
7,070 7,740 7,544 7,684
10,948 10,978 11,244 8,824
(85981)  (86,119)  (88,041)  (90,346)
(85.273)  (87,276)  (89,244)  (91,776)
(27,552)  (28,052)  (28,552)  (29,052)
(4,792) (4,820) (4,906) (5,759)
61,022 55,349 53,959 50,593

(63,362)  (65619)  (66,250)  (41,820)

704 706 680 815

(62,658) (64,913) (65,570) (41,005)

(2,802) (2,730) (3,025) (3,248)
6,120 15,000 15,000 -
(3,372) (4,083) (5.505) (6.970)
(22) (23) (24) (25)
(689) (710) (731) (753)
(765) 7,454 5,715 (10,996)
(2,401) (2,110) (5,896) (1,408)

114,785 112,384 110,274 104,378

112,384 110,274 104,378 102,970
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Statement of Capital Works
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

Forecast
Actual Budget Projections
Notes 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Property
Land 8,055 - - - -
Total land 8,055 - - - -
Buildings 25,369 34,448 34,618 36,202 12,608
Leasehold improvements 537 350 - - -
Total buildings 25,906 34,798 34,618 36,202 12,608
Total property 33,961 34,798 34,618 36,202 12,608
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 2,923 2,837 2,962 3,002 3,017
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 426 80 314 285 351
Computers and telecommunications 1,457 500 476 192 425
Library books 850 878 885 896 903
Total plant and equipment 5,656 4,295 4,637 4,375 4,696
Infrastructure
Roads 19,165 8,961 16,040 15,681 13,545
Bridges - 100 100 450 155
Footpaths and cycleways 1,200 2,130 1,625 1,665 1,680
Drainage 1,045 2,400 1,350 1,708 1,568
Recreational, leisure and community
facilities 3,595 3,295 3,756 2,671 4,090
Parks, open space and streetscapes 16,385 7,277 2,977 3,065 3,298
Off street car parks 1,977 106 516 433 180
Total infrastructure 43,367 24,269 26,364 25,673 24,516
Total capital works expenditure 4.5.1 82,984 63,362 65,619 66,250 41,820
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 23,038 15,451 11,250 11,280 12,246
Asset renewal expenditure 25,202 19,984 28,216 24,545 23,220
Asset upgrade expenditure 31,242 23,727 26,153 30,425 6,354
Asset expansion expenditure 3,502 4,200 - - -
Total capital works expenditure 4.5.1 82,984 63,362 65,619 66,250 41,820
Funding sources represented by:
Grants 14,488 9,996 2,518 826 -
Contributions 2,058 2,935 1,045 - -
Council cash 48,903 36,201 39,706 40,174 41,170
Borrowings - 6,120 15,000 15,000 -
Resenes 17,535 8,110 7,350 10,250 650
Total capital works expenditure 4.5.1 82,984 63,362 65,619 66,250 41,820
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City of Greater Dandenong

Statement of Human Resources
For the four years ending 30 June 2025

In addition to the financial resources to be consumed over the planning period, Council will also
A summary of Council's

anticipated human resource requirements for the years 2021-22 to 2024-25 is shown below.

consume non-financial resources, in particular human resources.

Forecast
2020-21

Staff expenditure
Employee costs - operating
Total staff expenditure

Staff numbers
Employees
Total staff numbers

Budget
2021-22

$'000

86,802
86,802

FTE

752.5
752.5

2022-23
$'000

86,977
86,977

Projections
2023-24
$'000

FTE

744.3
744.3

88,937
88,937

740.8
740.8

2024-25
$'000

91,282
91,282

FTE

734.8
734.8

A summary of human resources expenditure categorised according to the organisational structure

of Council is included below:

Directorate

Chief Executive

City Planning, Design and Amenity
Community Senvices

Corporate Senvices

Engineering Senices

Greater Dandenong Business

Total permanent staff expenditure
Casuals and other expenditure
Total employee cost expenditure

Budget

2021-22

$'000
580
13,498
33,938
13,431
17,834
2,322
81,603
5,199
86,802

Comprises

Permanent
Full time
$'000

580

11,928
17,606
10,661
17,106
1,946
59,827

Permanent
Part time
$'000

1,570
16,332
2,770
728
376
21,776

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff in relation to the above

expenditure is included below:

Directorate

Chief Executive

City Planning, Design and Amenity
Community Senices

Corporate Senices

Engineering Senvices

Greater Dandenong Business
Total permanent staff

Casual staff

Total staff

Budget

2021-22

FilE
2.0
120.9
3229
114.4
162.2
17.9
740.3
12.2
752.5

Comprises

Permanent
Full time
FTE

2.0

102.0
153.4

86.0

155.0

15.0

513.4

EIMEGEDT
Part time
FTE

18.9
169.5
28.4
7.2
29
226.9
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3.1 Summary of Planned Human Resources

Summary of Planned Human Resources Expenditure
For the four years ended 2024-25

Budget Projections

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
$'000 $'000 $'000

Chief Executive
Permanent - Full time

- Female 123 127 131 134
- Male 457 473 485 497
Total Chief Executive 580 600 616 631

City Planning, Design and Amenity
Permanent - Full time

- Female 5,630 5,615 5,737 5,894
- Male 5,215 5,201 5,314 5,460
- Vacant or new positions 1,083 1,080 1,104 1,134
Permanent - Part time

- Female 772 770 787 808
- Male 687 685 700 719
- Vacant or new positions 111 111 113 116
Total City Planning, Design and Amenity 13,498 13,462 13,755 14,131

Community Services
Permanent - Full time

- Female 13,103 13,196 13,548 13,938
- Male 3,810 3,837 3,939 4,053
- Vacant or new positions 693 698 77 737
Permanent - Part time

- Female 12,232 12,317 12,645 13,011
- Male 1,231 1,240 1,273 1,310
- Self-described gender 16 16 17 17
- Vacant or new positions 2,853 2,873 2,950 3,035
Total Community Services 33,938 34,177 35,089 36,101

Corporate Services
Permanent - Full time

- Female 5,855 5,898 6,052 6,230
- Male 4,701 4,735 4,860 5,002
- Vacant or new positions 105 106 109 112
Permanent - Part time

- Female 2,199 2,215 2,273 2,340
- Male 464 467 480 494
- Vacant or new positions 107 108 111 114
Total Corporate Services 13,431 13,529 13,885 14,292
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Summary of Planned Human Resources Expenditure (continued)
For the four years ended 2024-25

Budget Projections

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
$'000 $'000 $'000

Engineering Services
Permanent - Full time

- Female 2,542 2,455 2,493 2,566
- Male 13,270 12,817 13,015 13,393
- Vacant or new positions 1,294 1,250 1,269 1,306
Permanent - Part time

- Female 487 471 478 492
- Male 241 233 237 244
Total Engineering Services 17,834 17,226 17,492 18,001

Greater Dandenong Business
Permanent - Full time

- Female 1,436 1,496 1,482 1,466
- Male 423 441 436 432
- Vacant or new positions 87 91 90 89
Permanent - Part time

- Female 376 392 388 384
Total Greater Dandenong Business 2,322 2,420 2,396 2,371
Casuals and other

- Female 542 511 523 537
- Male 327 308 316 324
- Self-described gender 8 3 3 3
- Vacant or new positions 289 272 279 286
Other employee related costs 4,038 4,469 4,583 4,605
Total casuals and other 1,161 1,094 1,121 1,150
Total staff expenditure 86,802 86,977 88,937 91,282
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Summary of Planned Human Resources FTE
For the four years ended 2024-25

Budget Projections

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
FTE FTE FTE

Chief Executive
Permanent - Full time

- Female 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
- Male 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Total Chief Executive 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

City Planning, Design and Amenity
Permanent - Full time

- Female 52.0 51.0 50.0 49.0
- Male 39.0 39.0 39.0 39.0
- Vacant or new positions 11.0 11.0 11.0 9.0
Permanent - Part time

- Female 8.8 8.8 8.8 8.8
- Male 8.8 8.8 8.8 8.8
- Vacant or new positions 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3
Total City Planning, Design and Amenity 120.9 119.9 118.9 115.9

Community Services
Permanent - Full time

- Female 114.4 113.4 113.4 113.4
- Male 31.0 31.0 31.0 31.0
- Vacant or new positions 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0
Permanent - Part time

- Female 121.2 121.2 121.2 121.2
- Male 14.8 14.8 14.8 14.8
- Self-described gender 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
- Vacant or new positions 33.3 33.3 32.7 32.7
Total Community Services 322.9 321.9 321.3 321.3

Corporate Services
Permanent - Full time

- Female 50.0 49.0 49.0 49.0
- Male 35.0 34.0 34.0 34.0
- Vacant or new positions 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Permanent - Part time

- Female 22.4 21.6 21.6 21.6
- Male 4.8 4.2 4.2 4.2
- Vacant or new positions 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2
Total Corporate Services 114.4 111.0 111.0 111.0

Note — FTE = Full time equivalent
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Summary of Planned Human Resources FTE (continued)
For the four years ended 2024-25

Budget Projections

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
FTE FTE FTE

Engineering Services
Permanent - Full time

- Female 24.0 24.0 24.0 23.0
- Male 117.0 117.0 116.0 115.0
- Vacant or new positions 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0
Permanent - Part time

- Female 4.9 4.9 4.9 4.9
- Male 2.3 2.3 1.5 1.5
Total Engineering Services 162.2 162.2 160.4 158.4

Greater Dandenong Business
Permanent - Full time

- Female 11.0 10.0 10.0 9.0
- Male 3.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
- Vacant or new positions 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Permanent - Part time

- Female 2.9 21 2.1 21
Total Greater Dandenong Business 17.9 15.1 15.1 14.1
Casuals

- Female 5.3 5.3 5.3 5.3
- Male 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6
- Vacant or new positions 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3
Total casuals 12.2 12.2 12.2 12.2
Total staff numbers 725 744.3 740.8 734.8

Note — FTE = Full time equivalent

Budget 2021-22 Page 41

3029



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong

4. Notes to the financial statements

This section presents detailed information on material components of the financial statements.
Council needs to assess which components are material, considering the dollar amounts and nature
of these components.

4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement

Underlying surplus (deficit)

Forecast
Actual Budget
Notes 2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$000 $'000 $'000 %
Operating
Total income 235,736 235,462 (274) (0.1%)
Total expenses (212,039) (204,057) 7,982 (3.8%)
Surplus for the year 23,697 31,405 7,708 32.5%

Less non-operating income and
expenditure

Grants - capital non-recurrent 4.1.4 (12,916) (8,978) 3,938 (30.5%)
Contributions - non-monetary 4.15 (15,000) (10,000) 5,000 (33.3%)
Capital contributions - other sources 4.1.5 (4,059) (4,935) (876) 21.6%
Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit) (8,278) 7,492 15,770 (190.5%)

The adjusted underlying result is the net surplus or deficit for the year adjusted for non-recurrent
capital grants, non-monetary asset contributions, and capital contributions from other sources. lItis
a measure of financial sustainability and Council’s ability to achieve its service delivery objectives
as it is not impacted by capital income items which can mask the operating result.

The adjusted result for the 2021-22 year is a surplus of $7.49 million which is an increase of $15.77
million from the 2020-21 Forecast. The increase is mostly attributable to:

. A higher level of one-off capital grants, contributions and non-monetary contributions in 2020-
21 Forecast than forecast for the 2021-22 Budget ($8.06 million).

. A reduction in total expenses from the 2020-21 Forecast mainly relating to employee costs,
materials and services and other expenditure. This reduction is attributable to a variety of
factors including grant funded projects and expenditure (particularly Working For Victoria),
one off operating initiatives, rehabilitation works at Spring Valley Landfill and various COVID-
19 support mechanisms (Business Grants, Material Aid, etc) occurring in 2020-21 that are not
expected to continue in 2021-22.

In calculating the underlying result, Council has excluded grants received for capital purposes which
are non-recurrent and capital contributions from other sources. Contributions of non-monetary
assets are excluded as the value of assets assumed by Council is dependent on the level of
development activity each year.
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Income
Forecast
Actual Budget

Income types 2020-21 2021-22 VEUET () Variance

$'000 $'000 $'000 %
Rates and charges 411 151,880 156,253 4,373 2.9%
Statutory fees and fines 4.1.2 6,591 8,227 1,636 24.8%
User fees 4.1.3 5,648 7,972 2,324 41.1%
Grants - operating 4.1.4 32,084 30,551 (1,533) (4.8%)
Grants - capital 41.4 14,488 9,996 (4,492) (31.0%)
Contributions - monetary 4.1.5 4,059 4,935 876 21.6%
Contributions - non-monetary 4.1.5 15,000 10,000 (5,000) (33.3%)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment 290 403 113 39.0%
Other income 4.1.6 5,696 7,125 1,429 25.1%
Total income 235,736 235,462 (274) (0.1%)

Income by type

$'000
180,000

160,000

140,000

120,000

100,000

80,000

60,000

40,000
20,000

iForecast Actual 2020-21 ®Budget 2021-22
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Contributions - Net gain on sale
monetary 1% 0%

Grants - capital 1%

Other income 4%

Statutory fees and
fines 4%

User fees 5%

Contributions - non- /

monetary 7%

Grants - operating /

13%

Rates and charges
66%

Budgeted income 2021-22

4.1.1 Rates and charges

Rates and charges are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclosed in Council’s budget.

As per the Local Government Act 2020, Council is required to have a Revenue and Rating Plan
which is a four year plan for how Council will generate income to deliver the Council Plan, program
and services and capital works commitments over a four-year period.

In developing the Budget, rates and charges were identified as an important source of revenue.
Planning for future rate increases has therefore been an important component of the financial
planning process. Rate capping legislation sets out the maximum amount councils may increase
rates in a year. For 2021-22, the rate cap has been set at 1.5 per cent. The cap applies to both
general rates and municipal charges and is calculated on the basis of council’s average rates and
charges.

The level of required rates and charges has been considered in this context, with reference to
Council's other sources of income and the planned expenditure on services and works to be
undertaken for the community.

To achieve these objectives while maintaining service levels and a strong capital expenditure
program, the average general rate and the municipal charge will increase by 1.5 per cent in line
with the rate cap.

This will raise total rates and charges for 2021-22 to $156.25 million.
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4.1.1(a) The reconciliation of the total rates and charges to the Comprehensive Income
Statement is as follows:

Forecast
Actual Budget
2020-21 2021-22 Change
$'000 $'000 $'000
General rates * 127,010 130,014 3,004 2.4%
Waste management charge 22,438 23,317 879 3.9%
Supplementary rates and rate adjustments 857 1,000 143 16.7%
Keysborough Maintenance Levy 1,575 1,620 45 2.9%
Interest on rates and charges 262 414 152 58.0%
Less abandoned rates (112) (112) 0 0.0%
Less rate waiver COVID-19 (pensioner and
jobseeker rebate) (150) - 150 (100.0%)
Total rates and charges 151,880 156,253 4,373 2.9%

* General rates are subject to the rate cap established under the rate capping legislation. For 2021-22, the
rate cap has been set at 1.50 per cent. Forecast Actual 2020-21 for General rates does not reflect the
annualisation of supplementary rates received during the financial year, therefore, the percentage change will
not equate to the rate cap of 1.50 per cent. To comply with the rate cap of 1.50 per cent, the base rate must
include the annualisation of supplementary rate income received during the year (see 4.1.1(c)) below.

Council’s rate revenue of $156.25 million is made up using the following assumptions:

. An average increase in rates across all property types of 1.50 per cent.

. Residential waste charge of $440.00 per annum for the Option A standard service charge
120 litre bin (an increase of $12.00 or 2.80 per cent). The waste charge fee is based on full
cost recovery. The waste charge includes a fortnightly garden waste and recycling service,
and an annual hard waste collection. These charges also include the landfill levy impost by
the State Government which will increase from $65.90 to $105.90 from the prior year (a
proposed increase to $85.90 on 1 January 2021 was cancelled due to COVID) and
represents $69 per household.

. $1.00 million is estimated to be derived from supplementary rates (from new developments
and improvements to existing properties).
. An estimated $1.62 million is expected to be collected from the Keysborough Maintenance

Levy at a rate of $350 per household. These funds will be transferred to a reserve and fully
expended on costs relating to this area.

The below table highlights the impacts of the rate increase on the average residential property in
City of Greater Dandenong.

Residential rate in the dollar Forecast % $
2020-21 Variance Variance

Median residential valuation in Greater Dandenong $602,100 $595,000

Residential rate in the dollar 0.0016796 0.0017259

General rates $1,011.32 $1,026.92 1.54% $15.60

Waste charge (including State Government landfill levy)* $428.00 $440.00 2.80% $12.00

Total rates and charges median residential property $1,439.32 $1,466.92 1.92% $27.60

* Includes a State Government landfill levy of $69 in 2021-22 ($51 in 2020-21).
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4.1.1(b) The rate in the dollar to be levied as general rates under section 158 of the Act for
each type or class of land compared with the previous financial year.

Type or class of land

General rate for rateable residential properties
General rate for rateable commercial properties
General rate for rateable industrial properties

General rate for rateable vacant residential properties
General rate for rateable farm properties

Budget

2020-21

cents/$CIV

0.0016796486
0.0031913324
0.0046190337
0.0025194729
0.0012597365

Budget
2021-22

cents/$CIV

0.0017259147
0.0032792379
0.0048325611
0.0025888720
0.0012944360

2.75%
4.62%
2.75%
2.75%

4.1.1(c) The estimated total amount to be raised by general rates in relation to each type or
class of land, and the estimated total amount to be raised by general rates, compared with

the previous financial year.

Budget

Type or class of land 2020-21

Annualised
rates levied
2020-21

Budget
2021-22

$'000

General 56,328
Commercial 13,491
Industrial 55,716
Vacant residential 1,042
Farm 433
Total amount to be raised by general

rates 127,010

$'000
56,752
13,570
56,372
966
433

128,093

$'000
57,626
13,041
57,848
1,021
478

130,014

1.54%
(3.90%)
2.62%
5.65%
10.35%

1.50%

4.1.1(d) The number of assessments in relation to each type or class of land, and the total
number of assessments, compared with the previous financial year.

Type or class of land

Budget
2020-21

Budget
2021-22

General

Commercial

Industrial

Vacant residential

Farm

Total number of assessments

Number
56,271
3,347
6,358
612

55
66,643

Number
56,791
3,357
6,529
560

55
67,292

4.1.1(e) The basis of valuation to be used is the Capital Improved Value (CIV).

0.92%
0.30%
2.69%

(8.50%)
0.00%
0.97%

Council rates are levied on the Capital Improved Value (CIV) of properties as determined by and certified
by the Valuer General of Victoria. The Valuer General of Victoria has taken over the rateable property
general valuation process from 1 July 2018 changing it to once a year rather than every two years.
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4.1.1(f) The estimated total value of each type or class of land, and the estimated total value
of land, compared with the previous financial year.

Budget Forecast Budget

Type or class of land 2020-21 2020-21 2021-22

$'000 $'000 $'000
General 33,535,584 33,787,898 33,388,945 (1.18%)
Commercial 4,227,348 4,252,109 3,976,701 (6.48%)
Industrial 12,062,326 12,204,198 11,970,519 (1.91%)
Vacant residential 413,599 383,549 394,343 2.81%
Farm 343,568 344,014 369,435 7.39%
Total value of land 50,582,424 50,971,767 50,099,942 (1.71%)

4.1.1(g) Council does not levy a municipal charge under Section 159 of the Act.

4.1.1(h) The estimated total amount to be raised by municipal charges is $0, compared with
the previous financial year ($0).

4.1.1(i) The rate or unit amount to be levied for each type of service rate or charge under
Section 162 of the Act compared with the previous financial year.

Per rateable Per rateable

Type of charge

property
2020-21
$

property
2021-22
$

Option A: 120 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, 240 litre 377.00 371.00 (1.59%)
Option B: 80 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, 240 litre 343.00 338.00 (1.46%)
Option C: 120 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, 120 litre 358.00 353.00 (1.40%)
Option D: 80 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, 120 litre 325.00 320.00 (1.54%)
Option E: 120 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, no garden 305.00 301.00 (1.31%)
Option F: 80 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, no garden bin 273.00 269.00 (1.47%)
Minimum waste charge for each residential property 273.00 269.00 (1.47%)
State Government landfill levy 51.00 69.00 35.29%
Bin change of selection charge 18.00 18.40 2.22%
Additional bin services

120 litre waste bin service * 196.00 193.00 (1.53%)
(Plus a “one off" fee for the purchase of the bin) 38.50 39.50 2.60%
240 litre recycling bin service 49.00 49.00 0.00%
(Plus a “one off” fee for the purchase of the bin) 45.50 46.50 2.20%
240 litre garden bin service 102.00 102.00 0.00%
(Plus a “one off” fee for the purchase of the bin) 45.50 46.50 2.20%
Bin delivery 16.50 16.80 1.82%
Recycling bin option - upgrade of 240 litre to 360 litre 100.00 101.50 1.50%

* Note — The State Government landfill levy is applicable in addition to these Council service charges.
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4.1.1(j) The estimated total amount to be raised by each type of service rate or charge, and
the estimated total amount to be raised by service rates and charges, compared with the
previous financial year.

Budget Budget

Type of charge 2020-21 2021-22

$'000 $'000
Option A: 120 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, 240 litre garden bin 9,794 9,714 (0.82%)
Option B: 80 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, 240 litre garden bin 1,758 1,745 (0.71%)
Option C: 120 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, 120 litre garden bin 3,019 3,063 1.45%
Option D: 80 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, 120 litre garden bin 1,981 1,946 (1.77%)
Option E: 120 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, no garden bin 1,891 1,814 (4.05%)
Option F: 80 litre waste, 240 litre recycling, no garden bin 795 783 (1.57%)
Additional bin services 231 255 10.17%
State Government landfill levy 2,838 3,868 36.28%
Supplementary and other income * 131 130 (0.76%)
Total 22,438 23,317 3.92%:

* Note — Supplementary income varies from year to year and is an estimate only.

4.1.1(k) The estimated total amount to be raised by all rates and charges compared with the
previous financial year

Budget Budget

2020-21 2021-22
$'000 $'000

General rates 127,010 130,014 2.37%
Waste charges 22,438 23,317 3.92%
Rates and charges 149,448 153,331 2.60%

4.1.1() Compliance with rate capping legislation

The City of Greater Dandenong is required to comply with the State Government’s rate capping
legislation. The table below details the budget assumptions consistent with the requirements of the
rate capping legislation.

Budget Budget

2020-21 2021-22
Total rates (including supplementary rates income) $124,519,622 $ 128,092,997
Number of rateable properties 66,643 67,292
Base average rate $ 186846 $ 1,903.54
Maximum rate increase (set by the State Government) 2.00% 1.50%
Capped average rate $ 190583 $ 1,932.09
Maximum general rates and charges revenue $127,010,014 $130,014,392
Budgeted
General rates $127,010,014 $ 130,014,392
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4.1.1(m) There are no known significant changes, which may affect the estimated amounts
to be raised by rates and charges. However, the total amount to be raised by rates and
charges may be affected by:

. The making of supplementary valuations (2020-21 forecast $857,000, 2021-22 forecast $1
million).

. The variation of returned levels of value (e.g. valuation appeals).

. Changes of use of land such that rateable land becomes non-rateable land and vice versa.

. Changes of use of land such that residential land becomes business land and vice versa.

4.1.1(n) Differential rates
The rate and amount of rates payable in relation to land in each category of differential are:

. A general rate of 0.17259147% (0.0017259147 cents in the dollar of capital improved value)
for all rateable residential (general).

. A general rate of 0.32792379% (0.0032792379 cents in the dollar of capital improved value)
for all rateable commercial land.

. A general rate of 0.48325611% (0.0048325611 cents in the dollar of capital improved value)
for all rateable industrial land.

. A general rate of 0.25888720% (0.0025888720 cents in the dollar of capital improved value)
for all rateable residential vacant land.

. A general rate of 0.12944360% for (0.0012944360 cents in the dollar of capital improved
value) rateable farm land.

Each differential rate will be determined by multiplying the Capital Improved Value of each rateable
land (categorised by the characteristics described below) by the relevant percentages indicated
above. Council considers that each differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient
carrying out of Council functions.

Details of the objectives of each differential rate, the types of classes of land, which are subject to
each differential rate and the uses of each differential rate, are set out on the following pages.

RESIDENTIAL LAND (General)

Objective:

To ensure that all rateable land makes an equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out
the functions of Council, including the:

1. Construction and maintenance of public infrastructure.

2. Development and provision of health and community services.

3. Provision of general support services.

4. Requirement to ensure that Council has adequate funding to undertake it's strategic,

statutory, and service provision obligations.
Types and classes:

Any land which does not have the characteristics of Commercial, Industrial, Residential Vacant or
Farm Land.
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Use and level of differential rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council.

The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary to achieve the
objectives specified above.

Geographic location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.

Use of land:

Any use permitted under the relevant Planning Scheme.
Planning scheme zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings:

All buildings which are now constructed on the land or which are constructed prior to the expiry of
the financial year.

COMMERCIAL LAND

Objective:

To ensure that all rateable land makes an equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out
the functions of Council, including the:

1. Construction and maintenance of public infrastructure related to the commercial sector.

2. Enhancement of the economic viability of the commercial sector through targeted programs
and projects.

3. Encouragement of employment opportunities.
4. Promotion of economic development.
5. Requirement to ensure that streetscaping and promotional activity is complementary to the

achievement of commercial objectives.
Types and classes:
Any land which is primarily used for commercial purposes.
Use and level of differential rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council.

The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary to achieve the
objectives specified above.
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Geographic location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.

Use of land:

Any use permitted under the relevant Planning Scheme.
Planning scheme zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings:

All buildings which are now constructed on the land or which are constructed prior to the expiry of
the financial year.

INDUSTRIAL LAND

Objective:

To ensure that all rateable land makes an equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out
the functions of Council, including the:

1. Construction and maintenance of public infrastructure related to the industrial sector.

2. Enhancement of the economic viability of the industrial sector through targeted programs
and projects.

3. Encouragement of employment opportunities.
4. Promotion of economic development.
5. Requirement to ensure that street scaping and promotional activity is complementary to the

achievement of industrial objectives.
Types and classes:
Any land which is used primarily for industrial purposes.
Use and level of differential rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council.

The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary to achieve the
objectives specified above.

Geographic location:
Wherever located within the municipal district.
Use of land:

Any use permitted under the relevant Planning Scheme.
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Planning scheme zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings:

All buildings which are now constructed on the land or which are constructed prior to the expiry of
the financial year.

RESIDENTIAL VACANT LAND

Objective:

To provide an economic incentive for the development of residential vacant land and a disincentive
for residential land-banking in order that all rateable land makes an equitable contribution to the
cost of carrying out the functions of Council, including the:

1. Construction and maintenance of public infrastructure.

2. Development and provision of health and community services.

3. Provision of general support services.

4. Requirement to ensure that Council has adequate funding to undertake its strategic,

statutory, and service provision obligations.
Types and classes:
Any land which is vacant residential land.
Use and level of differential rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council.

The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary to achieve the
objectives specified above.

Geographic location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.

Use of land:

Any use permitted under the relevant Planning Scheme.
Planning scheme zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.
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FARM LAND

Objective:

To provide a financial subsidy to rateable farm land to ensure that all rateable land makes an
equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out the functions of Council, including the:

1. Construction and maintenance of public infrastructure.

2. Development and provision of health and community services.

3. Provision of general support services.

4. Requirement to ensure that Council has adequate funding to undertake its strategic,

statutory, and service provision obligations.
Types and classes:
Any land which is primarily used for the purposes of farming.
Use and level of differential rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure described in the Budget
adopted by Council.

The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary to achieve the
objectives specified above.

Geographic location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.

Use of land:

Any use permitted under the relevant Planning Scheme.
Planning scheme zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Planning Scheme.

Types of buildings:

All buildings which are now constructed on the land or which are constructed prior to the expiry of
the financial year.
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4.1.1(0) Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025

The Local Government Act 2020 requires each Council to prepare a Revenue and Rating Plan to
cover a minimum period of four years following each Council election. The Revenue and Rating
Plan establishes the revenue raising framework within which the Council proposes to work.

The purpose of the Revenue and Rating Plan is to determine the most appropriate and affordable
revenue and rating approach for Council which, in conjunction with other income sources, will
adequately finance the objectives in the Council Plan.

This plan is an important part of Council’s integrated planning framework, all of which is created to
achieve our vision in the Imagine 2030 Community Plan.

The Draft Revenue and Rating Plan 2021-2025 will to be presented to Council with the Proposed
2021-22 Budget and placed on public exhibition for 28 days and adopted by Council in June 2021.

This plan explains how the funding burden will be apportioned between ratepayers and other users
of Council facilities and services. This plan will set out the decisions that Council has made in
relation to rating options available under local government legislation to ensure the fair and equitable
distribution of rates across property owners.

At present the legislative provisions that outline rates and charges are still contained in the Local
Government Act 1989 pending a transition to the Local Government Act 2020.
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4.1.1(p) Rate capping

Council has established the rating increase for 2021-22 at 1.50 per cent in line with the rate cap set
by the Minister of Local Government. Beyond this period, rates are assumed to increase in line with
CPI in accordance with the State Government rate capping policy. The forward three years of the
plan (2022-23 to 2024-25) are indicative rate increases only and will be subject to the rate cap set
by the Minister of Local Government.

Assumed future rate increases

Actual Budget Projections
2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Rate increase 2.00% 1.50% 1.50% 2.00% 2.00%

Council has significant challenges in terms of meeting the asset renewal requirements of a vast
range of infrastructure that was established in the 1960’s-70’s and which over the next decade will
reach the end of its useful life. It will not be possible to meet this challenge with rate increases
linked solely to CPI. With Council dealing with grant revenues that do not keep pace with CPI and
the cost of providing Council services escalating at a rate higher than the CPI, this approach is not
sustainable.

4.1.1(g) Understanding the impact of the 2021 general revaluation

Amendments to the Valuation of Land Act 1960 mean that from 1 July 2018, the Valuer-General
became the valuation authority for annual valuations of all land in Victoria for council rates and the
fire services property levy. Each year, all rateable properties are revalued with a valuation date of
1 January.

A revaluation does NOT provide Council with any additional rate revenue but can significantly re-
align how rates are distributed between ratepayers at both a rating group and individual level.

The below table highlights the impact of the 2021 Council revaluation.

Forecast Budget
Type or class of land 2020-21 2021-22

Revaluation REVEE U] Movement in
Civ CIv valuations
$'000 $'000 %

General 33,787,898 33,388,945 (1.18%)
Commercial 4,252,109 3,976,701 (6.48%)
Industrial 12,204,198 11,970,519 (1.91%)
Vacant residential 383,549 394,343 2.81%
Farm 344,014 369,435 7.39%
Total value of land 50,971,767 50,099,942 (1.71%)

The table highlights that overall Council properties have decreased by 1.71 per cent over the past
year (1 January 2020 to 1 January 2021). Residential, commercial and industrial valuations have
all experienced a decrease. Farm and residential vacant valuations, on the other hand, have
increased from the prior year by 7.39 per cent and 2.81 per cent respectively.

Council needs to be mindful of the impacts of revaluations on the various property types in
implementing the differential rating strategy outlined in the previous section to ensure that rises and
falls in Council rates remain affordable and that rating ‘shocks’ are mitigated to some degree.
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By way of example the table below highlights the rating impact on the various rating types should
Council retain the current rate differential structure (outcomes are based on the proposed annual

increase in rates of 1.50 per cent in 2021-22).

Type or class of land

General
Commercial
Industrial

Vacant residential
Farm

Total

Proposed
rates % increase
2021-22 2020-21 to
$'000 2021-22
58,088 2.35%
13,145 (3.13%)
57,270 1.59%
1,029 6.49%
482 11.23%
130,014 1.50%

As shown in the table the rating experiences between rating groups is reasonably dynamic with
residential properties on average increasing by 2.35 per cent and farm properties increasing by
11.23 per cent. The commercial sector has been the weakest experiencing a decrease of 3.13%.

This disparity in the valuation movements means that unless Council adjusts its differential rating
structure, residential rates would increase by an average of 2.35 per cent.

On this basis, it is recommended that the following differential rates be applied.

Existing
rating
Type or class of land differential
2020-21

General
Commercial 190%
Industrial 275%
Vacant residential 150%
Farm 75%

Proposed
rating % increase
differential 2020-21 to
2021-22 2021-22
1.54%
190% (3.90%)
280% 2.62%
150% 5.65%
75% 10.35%
1.50%

The proposed model above increases the differential on industrial properties by 5 per cent to 280
per cent which reduces the average residential rate increase to 1.54 per cent keeping it close to the
rate cap (1.50 per cent). This model also retains the decrease in commercial rates at 3.90 per cent
(this sector is probably weaker than the industrial sector at present indicated by the level of valuation

decreases in these sectors in 2021).

On this basis, it is recommended that the existing differential rating structures be amended to take

account of the impacts of the 2021 Council revaluation.
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4.1.2 Statutory fees and fines

A detailed schedule of fees and charges is contained in Section 6. This schedule highlights the
GST status of each fee category and whether the fee is determined by Council or is fixed by State
Government legislation.

The table below shows the statutory fees and fines received by Council with the primary source
from infringements and costs of $3.92 million plus $1.29 million in Infringement Court recoveries
expected to be received. Parking infringements make up $3.19 million of the infringements and
costs in the 2021-22 Budget with the balance relating to other fines including local laws, litter, animal
control, food and health. Building and town planning fees represent another major source of
statutory fees ($2.09 million).

The below figures have been impacted by COVID-19 (particularly 2020-21 due to stage four
restrictions in Victoria) and a reduction in income of $3.14 million (2020-21 Forecast Actual) and
$1.50 million (2021-22 Budget) from Council's pre-COVID-19 budget levels have been included
below.

Forecast
Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Infringements and costs 3,054 3,923 28.5%
Court recoveries 1,133 1,291 158 13.9%
Building and town planning fees 1,843 2,087 244 13.2%
Subdivision fees 250 444 194 77.6%
Land information certificates 101 100 (1) (1.0%)
Permits 201 232 31 15.4%
Election fines 9 150 141 1566.7%
Total statutory fees and fines 6,591 8,227 1,636 24.8%

4.1.3 User fees

Council derives user fees from several sources including on-street parking, multi-deck car parks,
aged care services, family day care, hire of Council halls, meeting rooms (Drum Theatre, The
Castle) and community facilities (Dandenong Basketball Stadium, sportsgrounds).

Forecast
Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Aged and health senices 1,075 1,197 122 11.3%
Child care/children's programs 716 1,183 467 65.2%
Parking 1,346 2,490 1,144 85.0%
Registration and other permits 2,007 2,301 294 14.6%
Asset protection fees 419 377 (42) (10.0%)
Other fees and charges 85 424 339 398.8%
Total user fees 5,648 7,972 2,324 41.1%

User fees are projected to increase by $2.32 million in 2021-22 from the 2020-21 forecast due
mostly to COVID-19 impacts on 2020-21 which saw fee income reduced by $3.10 million from pre-
COVID-19 budget levels. The fee income types most impacted by COVID-19 in 2020-21 included
parking permits, machines and meters, Family Day Care administration levy, building permits and
inspections, Drum Theatre fees and charges as well as Aged and Health Services due to an inability
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to meet anticipated targets. Whilst the 2021-22 Budget sees an anticipated recovery in fee income,
it is still impacted by COVID-19 after effects and has not returned to pre COVID-19 levels.

A detailed schedule of fees and charges is contained in Section 6.

4.1.4 Grants

Grants are required by the Act and the Regulations to be disclosed in Council’'s budget.

Overall, grantincome is anticipated to decrease in the 2021-22 Budget due mainly to a large number
of non-recurrent grants received in 2020-21 that will not continue in 2021-22 such as the Working

For Victoria Fund and other COVID-19 safety and support grant funding received.

Forecast
Actual

2020-21 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 %

Summary of grants

Commonwealth funded grants 21,683 28,295 6,612 30.5%
State funded grants 24,837 12,252 (12,585) (50.7%)
Other sources 52 - (52) (100.0%)
Total grants 46,572 40,547 (6,025) (12.9%)

Operating grants

Operating grants include all monies received from State and Commonwealth sources, as well as
some grants from other organisations, for the purposes of funding the delivery of Council’s services
to ratepayers. Overall, the level of operating grants is projected to decrease by $1.54 million
compared to the 2020-21 Forecast due to a combination of factors:

Reductions:

. Fifteen non-recurrent grants received in the 2020-21 Forecast that are not anticipated to occur
again in 2021-22 ($7.53 million).

. Higher Family Day Care grant funding ($1.16 million) anticipated to be received in the 2020-
21 Forecast due to additional funding for transition payments during COVID, that is not
anticipated to occur again in 2021-22.

Partly offset by the following increases:

. Financial Assistance Grant ($6.18 million). The early distribution of Financial Assistance grant
funding in 2019-20 resulting in only 50 per cent being included in the 2020-21 Forecast. A full
year’s allocation (100 per cent) of Financial Assistance grant funding is included in the 2021-
22 Budget.

. Lower Home and Community Care grant funding anticipated to be received in the 2020-21
Forecast due to COVID-19 restrictions and an inability to meet targets ($1.39 million).
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The following tables lists all operating grants by type and source, classified into recurrent and non-
recurrent.

Forecast
Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

(a) Operating grants
Recurrent

Commonwealth Government

Financial Assistance Grant 5,888 12,066 6,178 104.9%
Family Day Care 4,496 3,339 (1,157) (25.7%)
Home and Community Care 5,170 6,564 1,394 27.0%
Family and Children Senices 80 70 (10) (12.5%)
Community health 7 21 14 200.0%

State Government

Home and Community Care 1,629 1,794 165 10.1%
Maternal and Child Health 2,615 2,598 17) (0.7%)
Family and Children Senices 1,896 1,632 (264) (13.9%)
Libraries 1,063 1,037 (26) (2.4%)
School crossings 441 455 14 3.2%
Community health 122 123 1 0.8%
Other - 10 10 100.0%
Total recurrent operating grants 23,407 29,709 6,302 26.9%

Recurrent operating grants

Total recurrent operating grants are estimated to increase by $6.30 million compared to the 2020-
21 Forecast mainly due to the early distribution of $6.12 million (50 per cent) of Council’s 2020-21
Financial Assistance Grant funding allocation in June 2020 (2019-20), resulting in only 50 per cent
being included in the 2020-21 Forecast. $12.07 million or 100 per cent of the estimated 2021-22
Financial Assistance grant funding allocation has been included in the 2021-22 Budget. Excluding
the effect of the timing of Financial Assistance grants, the movement in recurrent operating grant
income is actually a minor increase of $178,000 or 0.8 per cent. The amount included in the 2021-
22 Budget for Financial Assistance Grant funding is based on the actual 2020-21 Financial
Assistance grant funding received (no indexation assumed). This grant is a general-purpose grant
that is not tied to specific programs and includes a component for roads maintenance.
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Forecast
Actual

2020-21 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 %

(a) Operating grants

Non recurrent

Commonwealth Government

Family and Children Senices 335 - (335) (100.0%)
COVID safety and support 260 - (260) (100.0%)
Libraries 208 - (208) (100.0%)
Home and community care - 99 99 100.0%
Senior citizens 14 - (14) (100.0%)
Other 18 18 - 0.0%

State Government

Working For Victoria Fund 5,029 - (5,029) (100.0%)
COVID safety and support 850 = (850) (100.0%)
Environment 502 212 (290) (57.8%)
Community health 326 - (326) (100.0%)
Education and employment 196 115 (81) (41.3%)
Home and Community Care 170 245 75 44.1%
Community development 155 65 (90) (58.1%)
Waste and recycling 154 - (154) (100.0%)
Activity Centre development 110 - (110) (100.0%)
Family and Children Senices 101 - (101) (100.0%)
Libraries 52 - (52) (100.0%)
Community safety 55 40 (15) (27.3%)
Emergency management 49 48 1) (2.0%)
Maternal and Child Health 41 - 41) (100.0%)
Other
Education and employment 35 - (35) (100.0%)
Family and Children Senices 3 - 3) (100.0%)
Other 14 - (14) (100.0%)
Total non-recurrent operating grants 8,677 842 (7,835) (90.3%)
Total operating grants 32,084 30,551 (1,533) (4.8%)

Non-recurrent operating grants

The reduction in non-recurrent operating grant funding of $7.84 million is due mainly to grant funding
or grant funded programs that will conclude in 2020-21 including:

Working For Victoria Fund ($5.03 million).
Several COVID-19 safety and support grant funded initiatives including:
o Outdoor Eating and Entertainment ($500,000).
o Local Partnership Material Aid and Community Support ($350,000).
o COVID-19 emergency meals provided during state restrictions and self-isolation
($150,000).
New Directions — Mothers and Babies ($335,000).
Library grants ($260,000) including Let's Read, Mission Australia Innovation grant, Premier's
Reading Challenge and Libraries After Dark.
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. Local Government Building Capacity ($224,000).

. Environmental grants including:
o Peri-Urban Weed Management Project ($133,000)
o Dandenong Creek Arts Trail ($75,000)
o Corridors of Green ($60,000)

. Refugee Immunisation ($195,000).

. Waste (recycling support) ($144,000).

. Drug Strategy ($132,000).

Capital grants

Capital grants include all monies received from State, Commonwealth and community sources for
the purposes of funding the capital works program. Overall, the level of capital grants has
decreased by $4.49 million compared to the 2020-21 Forecast.

A list of capital grants by type and source, classified into recurrent and non-recurrent, is included
below.

Forecast
Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

(b) Capital grants
Recurrent

Commonwealth Government
Roads to Recovery 1,672 1,018 (554) (35.2%)

Total recurrent capital grants 1,572 1,018 (554) (35.2%)
Non recurrent

Commonwealth Government

Local Roads Community Infrastructure 1,018 5,100 4,082 401.0%
Black Spot Program 2,617 = (2,617) (100.0%)
State Government
Buildings 4,824 1,893 (2,931) (60.8%)
Parks, Open Space and Streetscapes 867 1,985 1,118 129.0%
Recreation, Leisure and Community Facilities 3,573 - (3,573) (100.0%)
Plant, Machinery and Equipment 17 - 17) (100.0%)
Total non-recurrent capital grants 12,916 8,978 (3,938) (30.5%)
Total capital grants 14,488 9,996 (4,492) (31.0%)

Note re Roads to Recovery — Council has been allocated $5.09 million in Roads to Recovery grant funding
over the period 2019-20 to 2023-24, with $1.02 million expected to be received in 2021-22. Certain conditions
must be followed, and annual reports submitted.
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The reduction of $4.49 million in the 2021-22 Budget is due to several one off capital grants
anticipated to be recognised in the 2020-21 Forecast that will not continue in the 2021-22 financial
year including:

Ross Reserve Plaza, Playground, Path and Oval ($3.05 million).

Noble Park Aquatic Centre Health and Wellbeing Gymnasium redevelopment ($3 million).
Federal Black Spot Program ($2.62 million).

Local Roads Community Infrastructure Program ($1.02 million) for works at Ross Reserve
(Stage 2), Warner Reserve and Hemmings Shopping Centre streetscape.

Ross Reserve Pavilion ($675,000).

. Thomas Carroll Pavilion ($600,000).

Partly offset by new grant funding anticipated for the 2021-22 financial year:

. Local Roads Community Infrastructure Program ($5.10 million) for:
o Road rehabilitation works at Colemans Road, Dandenong South (Frankston Dandenong
Road to Produce Drive).
o Road reconstruction and widening at Abbotts Road, Dandenong South (between
Cranbourne Railway Line and National Drive (stage 2 of 3)).
o Drainage augmentation to address flooding concerns at Callander Road, Noble Park
(Catchment 9 — drainage upgrade (stage 1 of 3)).
o  Carpark resurfacing at Buckley Street Carpark.
o Carpark renewal at Norman Luth Reserve.
o Passive park fencing renewal.
. Keysborough South Community Hub building construction ($1.20 million).

4.1.5 Contributions

Forecast
Actual Budget
2020-21 2021-22  Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %
Monetary 4,059 4,935 876 21.6%
Non-monetary 15,000 10,000 (5,000) (33.3%)
Total contributions 19,059 14,935 (4,124) (21.6%)

The $4.12 million decrease in monetary contributions is mainly attributable to a reduction in the
anticipated amount of non-monetary contributions in the 2021-22 Budget. These contributions (non-
cash) primarily relate to the Development Contribution Plan’s (DCP) in Dandenong South and
Keysborough and will be in the form of infrastructure assets (gifted assets). Non-monetary assets
are difficult to budget and cannot be accurately predicted. This is a non-cash accounting entry.

The monetary contributions in the 2021-22 Budget are made up of:

. DCP contributions for the Keysborough South Community Hub major project ($2.91 million).

. Public open space contributions ($2 million). Depending on the amount of development
activity in progress, Council receives contributions from developers. These represent funds
to enable Council to improve the necessary integrated infrastructure for new developments.
They are for very specific purposes and often require Council to outlay funds for infrastructure
works some time before the receipt of these contributions. These contributions are statutory
contributions and are transferred to reserves until utilised for a complying purpose through the
capital works program. Both the 2021-22 Budget and the 2020-21 Forecast estimate that the
level of open space contributions will be around $2.00 million which will be transferred to
reserves.
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4.1.6 Otherincome

Forecast
Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Interest on investments 761 61 8.7%
Interest other 2 - (2) (100.0%)
Dandenong Market rental - 1,158 1,158 100.0%
Property rental 1,489 2,137 648 43.5%
Other rent 94 1,135 1,041 1107.4%
Recoveries 2,905 1,597 (1,308) (45.0%)
Other 506 337 (169) (33.4%)
Total other income 5,696 7,125 1,429 25.1%

The increase in other income of $1.43 million in 2021-22 compared to the 2020-21 Forecast is due
mainly to COVID-19 impacted income streams in 2020-21:

Other rent was significantly impacted in the 2020-21 Forecast due to COVID-19 restrictions,
particularly in relation to the hire of Council's Civic facilities ($1.04 million increase).
Additionally, property rental returns were low in 2020-21 due to COVID-19 rental waivers. The
2021-22 Budget assumes a return to normal levels of property rental and other rent income
($1.69 million increase).

No returns from Dandenong Market in 2020-21 due to the financial impacts on the Market
from the COVID-19 pandemic. A return to 80 per cent Dandenong Market rental in 2021-22
Budget assumes that some COVID-19 after effects will continue for some time ($1.16 million
increase).

Interest returns on investments are expected to remain low as a result of COVID-19 and low
interest rates ($61,000 increase).

Partly offset by:

Reduced recovery income in the 2021-22 Budget ($1.25 million decrease) in relation to works
required at Spring Valley Landfill to comply with the Pollution Abatement Notice (PAN) issued
by the Environment Protection Authority (EPA) that are expected to occur mostly in 2020-21.
The cost of these works is offset by recovery income from partner councils (80.12 per cent is
recovered) and a transfer from reserves for Council’s share. The level of recovery income in
2021-22 reduces significantly based on a reduction in the landfill maintenance costs required.
A one off FBT return of $259,000 in relation to a successful carparking benefit ATO ruling is
the main reason for the reduction in ‘other’ income streams in the 2021-22 Budget ($169,000
reduction).
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Expenditure

Forecast
Actual Budget

Notes 2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Employee costs 90,105 86,802 (3,303) (3.7%)
Materials and senices 4.1.8 77,474 74,566 (2,908) (3.8%)
Depreciation 4.1.9 32,308 33,277 969 3.0%
Amortisation - intangible assets 4.1.10 60 60 0 0.0%
Amortisation - right of use assets 41.11 581 604 23 4.0%
Bad and doubtful debts 1,365 1,568 203 14.9%
Borrowing costs 2,924 2,802 (122) (4.2%)
Finance costs - leases 21 22 1 4.8%
Other expenses 4.1.12 7,201 4,356 (2,845) (39.5%)
Total expenses 212,039 204,057 (7,982) (3.8%)

Expenditure by type
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Borrowing costs

1% Bad and doubtful
debts
Other expenses 1%
2%
Depreciation and
amortisation
17%
Employee costs
_— 42%

Materials and senices
37%

Budgeted expenses 2020-21

4.1.7 Employee costs

Employee costs include salaries and Council's statutory obligations in providing WorkCover
insurance, employer superannuation, leave entittements including leave loading and long service
leave as well as staff development and training costs. These costs are largely driven by Council’s
Enterprise Agreement (EA). The Enterprise Agreement 2018 expires on 30 June 2022. The EA
increase for 2021-22 is 2.25 per cent in line with guaranteed minimum in the EA (which presents a
funding challenge as it exceeds the rate cap for the second year in a row). Annual award increases
for banded staff also contribute to an increase in employee costs. Increase in resources in relation
to areas where Council annually inherits new service requirements such as areas of parklands
handed from developers has also been provided for.

The compulsory Superannuation Guarantee Scheme rate is expected to increase from 9.50 per
cent to 10 per cent in 2021-22.

The 2021-22 Budget for employee costs actually represents a decrease from the 2020-21 Forecast
of $3.3 million due mainly to the Working For Victoria grant funded program which is a one off
program due to conclude by 30 June 2021. This program added $3.56 million to Council's employee
costs in the 2020-21 Forecast. Additionally, there are number of other projects/programs with either
carry overs of unspent grant funds contributing to the higher level of employee costs in 2020-21
such as Child First, Enhanced Maternal and Child Health or projects/programs not expected to occur
again in 2021-22 such as New Directions — Mothers and Babies, Drug Strategy and Right@Home.
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A summary of human resources expenditure categorised according to the organisational structure
of Council is included below:

Comprises
Budget Permanent Permanent
Directorate 2021-22 Full time Part time
$'000 $'000 $'000
Chief Executive 580 580 -
City Planning, Design and Amenity 13,498 11,928 1,570
Community Senvices 33,938 17,606 16,332
Corporate Senvices 13,431 10,661 2,770
Engineering Senices 17,834 17,106 728
Greater Dandenong Business 2,322 1,946 376
Total permanent staff expenditure 81,603 59,827 21,776
Casuals and other expenditure 5,199
Total employee cost expenditure 86,802

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff in relation to the above
expenditure is included below:

Comprises
Budget Permanent Permanent
Directorate 2021-22 Full time Part time
FTE FTE FTE
Chief Executive 2.0 2.0 -
City Planning, Design and Amenity 120.9 102.0 18.9
Community Senices 322.9 153.4 169.5
Corporate Senices 114.4 86.0 28.4
Engineering Senices 162.2 155.0 7.2
Greater Dandenong Business 17.9 15.0 2.9
Total permanent staff 740.3 513.4 226.9
Casual staff 12.2
Total staff 752.5

Note - FTE: Full time equivalent

4.,1.8 Materials and services

Materials and services represent the materials and consumables required for maintenance and repair of
Council buildings, roads, drains, footpaths, playground equipment and occupancy costs including
utilities. Other costs included are a range of expert services to assist in systems related advice and
support, audit services, debt collection, and legal services. It also includes the cost of materials used in
providing home-based community care and food services to the elderly people.

The majority of materials and services costs were increased by the forecast CPI (1.50 per cent) in the
2021-22 Budget, except for contract costs which are based on prevailing contract conditions, electricity
(2 per cent), street lighting, water and gas (2.5 per cent) and fuel costs (1.25 per cent).

Budget 2021-22 Page 66

3054



City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

City of Greater Dandenong

Forecast

Actual Budget
2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %
Contract payments 50,518 49,381 (1,137) (2.3%)
Materials and senices 7,185 6,890 (295) (4.1%)
Office administration 4,527 4,994 467 10.3%
Consultants and professional senices 6,509 3,718 (2,791) (42.9%)
Utilities 3,959 4,493 534 13.5%
Information technology 3,479 3,651 172 4.9%
Insurance 1,297 1,439 142 10.9%
Total materials and services 77,474 74,566 (2,908) (3.8%)

Overall, there is a decrease in the materials and services category of $2.91 million as a result of:

Consultants and professional services (decrease of $2.79 million)

o Lower consultants, contractor and professional services costs ($1.27 million) due to a
number of one off initiatives and grant funded programs that are due to cease at 30 June
2021. Examples include the COVID-19 contingency fund, the Community Revitalisation,
Indian Cultural Precinct, Outdoor Eating and Entertainment and Central Dandenong
Development Facilitation Study grant funded projects, as well as the Princes Highway
and Robinson Street median landscaping works operating initiative.

0 A building disposal program in 2020-21 ($220,000) which comprises one-year projects
to demolish buildings at 275 Lonsdale Street Dandenong and Ross Reserve (O’'Donahue
Football pavilion).

o Costs of $250,000 in 2020-21 that will not continue in 2021-22 including the development
of the new Council Plan and engagement of an external Municipal Building Surveyor.

o Lower legal expenses in the Planning department in 2021-22 of $248,000 due to a
Council decision to pursue Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) appeals
relating to the proposed waste to energy facility in Ordish Road, Dandenong South.
These appeals resulted in higher legal costs in 2020-21.

Contract payments (decrease of $1.14 million)

o A reduction in forecast expenditure for works required at Spring Valley Landfill ($2.63
million) to comply with the Pollution Abatement Notice (PAN) issued by the Environment
Protection Authority (EPA) which are expected to occur in 2020-21. These contract
payment costs are offset by recovery income from partner councils (80.12 per cent is
recovered) and a transfer from reserves for Council's share. Once the landfill cap
rehabilitation works are complete in 2020-21, the maintenance costs in 2021-22 are
expected to reduce back down to a lower level (and associated recovery income will also
decrease accordingly).

o A decrease of $795,000 in payments to educators in the Family Day Care program due
to growth funding received in 2020-21 which is not expected to continue in 2021-22.

o Lower contract services costs ($793,000) in the 2021-22 Budget due to the one off grant
funded Working For Victoria program that is due to cease at 30 June 2021.

Partly offset by the following unfavourable variances:

o Anincrease of $2.02 million in Council’s leisure centres due to the after effects of COVID-
19 and the implementation of a new board model.

o Higher tipping fees ($1.27 million) due to the State Government landfill levy fee increase
from $65.90 to $105.90. This increase in waste management costs is recovered via the
waste charge, which is based on full cost recovery.
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. Utilities (increase of $534,000)

o Due to utility savings experienced in the 2020-21 Forecast due to COVID-19 restrictions,
such as water, street lighting and electricity. The 2021-22 Budget assumes that these
utility costs will return to normal levels resulting in increases of $212,000, $187,000 and
$136,000 respectively.

. Office administration (increase of $467,000)

o A reinstatement of event cost budgets in the 2021-22 Budget as the events were
cancelled in 2020-21 due to COVID-19 ($237,000).

o Due to fuel savings experienced in the 2020-21 Forecast as a result of low petrol prices
and COVID-19 restrictions. The 2021-22 Budget has forecast an increase of $204,000.

Partly offset by:

o Lower community education costs for Food Organics Garden Organics (FOGO) in the
2021-22 Budget as FOGO was implemented in 2020-21 ($112,000).

4.1.9 Depreciation

Depreciation measures the allocation of the value of an asset over its useful life for Council’s
property, plant and equipment, including infrastructure assets such as roads and drains, from
delivering services to the community.

Forecast
Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Property 7,099 7,312 3.0%
Plant and equipment 3,912 4,029 117 3.0%
Infrastructure 21,297 21,936 639 3.0%
Total depreciation 32,308 33,277 969 3.0%

The increase of $969,000 for 2021-22 is based on a revised estimate considering several factors
including the current property, infrastructure, plant and equipment balances in the asset register
and the anticipated impact of the capital works program.

4.1.10 Amortisation — Intangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assets relates to computer software acquired by Council.

Forecast
Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Intangibles 0.0%
Total amortisation - intangible assets 60 60 - 0.0%
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4.1.11 Amortisation — Right of use assets

Amortisation of right of use assets relates to eligible assets leased by Council.

Forecast
Actual Budget
2020-21 2021-22  Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %
Right of use assets 581 604 23 4.0%
Total amortisation - right of use assets 581 604 23 4.0%

4.1.12 Other expenses

This expenditure category includes other expenses such as lease rentals, audit costs, Councillor
allowances and Council election costs. The community grants program which funds diverse community
groups towards promoting sporting, religious, cultural and leisure activities within the city is also provided
for under this category. Costs associated with the Fire Services Property Levy on Council owned
properties are also included in this category.

Forecast
Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the
financial statements, performance statement and

grant acquittal 80 80 - 0.0%
Auditors' remuneration - internal 155 157 2 1.3%
Councillor allowances 438 460 22 5.0%
Council election 650 - (650) (100.0%)
Operating lease/rentals 747 643 (104) (13.9%)
Other expenses 764 339 (425) (55.6%)
Fire senvices property levy 211 204 7) (3.3%)
Community grants and contributions 4,156 2,473 (1,683) (40.5%)
Total other expenses 7,201 4,356 (2,845) (39.5%)

The $2.85 million decrease in other expenses is due to:

. Lower community grants and contributions due to:
o One off programs for Business Grants ($695,000) and Material Aid ($321,000) in 2020-
21 in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
o Grant funded Material Aid and community contributions under the Local Partnership
program ($340,000) that is not expected to continue in 2021-22.
o Anticipated contributions to local businesses of $148,000 in 2020-21 as part of the
Outdoor Eating and Entertainment grant funded program.

. Reduced Council election costs from 2020-21 as the Council election only occurs once every
four years ($650,000).

. Lower other expenses due to one off factors including a contract settlement for a public
cleaning contract in 2020-21 ($211,000) and COVID-19 pandemic costs ($168,000)
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4.2 Balance Sheet

This section of the Budget report analyses the movements in assets, liabilities and equity between
the 2020-21 Forecast and the 2021-22 Budget.

4.2.1 Assets

Forecast
Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 114,785 112,384 (2,401) (2.1%)
Trade and other receivables 26,810 28,013 1,203 4.5%
Other assets 2,815 2,872 57 2.0%
Total current assets 144,410 143,269 (1,141) (0.8%)

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables 305 305 - 0.0%
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2,256,411 2,296,195 39,784 1.8%
Investment property 11,814 11,814 - 0.0%
Right-of-use assets 988 1,073 85 8.6%
Intangible assets 64 4 (60) (93.8%)
Total non-current assets 2,269,582 2,309,391 39,809 1.8%
Total assets 2,413,992 2,452,660 38,668 1.6%

Current assets include cash and investments and receivables, which include outstanding rate
arrears. The decrease between the two years is due to a reduction in cash and cash equivalent
balances of $2.40 million partly offset by higher trade and other receivables of $1.20 million.

It should be noted that Council’s rate arrears are only expected to increase slightly as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Non-current assets represent Council’s fixed assets such as land, buildings, roads, drains and
footpaths. The $39.81 million increase is due to property, infrastructure, plant and equipment as a
result of $63.36 million in capital expenditure (refer Section 4.5 — Capital Works Program for a
detailed listing of projects) combined with the receipt of assets primarily from developers through
their obligations under the two Development Contribution Plans ($10.00 million). This increase is
offset by $33.28 million in depreciation expenditure.
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4.2.2 Liabilities

Forecast
Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 21,281 24,965 3,684 17.3%
Trust funds and deposits 8,425 8,925 500 5.9%
Unearned income 40,340 40,340 - 0.0%
Provisions 19,659 19,983 324 1.6%
Interest-bearing liabilities 3,372 4,083 71 21.1%
Lease liabilities 571 571 - 0.0%
Total current liabilities 93,648 98,867 5,219 5.6%

Non-current liabilities

Trust funds and deposits 311 311 - 0.0%
Provisions 892 900 8 0.9%
Interest-bearing liabilities 53,264 55,300 2,036 3.8%
Lease liabilities 442 442 - 0.0%
Total non-current liabilities 54,909 56,953 2,044 3.7%
Total liabilities 148,557 155,820 7,263 4.9%

Current liabilities represent obligations that Council must pay within the next year and include
borrowings, annual leave and long service leave entitlements, trust monies and payables to
suppliers.

The increase in current liabilities in 2021-22 is due mainly to higher trade and other payables ($3.68
million) caused by an increased level of capital works expenditure.

Non-current liabilities are obligations that will be satisfied at some point after 12 months and include
long term borrowings and long service leave entitlements for staff. The increase of $2.04 million
reflects the new borrowings of $6.12 million planned for 2021-22 partly offset by repayment of
existing borrowings.

4.2.3 Borrowings

The below table shows information on borrowings specifically required by the Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations.

Forecast
Actual Budget Projections

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Amount borrowed as at 30 June of the

prior year 59,891 56,636 59,383 70,301 79,796
Amount proposed to be borrowed - 6,120 15,000 15,000 -
Amount projected to be redeemed (3,255) (3,372) (4,083) (5,505) (6,970)
Amount of borrowings as at 30 June 56,636 59,383 70,301 79,796 72,825
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Debt Strategy - Council philosophy on using loan borrowings

Many Victorian Councils are debt averse and view the achievement of a low level of debt or even
debt free status as a primary goal. Others see the use of loan funding as being a critical component
of the funding mix to deliver much needed infrastructure to the community.

The use of loans to fund capital expenditure can be an effective mechanism of linking the payment
for the asset (via debt redemption payments) to the successive Council populations who receive
benefits over the life of that asset. This matching concept is frequently referred to as ‘inter-
generational equity’.

Greater Dandenong City Council has accessed debt funding in the past years to complete a range
of major infrastructure projects including the construction of the Dandenong Civic Centre and
Library, redevelopment of the Drum Theatre, Dandenong Market and Noble Park Aquatic Centre
that will be enjoyed by the populations of the future (refer table below).

Loan funds

Total cost used
Project $ million $ million
Drum Theatre 13.0 9.0
Dandenong Market 26.0 20.0
Noble Park Aquatic Centre 21.0 5.0
Dandenong Civic Centre 65.5 47.2
Springvale Community Hub 52.7 20.0
Total 178.2 101.2

One of the key considerations for Council in the application of future loan borrowing is the premise
that its long-term financial strategies should strive for a financial structure where its annual
operational and asset renewal needs can be met from annual funding sources. That is, Council
does not have to access funding from non-renewable sources such as loans, asset sales or
reserves to meet its annual expenditure needs.

Establishing prudential debt limits

Utilisation of debt funding is an appropriate means of funding capital projects, particularly in a low
interest rate environment. It is crucial however that Council remain within prudential debt limits.

The maximum levels of indebtedness are prescribed for Council by way of prudential limits
established by the State Government. The three principle prudential limits are:

. Debt servicing (interest repayments) as a percentage of total revenue should not exceed 5
per cent.

. Total indebtedness as a percentage of rate revenue should not exceed 80 per cent (with this
latter prudential limit — where ratios exceed 60 per cent, councils are required to demonstrate
long-term strategies to reduce indebtedness prior to undertaking further borrowings).

. Working capital ratio (current assets/current liabilities) to remain in excess of 1.0.
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Proposed future borrowings

Council relies upon a strategy of ensuring Council reduces its Indebtedness to Rate Revenue ratio
to below 40 per cent prior to undertaking any further borrowing. As noted in the table below, at 30
June 2020, Council’s debt ratio will be at 37.7 per cent.

New borrowings of $6.12 million are forecast in the 2021-22 Budget. The Long Term Financial Plan
includes an additional $30 million in proposed new borrowings split evenly over the 2022-23 and
2023-24 financial years for the purposes of replacing Dandenong Oasis. These new borrowings
cause the debt ratio to rise to 49.2 per cent in 2023-24.

The debt ratios fall quite quickly in the following years, and Council’s ratio returns to 38.1 per cent
by June 2026 — which allows Council to consider future borrowings from that point.

Greater Dandenong Council will continue to consider debt for major community assets in
accordance with the above guidelines. All projects are subject to community consultation, Council
review and funding. Council will also seek to maximise external funding opportunities having regard
to the financial impacts and outcomes for the community.

Impact of future borrowings on prudential limits

In terms of highlighting the impact of these borrowings on Council’s Indebtedness to rates ratio, the
below table provides these outcomes. Projected future borrowings have been structured to ensure
at no point does Council exceed the prudential limit of an indebtedness level in excess of 80 per
cent of annual rate revenue.

New/ Liquidity
refinance Principal Interest Balance (Current Debt mgmt

Financial borrowings paid expense (b) 30 June assets/ (Debt/ Debt mgmt

year current Total rates and (Serv Costs/
ending $'000 $000 $000 $000 liabilities) charges) Total revenue)

2021 - 3,255 2,924 56,636 154% 37.7% 1.2%
2022 6,120 3,372 2,802 59,383 145% 38.4% 1.2%
2023 15,000 4,083 2,730 70,301 140% 44.5% 1.2%
2024 15,000 5,505 3,025 79,796 131% 49.2% 1.3%
2025 - 6,970 3,248 72,825 135% 43.7% 1.4%
2026 - 7,204 3,054 65,622 137% 38.1% 1.2%
2027 - 7,447 2,787 58,175 140% 32.9% 1.1%
2028 - 7,682 2,515 50,493 144% 27.9% 1.0%
2029 - 7,946 2,221 42,547 150% 22.9% 0.8%
2030 - 7,057 1,934 35,490 158% 18.6% 0.7%

166% 15.0%

Prudential ratio limits: Risk assessment criteria
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4.3 Statement of Changes in Equity

Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total surplus reserve reserves
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2021
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,241,738 904,579 1,269,823 67,336
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 23,697 23,697 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) - - - -
Transfers to other reserves - (12,991) - 12,991
Transfers from other reserves - 26,800 - (26,800)
Balance at end of the financial year 2,265,435 942,085 1,269,823 53,527
2022
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,265,435 942,085 1,269,823 53,527
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 31,405 31,405 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) - - - -
Transfers to other reserves 4.31 - (6,078) - 6,078
Transfers from other reserves 4.3.1 - 11,734 - (11,734)
Balance at end of the financial year 4.3.2 2,296,840 979,146 1,269,823 47,871

4.3.1 Reserves

Opening Transfer Transfer Closing

balance to from balance
2021-22 reserves reserves 2021-22
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Major projects reserve 22,939 1,308 8,880 15,367
Open space reserve - planning, developments and 3,810 2,000 570 5,240
improvements
Open space reserve - acquisitions 6,000 - 6,000
Development Contribution Plan - Council funded 16,807 500 18 17,289
Keysborough Maintenance Levy 1,732 1,620 1,710 1,642
Self insurance 911 - 31 880
Spring Valley Landfill reserve 187 - 102 85
Springvale Activity Precinct parking and development 235 - 235
Dandenong Activity Precinct parking and development 27 650 300 377
General resere (aged care) 334 - 334
Future maintenance reserve (LXRA) 214 - 40 174
Native revegetation reserves 331 - 83 248
Total reserves 53,527 6,078 11,734 47,871

The $5.66 million decrease in reserves in the 2021-22 Budget is mainly due to $8.88 million in
transfers from the Major projects reserve to fund significant capital works projects (Dandenong
Oasis replacement and Noble Park Aquatic Centre — Health and Wellbeing Gymnasium
redevelopment).
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Purpose of reserves

Major projects reserve - holds proceeds from the sale of Council’s property assets or surplus
Council funds and will be utilised for investing in other properties or funding future major
projects.

Open space - planning, development and improvements - Funds will be utilised exclusively
for allocation towards enhancing the City’s open space via planning, development and
improvements.

Open space — acquisitions - funds set aside in this reserve will be utilised exclusively for open
space land acquisitions.

Development Contribution Plan — Council funded - For Council funded development
contribution plans holds funds in respect of Council's contribution to the two major
developments in Dandenong South (C87) and Keysborough (C36).

Keysborough Maintenance Levy - this reserve has been established to ensure full
accountability of the levies received for the Keysborough and Somerfield Estates reflecting
costs of maintaining an additional 15 per cent open space beyond that of traditional estates.

Self-insurance - this fund has been created to meet large and unexpected policy excesses on
multiple insurance claims.

Spring Valley Landfill reserve - to rehabilitate the Spring Valley landfill site at Clarke Road,
Springvale South.

Springvale Activity Precinct parking and development reserve - to fund development in the
Springvale Activity Centre.

Dandenong Activity Precinct parking and development reserve - to fund development in the
Dandenong Activity Centre.

General reserve (aged care) - relates to financial impacts of future aged care sector reforms.

Future maintenance reserve (LXRA) - holds contribution funds for future works to address
level crossing removal authority defects.

Native revegetation reserves - These funds are to meet native re-vegetation requirements on
Council’s reserves.

4.3.2 Equity

Council’s equity represents the difference between assets and liabilities which is expected to grow
by $31.41 in the 2021-22 financial year.
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4.4 Statement of Cash Flows

This section analyses the expected cash flows from the operating, investing and financing activities
of Council. Budgeting cash flows for Council is a key factor in setting the level of rates and providing
a guide to the level of capital expenditure that can be sustained with or without using existing cash
reserves to provide operational cash flow.

The analysis is based on three main categories of cash flows:

. Operating activities — refers to the cash generated or used in the normal service delivery
functions of Council. Cash remaining after paying for the provision of services for the
community may be available for investment in capital works or repayment of debt.

. Investing activities — refers to cash generated or used in the enhancement or creation of
infrastructure or other assets. These activities also include the acquisition and sale of other
assets such as vehicles, property, plant and equipment.

. Financing activities — refers to cash generated or used in the financing of Council functions
and include borrowings from financial institutions and advancing of repayable loans to other
organisations. These activities also include repayment of the principal component of loan
requirements for the year.

4.4.1 Cash flows provided by operating activities

Forecast
Actual Budget
2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance

$'000 $'000 $'000 %
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)

Cash flows from operating activities

Rates and charges 150,946 155,936 4,990 3.0%
Statutory fees and fines 4,324 6,084 1,760 22.9%
User fees 6,213 8,441 2,228 22.8%
Grants - operating 34,704 32,400 (2,304) (7.3%)
Grants - capital 14,488 9,996 (4,492) (543.8%)
Contributions - monetary 4,059 4,935 876 43.8%
Interest received 700 758 58 4.8%
Trust funds and deposits taken 27,052 28,052 1,000 3.4%
Other receipts 5,649 7,070 1,421 18.8%
Net GST refund 12,986 10,948 (2,038) (18.1%)
Employee costs (90,105) (85,981) 4,124 (4.7%)
Materials and senices (89,593) (85,273) 4,320 (4.8%)
Trust funds and deposits repaid (27,052) (27,552) (500) 1.8%
Other payments (7,921) (4,792) 3,129 (63.8%)
Net cash provided by operating activities 46,450 61,022 14,572 27.0%
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Council is estimating to generate a net cash surplus of $61.02 million from its operations in 2021-
22, an increase of $14.57 million compared to the 2020-21 Forecast. The increase is due to the
following factors:

. Rates and charges ($4.99 million) - higher expected cash inflows relating to rate revenue
consistent with the 1.50 per cent rate cap combined with an increase in waste service charges
to recover higher landfill levy costs.

. Materials and services ($4.32 million) — due mainly to a number of one off initiatives or grant
funded projects occurring in 2020-21, combined with Spring Valley Landfill rehabilitation works
that are not expected to continue in 2021-22.

. Employee costs ($4.12 million) — mainly caused by increased in employee costs in 2020-21
due to the significant Working For Victoria project and other grant funded projects not
continuing in 2021-22.

. Other payments ($3.13 million) — lower cash flows for other payments in 2021-22 due to
COVID-19 programs for Business Grants and Material Aid, grant funded contributions and
Council election costs that occurred in 2020-21, but are not expected to continue in 2021-22.

Partly offset by:

. A reduction in capital grants income ($4.49 million) due to the non-recurrent nature of such
funding (refer to section 4.1.4 for further details).

Reconciliation of surplus/(deficit) to cash flows from operating activities

The net cash flows from operating activities does not equal the surplus (deficit) as the expected
revenues and expenses of Council include non-cash items which have been excluded from the
Cash Flow Statement. The budgeted operating result is reconciled to the budgeted cash flows
available from operating activities as set in the following table.

Forecast
Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance

$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Surplus for the year 23,697 31,405 7,708 32.5%
Depreciation 32,308 33,277 969 3.0%
Amortisation - intangible assets 60 60 - 0.0%
Amortisation - right of use assets 581 604 23 4.0%
(Gain)/loss on sale of assets (290) (403) (113) 39.0%
Contributions non-monetary (15,000) (10,000) 5,000 (33.3%)
Borrowing costs 2,924 2,802 (122) (4.2%)
Finance costs - leases 21 22 1 4.8%
Net movement in other assets and liabilities 2,149 3,255 1,106 51.5%
Cash flows available from operating activities 46,450 61,022 14,572 31.4%
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4.4.2 Cash flows used in investing activities

Forecast
Actual Budget
2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance

$'000 $'000 $'000 %
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and

equipment (82,984) (63,362) 19,622 (29.6%)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant

and equipment 1,527 704 (823) (121.0%)
Proceeds (payments) for investments 2,000 - (2,000) 100.0%
Net cash used in investing activities (79,457) (62,658) 16,799 (25.6%)

Investing activities comprise cash inflows from sale of assets and outflows from expenditure on
purchasing and constructing assets (capital works).

Council will have a net outflow from investing activities of $62.66 million in 2021-22, made up of
cash outflows from investment in capital works of $63.36 million, partly offset by proceeds from the
sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment. No major asset sales are forecast in 2021-22.

The level of cash used in investing activities has decreased by $16.80 million from the 2020-21
Forecast which is mainly due to a high level of capital carry overs and grant funded capital projects
included in the 2020-21 Forecast. The 2020-21 Original Budget for payments for property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment was $43.71 million, so the investment in capital works has
actually increased from the prior year.

4.4.3 Cash flows used in financing activities

Forecast
Actual Budget
2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance

$'000 $'000 $'000 %
Inflows Inflows
(Outflows) (Outflows)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs (2,924) (2,802) 122 (4.0%)
Proceeds from borrowings - 6,120 6,120 40.8%
Repayment of borrowings (3,255) (3,372) (117) 2.1%
Interest paid - lease liability 21) (22) 1) 4.2%
Repayment of lease liabilities (571) (689) (118) 16.1%
Net cash used in financing activities (6,771) (765) 6,006 105.1%

Financing activities relate to cash inflows from any new borrowings and outflows from repayments
of loan principal and interest.

The decrease in cash flows used in financing activities is due mainly to the $6.12 million in loan
borrowing proceeds in 2021-22, partly offset by the normal repayment of existing borrowings and
ongoing interest commitments on existing borrowings.
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4.4.4 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Council is projected to have cash and cash equivalents of $112.38 million at 30 June 2021. This
balance includes cash that is “restricted” from being applied for the general operations of Council.

4.45 Unrestricted and unrestricted cash and investments

Cash and cash equivalents held by Council are restricted in part, and not fully available for Council’s
operations. The budgeted cash flow statement in Section 3 indicates that Council is estimating at
30 June 2021 it will have cash and investments of $112.38 million, which has been restricted as
follows:

. Statutory reserves ($11.24 million) - These funds comprise open space contributions. They
must be applied for specified statutory purposes in accordance with various legislative and
contractual requirements. Whilst these funds earn interest revenues for Council, they are not
available for other purposes.

. Discretionary reserves ($36.63 million) - Funds set aside by Council for a specific purpose but
are not protected by statute. The 2021-22 forecast balance comprises all reserve balances
except for the Open Space reserves (Planning, development and improvements and
Acquisitions). See section 4.3.1 for further details.

. Employee entitlements ($20.59 million) - Includes amounts required to meet Council’'s long
service leave, annual leave and rostered day off liabilities.

. Trust funds and deposits ($9.24 million) - Represent monies held in trust to be refunded and
mainly relate to road deposits, other refundable deposits and fire services property levy.

. Unearned DCP income ($28.38 million) - Represent DCP income not yet earned and
constitute developer monies relating to the two major Developer Contribution Plans.
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4.5 Capital works program

This section presents a listing of the capital works projects that will be undertaken for the 2021-22
year, classified by expenditure type and funding source.

4.5.1 Summary of capital works

Total capital expenditure

Property

Plant and equipment
Infrastructure

Total

Capital expenditure by asset type

Forecast

Actual Budget

2020-21 2021-22 Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000

33,961 34,798 837
5,656 4,295 (1,361)

43,367 24,269 (19,098)

82,984 63,362 (19,622)

Asset expenditure types

Variance
%

2.5%
(24.1%)
(44.0%)
(23.6%)

Expansion

Project

Cost

$'000

Property 34,798
Plant and equipment 4,295
Infrastructure 24,269
Total 63,362

Capital expenditure by funding source

Project
Cost Grants
$'000 $'000
Property 34,798 1,751
Plant and equipment 4,295 -
Infrastructure 24,269 8,245
Total 63,362 9,996

4.5.2 Current year capital works

New Renewal Upgrade
$'000 $'000 $'000
12,776 5,887 11,935
- 4,295 -
2,675 9,802 11,792
15,451 19,984 23,727

Summary of funding sources

Council
Contrib. cash
$'000 $'000 $'000
2,910 16,817 7,200
- 4,295 -
25 15,089 910
2,935 36,201 8,110

Reserves Borrowings
$'000
6,120

6,120

A detailed listing of the proposed capital works program for 2021-22 is included on the following
pages, including classification by expenditure type and funding sources.
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Budgeted capitalworks 2021-22 (by asset category)

@ Property
#@Plant and equipment

u|Infrastructure

Budgeted capital works 2021-22 (by asset expenditure type)

@ New asset expenditure
HAsset renewal expenditure
i Asset expansion expenditure

H Asset upgrade expenditure

CITY OF GREATER DANDENONG 2021-22 BUDGET
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4.5.3. Property

The property class comprises land acquisitions, building and building improvements including
community facilities, sports facilities and pavilions.

The more significant projects in 2021-22 include:

e $10.23 million  Keysborough South Community Hub Development — Construction (Stage 2
of 2) (funded from borrowings of $6.12 million, DCP contributions of $2.91
million and State Government grant funding of $1.2 million).

e $7.90 million Ross Reserve New Pavilion (Football) — Construction (Stage 2 of 2) (partly
funded by State Government grant funding of $75,000).

o $4.20 million Noble Park Aquatic Centre — Health and Wellbeing Gymnasium
Redevelopment (funded by reserves of $3.9 million and State Government
grant funding of $300,000).

e $3.30 million Dandenong Oasis Replacement — detailed design (funded from reserves).

o $3.00 million Thomas P Carroll Reserve Crowe Pavilion — construction/refurbishment

(Stage 2 of 2).
e $1.97 million Building renewal program.
o $942,793 8 Balmoral Avenue Multi Storey Car Park — implement ramps at north and

sound end of car park.

4.5.4 Plant and equipment

The plant and equipment category include the ongoing replacement program of Council’s heavy
plant (trucks, sweepers, etc.) and motor vehicle fleet ($2.84 million). It also includes expenditure
on computer and telecommunications — replacing the Merit CRM system ($500,000) library resource
renewal ($878,000) and fixtures, fittings and furniture ($80,000).

4,55 Infrastructure

Infrastructure includes roads, bridges, footpaths and cycleways, drainage, recreation, leisure and
community facilities, parks, open space and streetscapes and off-street car parks.

Most of the expenditure in this category is critical in terms of meeting Council’s asset renewal
challenge and ensuring a high level of amenity to the residents of City of Greater Dandenong.

Significant projects in 2021-22 include:

Roads, bridges, drainage, footpaths and cycle ways, off street car parks

e $3.67 million Road Resurfacing Program (including Roads to Recovery grant funded
works of $1.02 million).

e $2.09 million Abbotts Road (between National Drive and Railway) — Widening
Construction (Stage 2 of 3) (funded by LRCI grant funding).

e $1.23 million Colemans Road — road reconstruction (funded by LRCI grant funding).
e $1.16 million Kerb and Channel Renewal and Resurfacing Programs.

e $1.70 million Callander Road (Catchment 9) — Drainage upgrade (Stage 1 of 3) (funded
by LRCI grant funding).

e $1.70 million Footpath Renewal Program and Active Transport Infrastructure Priority
Program.
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Recreational, leisure and community facilities and Parks, open space and streetscapes

o $1.39 million Springvale Boulevard — Construction (Stages 1 and 2).
o $1.18 million Douglas Street — streetscape upgrade (Stage 4).

* $850,000 lan Street — Streetscape upgrade construction (mostly funded by grant
funding of $750,000).

e $610,000 Noble Park — Revitalisation (part funded by grant funding of $310,000).

e $500,000 Burden Park Tennis — Construction of lights, fencing and resurfacing of
courts (Stage 2 of 3) (part funded by Club contribution of $25,000).

e $450,000 Frederick Wachter Reserve — District playground construction and passive
park upgrade (Stage 1 of 2) (funded by reserves).

e $300,000 Rowley Allan Reserve — Netball court upgrade.

4.5.6 Capital works funding sources

Council’'s capital expenditure program for 2021-22 will be funded as follows:

Original
Budget Budget

Sources of funding 2020-21 2021-22 Variance Variance

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
External
Capital grants (a) 3,244 9,996 6,752 208.1%
Capital contributions (b) 910 2,935 2,025 222.5%
Borrowings (c) - 6,120 6,120 100.0%
Total external 4,154 19,051 14,897 358.6%
Internal
Transfer from reserves (d) 6,905 8,110 1,205 17.5%
Council cash (e) 32,646 36,201 3,555 10.9%
Total internal 39,551 44,311 4,760 12.0%
Total capital works 43,705 63,362 19,657 45.0%

A detailed listing of all projects that comprise the above totals of expenditure for the various asset
groupings is included in the previous section (4.5.2).

The table above highlights the increase in total capital works expenditure from the 2020-21 Original
Budget to 2021-22 is due to higher external funding from capital grants, contributions and
borrowings, as well as funding from Council’s reserves. This increase in funding sources (other
than Council rates) will assist in funding three major projects: Keysborough South Community Hub,
replacement of Dandenong Oasis and Noble Park Aquatic Centre Health and Wellbeing
Gymnasium redevelopment.

Funding from rate revenue for capital expenditure in 2021-22 is estimated at $36.20 million, which
represents a $4.76 million increase from the 2020-21 Original Budget. It should be noted that both
the 2020-21 Original Budget and 2021-22 Proposed Budget include reduced investments in capital
funding of $6.8 million and $2.3 million respectively to help fund financial impacts relating to COVID-
19.
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Budgetedtotal funding sources 2021-22

H Grants and contributions
EReserves

W Borrowings

# Council cash

(@) Capital grants

Capital grant funding sources for 2021-22 include:

e $5.10 million

e $1.20 million

e $1.02 million
e $750,000
e $450,000
e $317,980
e $310,000
* $300,000

e $275,000
* $75,000
* $40,000

Federal Government Local Roads and Community Infrastructure Program
(LRCI) (Phase 2) — various projects including road rehabilitation at Colemans
Road, Dandenong South, road reconstruction and widening at Abbotts Road,
Dandenong South and drainage augmentation to address flooding concerns at
Callander Road, Noble Park.

Part of a $3 million grant from the State Government as part of the Building
Blocks Capacity Program for the Keysborough South Community Hub project.

Federal Government Roads to Recovery grant funding (year 3 of 5).

Noble Park Revitalisation — lan Street Streetscape.

Noble Park Revitalisation — Frank Street Open Space improvement.

Safety, Security and Space Activation project.

Noble Park Revitalisation — Ross Reserve playground.

Final instalment of a $3.3 million grant for Noble Park Aquatic Centre Health
and Wellbeing Gymnasium redevelopment.

Herbert Street Pocket Park.

Final instalment of a $XX million grant for Ross Reserve Pavilion.

Final instalment of a $100,000 grant for Hemmings Street Neighbourhood
Activity Centre.

(b) Capital contributions

Capital contribution
e $2.91 million

e $25,000

funding includes:

Development Contribution Plan (DCP) contribution income for Keysborough
South Community Hub.

Club contribution for Burden Park Tennis project.
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(c) Borrowings

New borrowings of $6.12 million are forecast for 2021-22 to part fund the Keysborough South
Community Hub major project. These loan funds will be sought via the Community Infrastructure
Loans Scheme (CILS) which was announced in the 2020-21 Victorian State Budget to support
councils in delivering critical infrastructure to communities across the state. A successful application
is hoped to achieve savings through accessing a low-interest loan as well as receiving an interest
subsidy from the Victorian Government.

(d) Reserve funds

The transfer from reserves of $8.11 million comprises:

. Major Projects Reserve funds of $7.2 million for:
o $3.9 million — Noble Park Aquatic Centre — Health and Wellbeing Gymnasium
redevelopment.
o $3.3 million — Replacement of Dandenong Oasis.

. Dandenong Activity Centre Parking and Development Reserve funding of $300,000 for:
o $166,000 — Lonsdale Street public lights
o $134,000 — Vanity Lane - Construction of Streetscape (Stage 2)

. Open Space — Planning, Development and Improvements Reserve funding of $570,000 for:
o $450,000 — Frederick Wachter Reserve — District Playground Construction
o $80,000 — Springvale South — Charlotte Reserve (open space furniture and
improvements).
o $40,000 — Noble Park and Springvale Reserve upgrades (paths, fencing, open space
furniture and improvements).

. Future Maintenance (LXRA) reserve funds of $40,000 for Flinders Street streetscape.

(e) Rate funding applied to capital works

The 2021-22 Budget provides for $36.20 million of works funded by Council rates which represents
an increase of $3.56 million from the 2020-21 Adopted Budget ($32.65 million). However, it should
be noted that both the 2020-21 and 2021-22 years have included drops in funding due to financial
impacts relating to COVID-19.

Original
Budget Budget Projections
2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Capital grants 3,244 9,996 2,518 826 -
Capital contributions 910 2,935 1,045 - -
Transfer from reserves 6,905 8,110 7,350 10,250 650
Loan proceeds - 6,120 15,000 15,000 -
Funded from operational surplus 32,646 36,201 39,706 40,174 41,170
Total capital works funding 43,705 63,362 65,619 66,250 41,820
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4.7 Operating initiatives

Several operating initiatives were included in the 2021-22 Budget. These items either represent
new or one off projects/initiatives that are not capital in nature and are therefore not included in the
Capital Program.

Operating initiative name and description Duration 2021-22
Operating

Expenditure
Budget

Greater Dandenong Business

Business Case for Dandenong Sports and Events Centre 1 year 50,000
50,000
Engineering Services
Asset demolition - Barry Powell Tennis Pavilion and Tennis Courts (x 2) 1 year 90,000
Asset demolition - Glendale Reserve Scout Hall 1 year 75,000
165,000
City Planning, Design and Amenity
Canopy Cover Audit Ongoing 2,500
2,500
Community Services
Barry Powell Sports Pavilion - Concept design 1 year 80,000
80,000
TOTAL OPERATING INITIATIVES INCLUDED IN 2021-22 BUDGET 297,500
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5. Financial performance indicators

The following table summarises the key indicative financial results for the next four years 2021-22
to 2024-25.

Forecast
Actual Budget Projections

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 Trend
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 +/o/-

Result for the year 23,697 31,405 28,119 25,558 26,228

Adjusted underlying result (8,278) 7,492 13,574 13,558 14,228 +
Cash and investments balance 114,785 112,384 110,274 104,378 102,970 o
Cash flows from operations 46,450 61,022 55,349 53,959 50,593 o
Capital works expenditure 82,984 63,362 65,619 66,250 41,820 o

Key to Forecast Trend:

+ Forecasts improvement in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator

o Forecasts that Council's financial performance/financial position indicator will be steady
- Forecasts deterioration in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator

The tables following highlight Council’s current and projected performance across a range of key
financial performance indicators. These indicators provide a useful analysis of Council’s financial
position and performance and should be interpreted in the context of the organisation’s objectives.

The financial performance indicators below are the prescribed financial performance indicators
contained in Part 3 of Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations
2020. Results against these indicators will be reported in Council’s Performance Statement
included in the Annual Report.
Dimension / indicator / measure Actual Forecast Budget Projections

2019-20  2020-21 202122  2022-23 202324  2024-25

o
z

o
=

Efficiency

Expenditure level

Expenses per property assessment $2,991.75 $3,181.71 $3,032.41 $2,997.00 $3,042.54 $3,074.90 o
[Total expenses / Number of property

assessments]

Revenue level

Average rate per property $1,838.75 $1,894.72 $1,923.17 $1,942.73 $1,977.11 $2,011.90 +
assessment

[General rates and municipal charges / Number

of property assessments]

Liquidity

Working capital

Current assets compared to current 2 205.46% 154.21% 144.91% 139.84% 131.13% 134.69% -
liabilities

[Current assets / current liabilities] x 100

Unrestricted cash

Unrestricted cash compared to 3 103.14% 102.77% 92.96%  85.74%  75.06% 73.27% -
current liabilities

[Unrestricted cash / current liabilifes] x 100

Key to forecast trend
+ Forecasts improvement in Council's financial performance/position indicator
o Forecasts that Council's financial performance/financial position indicator will be steady
- Forecasts deterioration in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator
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Dimension / indicator / measure Actual Forecast Budget

2019-20  2020-21  2021-22

Obligations

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings compared to 4 41.72%  37.68%  38.40%
rates

[Interest-bearing loans and borrowings / rate

revenue]

x 100

Loans and borrowings repayments 8.16% 4.11% 3.99%
compared to rates

[Interest and principal repay ments on interest

bearing loans and borrowings / rate revenue] x

100

Indebtedness

Non-current liabilities compared to 34.74% 32.28% 31.64%
own source revenue

[Non-current liabiliies / own source revenue] x

100

Asset renewal and upgrade

Asset renewal and upgrade 5 113.10% 174.71% 131.35%
compared to depreciation

[Asset renewal and upgrade expense / asset

depreciation] x 100

2022-23

44.52%

4.31%

35.66%

160.18%

Projectio

2023-24

49.15%

5.25%

38.90%

158.78%

Trend
2024-25 +lol-

43.66% +

6.13%  +

34.18%  +

83.75%  +

Operating position

Adjusted underlying result

Adjusted underlying surplus 1 0.61%  (3.02%) 4.86%
(deficit)

[Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit) / Adjusted

underlying revenue] x 100

6.70%

6.10%

6.26%  +

Stability

Rates concentration

Rates compared to adjusted 6 71.56% 73.03% 72.10%
underlying revenue

[Rate revenue / adjusted underlying revenue]

x 100

Rates effort

Rates compared to property values 0.29% 0.30% 0.31%

[Rate revenue / capital improved value of rateable
properties in the municipality] x 100

72.36%

0.31%

73.04%

0.31%

73.44% o

031% o

Key to forecast trend
+ Forecasts improvement in Council's financial performance/position indicator

o Forecasts that Council's financial performance/financial position indicator will be steady
- Forecasts deterioration in Council's financial performance/financial position indicator
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Notes to indicators

1.

Adjusted underlying result — Council’s underlying operational surplus forecasts
improvement in 2021-22 and 2022-23 and remains steady thereafter, which means that
Council’s overall asset base is not being eroded over the period of the strategy. This ratio
is an indicator of the sustainable operating result required to enable Council to continue to
provide core services and meet its objectives. Improvement in financial performance is
expected over the period, although continued losses means reliance on Council's cash
reserves or increased debt to maintain services.

Working capital — The proportion of current liabilities represented by current assets. Whilst
the working capital ratio result decreases from 2021-22 to 2024-25, current assets to
liabilities continue to remain at a healthy level across all years indicating sufficient liquidity.

Unrestricted cash — Unrestricted cash is all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted
cash. Restricted cash represents cash and cash equivalents and financial assets that are
available for use other than for the purpose for which it is restricted and includes cash that
will be used to fund carry forward capital works. Restricted items include trust funds and
deposits, statutory reserves, carry forward capital works and conditional grants unspent.
This indicator is an assessment of Council’s ability to pay bills on time. Higher unrestricted
cash relative to liabilities suggests Council is able to pay bills in a timely manner. This ratio
result is expected to decline over the period 2021-22 to 2024-25 which is indicative of the
financial impact on Council of rate capping legislation and the COVID-19 pandemic.

Debt compared to rates — This trend indicates Council's increasing reliance on debt
against its annual rate revenue particularly in 2022-23 and 2023-24 due to new borrowings
forecast to fund major capital projects. The debt ratio reduces again in 2024-25 and over
the period remains within prudential guidelines.

Asset renewal and upgrade - This percentage indicates the extent of Council's renewal
and upgrade expenditure against its depreciation charge (an indication of the decline in
value of its existing capital assets). A percentage greater than 100 indicates Council is
maintaining its existing assets, while a percentage less than 100 means its assets are
deteriorating faster than they are being renewed/upgraded and future capital expenditure
will be required to renew/upgrade assets. The indicator result is forecast to be high over
the 2021-22 to 2023-24 period due to significant upgrade works for the replacement of
Dandenong Oasis (major project).

Rates concentration - Reflects extent of reliance on rate revenues to fund all of Council's
on-going services. Trend is steady and indicates Council will become slightly more reliant
on rate revenue compared to all other revenue sources.
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6. Schedule of Fees and Charges

The City of Greater Dandenong provides a range of services to the community. Some of these
services have an associated fee or charge levied. Services funded by fees and charges provide
enhanced community wellbeing.

This section presents the fees and charges of a statutory/non-statutory nature which will be charged
in respect to various goods and services during the 2021-22 financial year.

Fees and charges are based on information available at the time of publishing and may vary during
the financial year subject to any changes in Council’s policy or legislation.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The current GST status of goods and services provided by Council is shown in this Schedule against
each item. ltis indicated in the right-most column on each page, as follows:

e Y -GST applies and is included in the amount shown

e N -GST does not apply to this good or service

The GST status of Council’s fees and charges is determined in accordance with relevant provisions
of A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act and rulings issued by the Australian Taxation
Office.

The GST legislation deems that Council’s fees and charges are to include GST (taxable supply)
unless they are identified for specific exemption from GST.

This determination under section 81-5 of the GST Act identifies those Council fees and charges that
are exempted from GST. The application of GST to the Fees and Charges schedule is therefore
based on current Australian Taxation Office (ATO) legislation including this determination.

Council may be required to further amend the GST status of specific fees and charges when the
ATO approves and issues further legislation or regulations. The impact of further ATO amendments
may therefore require Council to alter prices in this Schedule to reflect changes in the GST status
of particular goods or services.

Deposits, when initially paid, do not attract GST. If part or all of a deposit is retained, due to damage
to a hall, for example, GST is then applicable. If the deposit does not cover the full (GST-inclusive)
charge, the extra amount will be requested of the hirer.

Basis of fee

While many of the fees and charges in the Schedule are set at Council’s discretion, a number are
established by a range of external bodies such as Government Departments or professional
organisations. In the column headed “Basis of Fee”, an indication is given of the body responsible
for determining the price. The following legend explains the abbreviations:

a) CNCL - Greater Dandenong Council
b) REG - Regulation associated with the relevant Act, or the Act itself
c) CON - Fees determined based on the requirements of Contract Agreements
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REG — Regulatory/Statutory fees

Where fees are set by Government statute, Council has no ability to alter the fee. The statutory
fees and charges disclosed in the following schedule are current at the time of preparing this report,
however, they are subject to change during the financial year. Council is required to apply the
revised statutory fees and charges from the advised effective date. Where relevant, prior year
comparative statutory fees have been updated to reflect the correct statutory fee for the relevant
financial year.

CON - Contract fees

The contract fees and charges are determined based on the requirements of the specific
management/contract arrangements in place between Council and the Managing Agency. The
Management Agreements that exist between Council and the Managing Agency state that the
pricing policies and fees charged for the facility will be developed and agreed between Council and
the Managing Agency and will form part of their business plan. Fees charged for the use of facilities
are fees of the Managing Agency, they are not fees of Council. As the fees and charges are under
a contract arrangement, they are subject to change during the financial year.

Refund policy

Refund of the following fees and charges are subject to conditions as detailed below:

Pet registration
(for fees set out under the heading ‘Pet registration’)

1. Subject to Clause 5 below, refunds are only available within the first six months of the
registration year.
2. For a deceased animal — 50 per cent of the fee paid.

3. Where registration has already been paid and an animal has subsequently been de-sexed,
microchipped or trained in accordance with the requirements of the Domestic Animals Act
Regulations — difference between full fee and reduced fee.

4. Refunds are only available if the amount to be refunded is more than $10.00.

5. Should a person pay a registration fee prior to commencement of the registration period for
a given year and the subject animal subsequently dies before that period commences, a full
refund of the fee shall be made. The refund shall be subject to provision of evidence of the
animal’s death e.g. a vet report, or the provision of an appropriate Statutory Declaration.

Local Laws Permit fees
(only applies to fees set out under the heading ‘Local Laws Permits’)

1. If a permit fee is paid at the time of the application and the application is then refused, the full
fee will be refunded.

2. Permit fees will only be refunded if the amount to be refunded is $30.00 or more.
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Food and Health related Business registration

Food and health related business registration fees are set at rates aimed at recovering Council’s
costs in administering and enforcing the Food Act, Public Health and Wellbeing Act and Residential
Tenancies Act.

Refund of business registration fees is therefore subject to the following conditions:

1. No refund is available for business operating in their first year of trading

2. 50 per cent of the renewal fee paid will be refunded to a business that is closing or ceasing
to trade within the first 6 months of the registration period that has not received an annual
inspection.

3. Full fee refunded where no service has been provided (e.g. request for a presale inspection).

4. In all cases, the refund shall be subject to provision of evidence of the business’s closure or

change of services.

Building permits
(applies to fees set out under this heading)

1. Cancellation of application for permit when no work has been carried out on plans. Refund
50 per cent of building fee plus all levies, subject to holding minimum of $30.00 administration
fee.

2. Cancellation of application for permit where assessment has commenced but not issued.
Refund 35 per cent of building fee plus all levies.

3. Cancellation of permit when no inspection has been carried out. Refund 25 per cent of
building fee, subject to holding minimum of $30.00 administration fee.

4. Report and consent fees where process commenced - no refund.

5. Refund on miscellaneous fees discretionary - subject to Manager’s approval.

Asset protection permits (applies to fees set out under this heading)

1. This permit is non-refundable.

Community Facility Management Policy

Fees and charges for the use or hire of community facilities have been set in line with the Community
Facility Management Policy. Use of community faciliies has been divided into the following
categories for the purpose of charging fees:

Community group All not for profit groups/organisations who provide local benefit.
General All private use/functions.

Commercial For-profit businesses and commercial enterprises.

Council funded Subsidised groups and programs that are conducted by Council.

This policy applies to both Council (CNCL) and Contract (CON) fees and charges.
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Halls and Meeting Room 6
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Springvale Reserve (Hall 1). 17
Springvale Reserve (Hall 2) 17
Springvale Reserve (Hall 1 and 2 combined 18
Springvale Reserve (Meeting room 1). 19
Springvale Reserve (Meeting room 2). 19
Springvale Reserve (All). 20
Palm Plaza (Meeting rooms) 20
Dandenong Civic Centre (Level 2) 21
Senior Citizens Centres 22
Jan Wilson C ity Centre, 23
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Paddy O'Donoghue Centre. 27
The Castle 28
Fotheringham Reserve Dand 29
Keysborough Community Hall 29
Public Liability Insurance Cover. 30
Single event 30
Multi event 30
Urban Screen 31
Commercial advertising 31

Business, Engineering and Major Project: 32
Asset Protection Permit: 32
Asset Protection Bond 33

Single street frontage. 33
Corner street frontage. 33
Community Signage. 33
Sportsgrounds (Casual hire) 34
Passive Open Space (Casual hire) 34
Casual hire fee 34
Security bond 34
Other fees and charge: 35
Subdivision and Other Fees 35
Subdivisior 35
Other fees and charge: 35
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Kerbside waste and recycling collecti 35
Additional bin service: 36
Other waste fees 36

Traffic Manag 1t Plans 36
Works 36
Minor works. 37
Other traffic fees 37

Cultural Tours 37

City Planning, Design and Amenity. 38

Building and Compliance Service 38
Building Permits and Service 38
Public Health 42
Fire Preventi 44
Planning Compli 45

Regulatory Services and Local Laws 45
Parking 45
Local Laws. 47
Animal Registrations and Other Fees. 49

Planning and Design Services. 51
Council charges for Planning considerations and service: 51
Pre-application discussion service. 52
Public notification fees — "Advertising’ 52
Fees under Planning and Environment (Fees) Regulati 2016 53

Community Service: 59

Aged and Disability Services (Community Care) 59
Community transport service. 59
Social support Group — Planned Activity Group. 59
Property mainter 59
Home care 59
Personal care 59
Individual Social Support 60
Respite care 60
Travel incurred for client outings, shopping and appointment: 60
Food services (Meals on wheels) 60
Food services (Meals on wheels) — bulk meals 61
Allied Health. 61
Home Modificatior 61

Library Service: 61

Family Day Care 62

Immunisation Services 62

Walker Street Gallery and Community Arts Centre 62
Room and exhibition hire 62

Greater Dandenong Gallery of Art 63
Room hire, 63
Other fees and charge: 64

Drum Theatre 64
Theatre services and function rooms. 64
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Equi| 1t hire. 66
Other fees and charge: 66
Cultural Facilities — Staff Charge: 67
Sportsgrounds and Pavilions. 67
Reserves ( | hire) 67
Pavilions ( I hire) 68
Pavilions (casual hire) 68
Synthetic pitch 69

Turf wick "
Tennis club rooms. 71
Offices 71
Other fees and charge: 72
Festivals and Event 72
Stallholder fees and equipment charge: 72
Harmony Square. 73
Contract FEEs and CRANgES. ......ccceoireireriererrrresseesssessneseee s e se e s s se s s e e s sse e s s e s sas e s s e sensesnesensesanesensessnnssneen 74
Leisure and Aquatic Centres — Full Acce 74
Memberships (direct debit) 74
Memberships (paid upfront) 74
Springers Leisure Centre 75
Main Hall and Minor Hall 75
Direct program 75
Team registration 75
Games fees 75
Casual fees 75
Hire fees. 76
Function hire. 76
Bond 77
Noble Park Aquatic Centre 78
Pool fees 78
School 78
Multi-visit p 78
Program 78
Birthday partie 79
Water slide 79
Community room: 79
Membership: 80
NPAC r bership (direct debit) 80
NPAC membership (paid upfront) 80
Locker hire 81
Dandenong Oasis 82
Facility hire 82
Locker hire 82
Casual swim 82
Group fitness 82
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Boot camp. 83
Older adults program: 83
Health club 83
Birthday partie 83
Squash hire, 83
Oasis memberships (direct debit) 83
Oasis memberships (paid upfront) 83
Pool hire 84
School - Aquatic 84
Dandenong Indoor Sports Stadium 85
Entry fees, 85
Court hire 85
Function hire. 85
Equipment charge: 86
Dandenong Netball Complex 87
Stadium 87
Skating 87
Direct program: 87
Outdoor courts 87
Meeting room 88
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21 Year 21/22

Increase Increase
% $

Council Fees and Charges

Corporate Services

Freedom of Information

Other charges may apply — these are set out in the Freedom of Information (Access Charges) Regulation 2014. Please refer to
www.foi.vic.gov.au for up to date information.

Application fee Per $29.60 $29.60 0.00% $0.00 REG N
application

Photocopying fees (per A4 black Per page $0.20 $0.20 0.00% $0.00 REG N

and white)

Search fees (calculated per hour Per hour or $22.20 $22.20 0.00% $0.00 REG N

or part of an hour rounded to the part

nearest 10 cents)

Supervision of inspection (per Per hour or $22.20 $22.20 0.00% $0.00 REG N

hour to be calculated per quarter part

hour or part of a quarter hour,
rounded to the nearest 10 cents)

Land Information Certificates

Land Information Certificate Fee Per $27.00 $27.00 0.00% $0.00 REG N
certificate

Halls and Meeting Rooms

Hire rates may vary depending on booking requirements. All cancellations and booking variations will incur a fee.

Springvale City Hall — Main Hall

Time limits apply — Monday to Thursday (1.00am), Friday (2.00am), Saturday (1.00am) and Sunday (midnight).

General

Minimum charge

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Minimum 3 $833.00 $846.00 1.56% $13.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Minimum 3 $1,060.00 $1,080.00 1.89% $20.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Friday — to 6pm Minimum 5 $2,040.00 $2,075.00 1.72% $35.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Friday — after 6pm Minimum 5 $2,675.00 $2,720.00 1.68% $45.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Saturday — day and night Minimum 5 $3,265.00 $3,315.00 1.53% $50.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Sunday — day and night Minimum 5 $3,265.00 $3,315.00 1.53% $50.00 CNCL Y
hour block
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City of Greater Dandenong
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21

Increase
%

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Per hour $277.50 $282.00 1.62%
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Per hour $353.00 $359.00 1.70%
Friday — to 6pm Per hour $408.00 $415.00 1.72%
Friday — after 6pm Per hour $535.00 $544.00 1.68%
Saturday — day and night Per hour $653.00 $663.00 1.53%
Sunday — day and night Per hour $653.00 $663.00 1.53%

Community Group

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced

Year 21/22

Increase

$

$4.50
$6.00
$7.00
$9.00
$10.00
$10.00

CNCL
CNCL
CNCL
CNCL
CNCL
CNCL

by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of

incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or

equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Minimum charge

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Minimum 3 $569.00 $569.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Minimum 3 $720.00 $720.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Friday — to 6pm Minimum 5 $1,370.00 $1,370.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Friday — after 6pm Minimum 5 $1,975.00 $1,975.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Saturday — day and night Minimum 5 $2,315.00 $2,315.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Sunday — day and night Minimum 5 $2,315.00 $2,315.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Additional hours / hourly rate
Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Per hour $190.00 $190.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Per hour $240.00 $240.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Friday — to 6pm Per hour $274.00 $274.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Friday — after 6pm Per hour $395.00 $395.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Saturday — day and night Per hour $463.00 $463.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Sunday — day and night Per hour $463.00 $463.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Commercial
Minimum charge
Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Minimum 3 $978.00 $993.00 1.53% $15.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Minimum 3 $1,210.00 $1,230.00 1.65% $20.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Friday — to 6pm Minimum 5 $2,225.00 $2,260.00 1.57% $35.00 CNCL Y
hour block
continued on next page ... Section 6.1 - Fees and Charges 2021-22 | Page 7 of 88

< << << <

3097



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21 Year 21/22

Increase Increase
% $

Minimum charge [continued]

Friday — after 6pm Minimum 5 $3,040.00 $3,090.00 1.64% $50.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Saturday — day and night Minimum 5 $3,685.00 $3,745.00 1.63% $60.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Sunday — day and night Minimum 5 $3,685.00 $3,745.00 1.63% $60.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Per hour $326.00 $331.00 1.53% $5.00 CNCL Y
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Per hour $403.00 $410.00 1.74% $7.00 CNCL Y
Friday — to 6pm Per hour $445.00 $452.00 1.57% $7.00 CNCL Y
Friday — after 6pm Per hour $608.00 $618.00 1.64% $10.00 CNCL Y
Saturday — day and night Per hour $737.00 $749.00 1.63% $12.00 CNCL Y
Sunday — day and night Per hour $737.00 $749.00 1.63% $12.00 CNCL Y
Other fees and charges
Balcony Per event $180.00 $183.00 1.67% $3.00 CNCL Y
Rehearsals (deb balls/school Maximum 3 $348.00 $354.00 1.72% $6.00 CNCL Y
concerts) hour block
Evening Maximum 3 $434.00 $441.00 1.61% $7.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Setting up — additional charge Minimum 3 $355.00 $361.00 1.69% $6.00 CNCL Y
(covers 3 hours and is the hour block
minimum)
Setting up — additional time per Per hour $118.50 $120.50 1.69% $2.00 CNCL Y
hour thereafter
Additional cleaning Per hour $217.00 $220.50 1.61% $3.50 CNCL Y
Bond
High risk events will incur double bond.
Security bond Per event $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL N
Springvale City Hall - Supper Room
Time limits apply — Monday to Thursday (1.00am), Friday (2.00am), Saturday (1.00am) and Sunday (midnight).
General
Minimum charge
Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Minimum 3 $423.00 $430.00 1.65% $7.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Minimum 3 $558.00 $567.00 1.61% $9.00 CNCL Y
hour block
continued on next page ... Section 6.1 - Fees and Charges 2021-22 | Page 8 of 88

3098



City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21 Year 21/22

Increase Increase
% $

Minimum charge [continued]

Friday — to 6pm Minimum 5 $745.00 $757.00 1.61% $12.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Friday — after 6pm Minimum 5 $969.00 $984.00 1.55% $15.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Saturday — day and night Minimum 5 $1,345.00 $1,370.00 1.86% $25.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Sunday — day and night Minimum 5 $1,345.00 $1,370.00 1.86% $25.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Per hour $141.00 $143.50 1.77% $2.50 CNCL Y
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Per hour $186.00 $189.00 1.61% $3.00 CNCL Y
Friday — to 6pm Per hour $149.00 $151.50 1.68% $2.50 CNCL Y
Friday — after 6pm Per hour $194.00 $197.00 1.55% $3.00 CNCL Y
Saturday — day and night Per hour $268.50 $273.00 1.68% $4.50 CNCL Y
Sunday — day and night Per hour $268.50 $273.00 1.68% $4.50 CNCL Y

Community Group

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced
by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of
incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or
equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Minimum charge

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Minimum 3 $333.00 $333.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Minimum 3 $451.00 $451.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Friday — to 6pm Minimum 5 $591.00 $591.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Friday — after 6pm Minimum 5 $776.00 $776.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Saturday — day and night Minimum 5 $1,075.00 $1,075.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Sunday — day and night Minimum 5 $1,075.00 $1,075.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Per hour $111.00 $111.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Per hour $150.50 $150.50 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Friday — to 6pm Per hour $118.50 $118.50 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Friday — after 6pm Per hour $155.50 $155.50 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Saturday — day and night Per hour $215.00 $215.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Sunday — day and night Per hour $215.00 $215.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21 Year 21/22

Increase Increase
% $

Commercial

Minimum charge

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Minimum 3 $537.00 $546.00 1.68% $9.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Minimum 3 $669.00 $680.00 1.64% $11.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Friday — to 6pm Minimum 5 $936.00 $951.00 1.60% $15.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Friday — after 6pm Minimum 5 $1,170.00 $1,190.00 1.71% $20.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Saturday — day and night Minimum 5 $1,605.00 $1,630.00 1.56% $25.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Sunday — day and night Minimum 5 $1,605.00 $1,630.00 1.56% $25.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Per hour $179.00 $182.00 1.68% $3.00 CNCL Y
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Per hour $223.00 $226.50 1.57% $3.50 CNCL Y
Friday — to 6pm Per hour $187.00 $190.00 1.60% $3.00 CNCL Y
Friday — after 6pm Per hour $234.00 $238.00 1.71% $4.00 CNCL Y
Saturday — day and night Per hour $321.00 $326.00 1.56% $5.00 CNCL Y
Sunday — day and night Per hour $321.00 $326.00 1.56% $5.00 CNCL Y
Other fees and charges
Setting up — additional charge Per set up $355.00 $361.00 1.69% $6.00 CNCL Y
(covers 3 hours and is the
minimum)
Setting up — additional time per Per hour $118.50 $120.50 1.69% $2.00 CNCL Y
hour thereafter
Additional cleaning Per hour $190.50 $193.50 1.57% $3.00 CNCL Y
Bond
High risk events will incur double bond.
Security bond Per event $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL N
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City of Greater Dandenong
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21

Increase
%

Springvale City Hall — Supper Room (half room only)

The Supper Room (half room only) is not available Friday nights after 6pm, Saturday or Sunday.

General

Minimum charge

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Minimum 3 $586.00 $595.00 1.54%
hour block

Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Minimum 3 $709.00 $720.00 1.55%
hour block

Friday — to 6pm Minimum 5 $1,390.00 $1,415.00 1.80%
hour block

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Per hour $195.50 $198.50 1.53%
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Per hour $236.50 $240.50 1.69%
Friday — to 6pm Per hour $277.50 $282.00 1.62%

Community Group

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced

Year 21/22

Increase

$

$9.00

$11.00

$25.00

$3.00
$4.00
$4.50

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL
CNCL
CNCL

by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of

incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or

equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Minimum charge

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Minimum 3 $386.00 $386.00 0.00% $000 CNCL Y
hour block
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Minimum 3 $487.00 $487.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Friday — to 6pm Minimum 5 $929.00 $929.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Additional hours / hourly rate
Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Per hour $129.00 $129.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Per hour $163.00 $163.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Friday — to 6pm Per hour $187.00 $187.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Commercial
Minimum charge
Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Minimum 3 $666.00 $676.00 1.50% $10.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Minimum 3 $820.00 $833.00 1.59% $13.00 CNCL Y
hour block
continued on next page ... Section 6.1 - Fees and Charges 2021-22 | Page 11 of 88
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City of Greater Dandenong
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21

Increase
%

Minimum charge [continued]

Friday — to 6pm Minimum 5 $1,515.00 $1,540.00 1.65%
hour block

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Thursday — to 6pm Per hour $222.00 $225.50 1.58%
Monday to Thursday — after 6pm Per hour $273.50 $278.00 1.65%
Friday — to 6pm Per hour $303.00 $308.00 1.65%

Other fees and charges

Setting up — additional charge Per set up $355.00 $361.00 1.69%
(covers 3 hours and is the
minimum)

Setting up — additional time per Per hour $118.50 $120.50 1.69%
hour thereafter

Additional cleaning Per hour $190.50 $193.50 1.57%

Bond

High risk events will incur double bond.

Security bond Per event $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

Springvale Community Hub

General

Community Room 1 Per hour $28.00 $28.00 0.00%
Community Room 2 Per hour $28.00 $28.00 0.00%
Community Room 2 and 3 Per hour $39.00 $39.00 0.00%
(combined)

Community Room 3 Per hour $28.00 $28.00 0.00%
Community Room 4 Per hour $28.00 $28.00 0.00%
Community Room 5 Per hour $28.00 $28.00 0.00%
Community Room 6 Per hour $41.00 $41.00 0.00%
Community Room 7 Per hour $39.00 $39.00 0.00%
Meeting Room 1 Per hour $20.00 $20.00 0.00%
Meeting Room 2 Per hour $20.00 $20.00 0.00%

Community Group

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced

Year 21/22

Increase

$

$25.00

$3.50
$4.50
$5.00

$6.00

$2.00

$3.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

CNCL

CNCL
CNCL
CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL
CNCL
CNCL

CNCL
CNCL
CNCL
CNCL
CNCL
CNCL
CNCL

by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of

incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or

equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Community Room 1 Per hour $20.00 $20.00 0.00%
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21 Year 21/22

Increase Increase
% $

Community Group [continued]

Community Room 2 Per hour $20.00 $20.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Community Room 2 and 3 Per hour $31.00 $31.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
(combined)
Community Room 3 Per hour $20.00 $20.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Community Room 4 Per hour $20.00 $20.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Community Room 5 Per hour $20.00 $20.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Community Room 6 Per hour $33.00 $33.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Community Room 7 Per hour $31.00 $31.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Meeting Room 1 Per hour $15.00 $15.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Meeting Room 2 Per hour $15.00 $15.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y

Commercial
Community Room 1 Per hour $36.00 $36.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Community Room 2 Per hour $36.00 $36.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Community Room 2 and 3 Per hour $47.00 $47.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
(combined)
Community Room 3 Per hour $36.00 $36.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Community Room 4 Per hour $36.00 $36.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Community Room 5 Per hour $36.00 $36.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Community Room 6 Per hour $49.00 $49.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Community Room 7 Per hour $47.00 $47.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Meeting Room 1 Per hour $28.00 $28.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Meeting Room 2 Per hour $28.00 $28.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y

Edinburgh Hall

(capacity 100)

General

Minimum charge
Friday to Sunday Minimum 5 $257.00 $261.00 1.56% $4.00 CNCL Y

hour block

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Sunday Per hour $51.50 $52.50 1.94% $1.00 CNCL Y
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City of Greater Dandenong

ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Community Group

Year 20/21

Increase
%

Year 21/22

Increase

$

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced
by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of
incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or

equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Minimum charge

Friday to Sunday

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Sunday

Commercial

Minimum charge

Friday to Sunday

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Sunday

Bond

Minimum 5
hour block

Per hour

Minimum 5
hour block

Per hour

High risk events will incur double bond.

Security bond

Per event

$148.00

$30.00

$309.00

$62.50

$300.00

$148.00

$30.00

$314.00

$63.50

$300.00

0.00%

0.00%

1.62%

1.60%

0.00%

Heritage Hill (Benga and Laurel Lodge) and Historic Gardens

General

Large Rooms (Langley Gallery —
Benga, Dining Room — Laurel
Lodge, Gardens)

Medium Rooms (Sunroom —
Benga)

Small Rooms (Dining Room —
Laurel Lodge, Bedrooms —
Benga)

Medium Gallery (Langley
Gallery — Benga, Laurel Lodge)

Small Gallery (Master Bedroom
— Benga, Sunroom — Benga)

Security bond (after hours)

Per hour

Per hour

Per hour

Per week

Per week

Per event

$32.00

$21.50

$16.00

$106.00

$42.50

$120.00

$32.50

$22.00

$16.40

$107.60

$43.50

$120.00

1.56%

2.33%

2.50%

1.51%

2.35%

0.00%

$0.00

$0.00

$5.00

$1.00

$0.00

$0.50

$0.50

$0.40

$1.60

$1.00

$0.00

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21 Year 21/22

Increase Increase
% $

Community Group

Large Rooms (Langley Gallery — Per hour $26.50 $27.00 1.89% $0.50 CNCL Y
Benga, Dining Room — Laurel
Lodge, Gardens)

Medium Rooms (Sunroom — Per hour $19.20 $19.60 2.08% $0.40 CNCL Y

Benga)

Small Rooms (Dining Room — Per hour $13.00 $13.20 1.54% $0.20 CNCL Y

Laurel Lodge, Bedrooms —

Benga)

Medium Gallery (Langley Per week $63.50 $64.50 1.57% $1.00 CNCL Y

Gallery — Benga, Laurel Lodge)

Small Gallery (Master Bedroom Per week $32.00 $32.50 1.56% $0.50 CNCL Y

— Benga, Sunroom — Benga)

Security bond (after hours) Per event $100.00 $100.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL N
Commercial

Large Rooms (Langley Gallery — Per hour $42.50 $43.50 2.35% $1.00 CNCL Y

Benga, Dining Room — Laurel
Lodge, Gardens)

Medium Rooms (Sunroom — Per hour $32.00 $32.50 1.56% $0.50 CNCL Y
Benga)

Small Rooms (Dining Room — Per hour $21.50 $22.00 2.33% $0.50 CNCL Y
Laurel Lodge, Bedrooms —

Benga)

Medium Gallery (Langley Per week $148.50 $151.00 1.68% $2.50 CNCL Y
Gallery — Benga, Laurel Lodge)

Small Gallery (Master Bedroom Per week $53.00 $54.00 1.89% $1.00 CNCL Y
— Benga, Sunroom — Benga)

Security bond (after hours) Per event $200.00 $200.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL N

Other fees and charges

Commission on artwork sales 25% of sale proceeds ~ CNCL Y
Heritage Hill — Studio hire — Per week $74.50 $76.00 2.01% $1.50 CNCL Y
School house

Heritage Hill — Studio hire — Per week $74.50 $76.00 2.01% $1.50 CNCL Y
Coach house

Workshop programs — School Per person From $5to $25 CNCL Y
holiday workshop fees

Workshop programs — Adult Per person From $10to $35 CNCL Y
workshop fees

Heritage Hill museum and Per person $9.50 $9.70 2.11% $0.20 CNCL Y
historic garden tour (minimum

10 people)

Heritage Hill museum and Per person $7.00 $7.10 1.43% $0.10 CNCL Y

historic garden tour (minimum
10 people) — seniors

Education tour Per person $7.00 $7.10 1.43% $0.10 CNCL

General visitation (adults, Per person Gold coin CNCL N
concession, students, seniors)
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4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Other fees and charges [continued]

Gardeners only tour
Tea and coffee cart
Microphone hire

Projector hire

Menzies Avenue

(capacity 300)

General

Minimum charge
Friday to Sunday

Saturday 5.30pm onwards

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Thursday
Friday to Sunday

Community Group

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced

Per person
(flat rate)

Per tour (flat
rate)

Per hire (flat
rate)

Per hire (flat
rate)

Minimum 5
hour block

Per event

Per hour

Per hour

Year 20/21

$4.50

$20.00

$25.00

$25.00

$473.00

$709.00

$75.50
$95.00

$4.50

$20.00

$25.00

$25.00

$481.00

$720.00

$77.00
$96.50

Increase

%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

1.69%

1.55%

1.99%
1.58%

Year 21/22

Increase

$

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$8.00

$11.00

$1.50
$1.50

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL
CNCL

by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of

incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or
equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Minimum charge

Friday to Sunday

Saturday 5.30pm onwards

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Thursday
Friday to Sunday

Minimum 5
hour block

Per event

Per hour

Per hour

$378.00

$587.00

$62.00
$76.00

$378.00

$587.00

$62.00
$76.00
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0.00%

0.00%

0.00%
0.00%

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

CNCL

CNCL

CNCL
CNCL
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21 Year 21/22

Increase Increase
% $

Commercial

Minimum charge

Friday to Sunday Minimum 5 $566.00 $575.00 1.59% $9.00 CNCL Y
hour block
Saturday 5.30pm onwards Per event $740.00 $752.00 1.62% $12.00 CNCL Y

Additional hours / hourly rate

Monday to Thursday Per hour $77.50 $79.00 1.94% $1.50 CNCL Y
Friday to Sunday Per hour $113.50 $115.50 1.76% $2.00 CNCL Y
Bond

High risk events will incur double bond.

Security bond Per event $500.00 $500.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL N

Springvale Reserve (Hall 1)

(capacity 110)
General

Monday to Thursday Per hour $51.50 $52.50 1.94% $1.00 CNCL Y

Community Group

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced
by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of
incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or
equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Monday to Thursday Per hour $41.50 $41.50 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Commercial
Monday to Thursday Per hour $62.00 $63.00 1.61% $1.00 CNCL Y

Springvale Reserve (Hall 2)

(capacity 50)
General

Monday to Thursday Per hour $51.50 $52.50 1.94% $1.00 CNCL Y
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21 Year 21/22

Increase Increase
% $

Community Group

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced
by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of
incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or
equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Monday to Thursday Per hour $41.00 $41.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Commercial
Monday to Thursday Per hour $62.00 $63.00 1.61% $1.00 CNCL Y

Springvale Reserve (Hall 1 and 2 combined)

(capacity 165, includes kitchen)
General
Minimum charge

Friday to Sunday Minimum 5 $463.00 $470.00 1.51% $7.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Additional hours / hourly rate

Friday to Sunday Per hour $92.50 $94.00 1.62% $1.50 CNCL Y
Commercial kitchen hire Per hour $46.50 $47.50 2.15% $1.00 CNCL Y
(Monday to Thursday — day time

only to 5pm)

Community Group

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced
by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of
incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or
equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Minimum charge

Friday to Sunday Minimum 5 $309.00 $309.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Additional hours / hourly rate

Friday to Sunday Per hour $62.00 $62.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Commercial kitchen hire Per hour $31.00 $31.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
(Monday to Thursday — day time

only to 5pm)
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21 Year 21/22

Increase Increase
% $

Commercial

Minimum charge

Friday to Sunday Minimum 5 $566.00 $575.00 1.59% $9.00 CNCL Y
hour block

Additional hours / hourly rate

Friday to Sunday Per hour $113.50 $115.50 1.76% $2.00 CNCL Y
Commercial kitchen hire Per hour $65.00 $66.00 1.54% $1.00 CNCL Y
(Monday to Thursday — day time

only to 5pm)

Springvale Reserve (Meeting room 1)

(capacity 16)
General

Monday to Sunday Per hour $26.00 $26.50 1.92% $0.50 CNCL Y

Community Group

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced
by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of
incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or
equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Monday to Sunday Per hour $21.00 $21.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
Commercial
Monday to Sunday Per hour $31.00 $31.50 1.61% $0.50 CNCL Y

Springvale Reserve (Meeting room 2)

(capacity 8)
General

Monday to Sunday Per hour $21.00 $21.50 2.38% $0.50 CNCL Y

Community Group

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced
by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of
incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or
equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Monday to Sunday Per hour $15.50 $15.50 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y
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City of Greater Dandenong
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21

Commercial
Monday to Sunday Per hour $26.00
Springvale Reserve (All)

Bond

High risk events will incur double bond.

Security bond Per event $300.00

Palm Plaza (Meeting rooms)

General

Monday to Sunday Per hour $41.50

Community Group

Year 21/22

Increase Increase
% $

$26.50 1.92% $0.50 CNCL Y
$300.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL N
$42.50 2.41% $1.00 CNCL Y

Community groups/organisations seeking the not for profit community rate must either be an incorporated association or auspiced
by an Incorporated Association. Such groups must provide their Incorporation number as it appears on the Certificate of
incorporation from Consumer Affairs Victoria. Those who fail to provide the incorporation number of the group or auspicing body (or

equivalent) will be ineligible for the community rates.

Monday to Sunday Per hour $26.00
Commercial
Monday to Sunday Per hour $51.50

$26.00 0.00% $0.00 CNCL Y

$52.50 1.94% $1.00 CNCL Y
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City of Greater Dandenong MONDAY, 26 APRIL 2021
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - MINUTES

4.2.4 Proposed 2021-22 Budget (Cont.)

Year 20/21 Year 21/22

Increase Increase
% $

Dandenong Civic Centre (Level 2)

General
Council Chamber (limited Per hour $89.50 $91.00 1.68% $1.50 CNCL Y
availability)
Formal Meeting Room Per hour $89.50 $91.00 1.68% $1.50 CNCL Y
Board Room 1 Per hour $51.50 $52.50 1.94% $1.00 CNCL Y
Board Room 2 Per hour $51.50 $52.50 1.94% $1.00 CNCL Y
Board Rooms 1 and 2 Per hour $77.00 $78.50 1.95% $1.50 CNCL Y
(combined)
Board Rooms 1 and 2, and Per hour $143.00 $145.50 1.75% $2.50 CNCL Y
Formal Room (combined) before
6pm
Board Rooms 1 and 2, and Per hour $203.50 $207.00 1.72% $3.50 CNCL Y
Formal Room (combined) after
6pm
Board Rooms 1 and 2, Formal Per hour $221.00 $224.50 1.58% $3.50 CNCL Y

Room and Council Chamber
(combined) before 6pm

Board Rooms 1 and 2, Formal Per hour $238.50 $242.50 1.68% $4.00 CNCL Y
Room and Council Chamber
(combined) after 6pm

Kitchen Per hour $52.50 $53.50 1.90% $1.00 CNCL Y
Interview Room 1 Per hour $41.50 $4